Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Cabinet

TUESDAY, 26TH APRIL, 2011 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Kober (Chair), Reith (Vice Chair), Bevan, Canver, Dogus,
Goldberg, Mallett and Vanier.

Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may be used
for training purposes within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for web
casting and/or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Cabinet Committees
Manager (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (if any)

2. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 16 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item
21 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST



A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

4, MINUTES

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 22 March
2011.

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders.

6. MATTERS REFERRED BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
a. Scrutiny Review of 20 m.p.h. Speed Limit (To be introduced by Councillor Bull)
b. Scrutiny Review of the Haringey Guarantee (To be introduced by Councillor Bull)

Note by the Head of Local Democracy and Member Services

Part 4 Section G Paragraph 1.3 (vii) of the Constitution states that following
endorsement by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, final reports and
recommendations will be presented to the next available Cabinet meeting. The
Cabinet will note the report and request a responding report from the Chief Executive
or Chief Officer and Cabinet Member responsible. The request is to be available
within 6 weeks of the request and will include a detailed tabulated implementation
action plan.

7. THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE: FEBRUARY 2011 (PERIOD 11)
(Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate Resources — To be
introduced by the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Finance and Sustainability): To
report on an exception basis financial and performance information for the year to
February 2011.

8. HORNSEY TOWN HALL REFURBISHMENT AND REDEVELOPMENT



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

(Report of the Director of Corporate Resources — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Finance and Sustainability): To decide on the preferred option for the
regeneration of part of the Hornsey Town Hall complex (including the Hornsey Town
Hall building) and to seek approval to market the rest of the Hornsey Town Hall
complex on the open market.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME PRIORITIES 2011 TO 2014

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Housing): To detail the capital funding currently anticipated for the four
financial years 2011/12 to 2014/15 and to consider the implications and priorities for
capital expenditure in 2011/12.

SUPPORTED HOUSING REVIEW - STOKELY COURT

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Housing): To provide an update on the Supported Housing Review and to
seek approval to change the designation of Stokely Court from a Sheltered Housing
Scheme to a Community Good Neighbour Scheme.

PROPOSALS FOR THE REDESIGN OF THE SUPPORTING PEOPLE
PROGRAMME AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COUNCIL'S SAVINGS PLANS

(Report of the Director of Adults, Culture and Community Services - To be introduced
by the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Wellbeing): To describe the
proposal on redesign of the Supporting People programme from April 2011 to March
2014 and to achieve improved value for money savings and to deliver on strategic
developments to ensure continued support to the residents of the Borough.

RESPONDING TO THE NHS AND PUBLIC HEALTH WHITE PAPERS

(Joint Report of the Director of Public Health, the Director of Adult, Culture and
Community Services and the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service —
To be introduced by the Cabinet Member for Adult and Community Services): To
address Haringey’s response to the White Papers ‘Equity and Excellence: Liberating
the NHS’ and ‘Healthy Lives, Healthy People: Our Strategy for Public Health in
England’ and the legislative requirements set out in the Health and Social Care Bill.

MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES

a. Joint Meeting of Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee and the Children’s
Safeguarding Policy & Practice Advisory Committee — 17 March 2011;

b. Procurement Committee — 24 March 2011.

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET MEMBERS



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (People and Organisational Development)
To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with the
Leader and Cabinet.

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (People and Organisational Development)
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The following items are likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public as it contains exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs of
any particular person (including the Authority holding that information) or exempt
information likely to reveal the identity of an individual and information relating to an
individual.

Note by the Head of Local Democracy and Member Services

Items 18 - 20 allow for the consideration of exempt information in relation to items 8,
11 and 15 which appear earlier on the agenda.

HORNSEY TOWN HALL REFURBISHMENT AND REDEVELPMNET

(Report of the Director of Corporate Resources — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Finance and Sustainability): To decide on the preferred option for the
regeneration of part of the Hornsey Town Hall complex (including the Hornsey Town
Hall building) and to seek approval to market the rest of the Hornsey Town Hall
complex on the open market.

PROPOSAL FOR THE REDESIGN OF THE SUPPORTING PEOPLE PROGRAMME
AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COUNCIL'S SAVINGS PLAN

(Report of the Director of Adults, Culture and Community Services - To be introduced
by the Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Wellbeing): To describe the
proposal on redesign of the Supporting People programme from April 2011 to March
2014 and to achieve improved value for money savings and to deliver on strategic
developments to ensure continued support to the residents of the Borough. To follow

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

(Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (People and Organisational Development)
To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken.



21. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any items admitted at 2 above.

David McNulty

Head of Local Democracy
and Member Services

5" Floor

River Park House

225 High Road

Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Richard Burbidge

Cabinet Committees Manager

Tel: 020-8489 2923

Fax: 020-8489 2660

Email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk

14 April 2011.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

Councillors *Kober (Chair), *Reith (Vice-Chair), *Bevan, *Canver, *Dogus,
*Goldberg, *Mallett and *Vanier.

*Present

Also Present: Councillors Bull, Ejiofor, Gorrie and Weber.

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CAB134.| APOLOGIES (Agenda Item 1)

An apology for lateness was received from Councillor Canver.

CAB135.| DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda Item 3)

Councillor Reith in respect of item 14 - Homes for Haringey Business | HLDMS
Plan.

CAB136.| MINUTES (Agenda ltem 4)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 8 February | HLDMS
2011 be confirmed and signed.

CAB137.| THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE: JANUARY 2011 (PERIOD 10)
(Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate
Resources - Agenda Item 7)

We noted that the report set out on an exception basis financial and
performance information for the year to January 2011 and sought our
approval to budget virements set out in this report in accordance with
financial regulations.

In response to a question about the projected £2.4 million overspend in
the current financial year, it was confirmed that this was a net figure
which took account of both one off savings and the use of unallocated
Area Based Grant.

With reference to the budget position for Looked After Children we were
informed that there was a particular pressure in this area because of the
increased number of children in care and the difficulty in finding
appropriate placements as soon as children were received into care.
With specific regard to agency costs we were advised that collaborative
measures were in hand through the North London Strategic Alliance and
Capital Ambition to address this issue including by way of increasing the
number of ‘in house’ foster carers and to this end a recruitment
campaign would be taking place across North London.




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

RESOLVED:

1. That the report and the progress being made against the
Council’s priorities be noted and approval be granted to the
budget changes (virements) set out in Appendix 2 to the
interleaved report.

2. That Directors, where possible, be required to take necessary
action to bring current year spending to within their approved
budget.

DCR

CEMB

CAB138.

DETERMINED ADMISSIONS ARRANGEMENTS (Report of the Director
of the Children and Young People’s Service - Agenda Item 8)

We noted that Section 88C of the School Standards and Framework Act
1998, as amended, required admission authorities to consult on their
admission arrangements at least every three years and in any year in
which variations were being considered. Co-ordinated schemes had
been formulated every year.

We also noted that the wording and style of the admission arrangements
had been simplified and that Information had been included to clarify
how tie break situations and applications from families with twins or other
multiple births would be addressed. Officers had been asked for future
years to provide a breakdown of people’s choices to ensure that there
was sufficient clarity about the way the system worked.

We were informed that the Children and Young People’s Service had a
duty to monitor the compliance of arrangements from its own admitting
authority schools and that accordingly advice would be provided to
governing bodies who were the admission authorities for other
maintained primary and secondary schools in Haringey. However, these
‘own admission authorities” were responsible for their own consultation
process and their determination.

All determined arrangements would be published on the Haringey
website for access by the public and the new arrangements would then
come into effect from the September 2012 intake.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the proposed admission
arrangements for all community nursery classes, primary and
secondary schools and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled Primary
School for the 2012/13 school year as set out in the interleaved
report including the proposed reduction of the PAN for Noel Park
from 81 to 60 and the proposed increase in the PAN for
Alexandra Primary from 30 to 60.

2. That approval be granted to the proposed admission
arrangements for students starting sixth form study in Haringey in
September 2012 as set out in the interleaved report.

DCYPS

DCYPS




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

CAB139.

TRANSFORMING SOCIAL CARE AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
PERSONALISATION AND SELF DIRECTED SUPPORT (Report of the
Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services - Agenda Item 9)

We noted that the report provided us with a final report on the outcomes
of the 3 Year Programme of Transformation together with an outline of
the changes to the overall organisational and management structure of
adult social care and an implementation plan post April 2011 required to
deliver personal budgets.

Councillor Bevan asked to be supplied outside the meeting with further
details of the service users who had opted not to take Direct Payments
in terms of those who did not have the capacity to take them and those
who had declined so that the Council would have to continue to them.

RESOLVED

That approval be granted to the changes to the overall
organisational and management structure of adult social care as
set out in the interleaved report and to the implementation plan
post April 2011 required to deliver personal budget.

DACCS

DACCS

CAB140.

PROPOSALS FOR THE REDESIGN OF THE SUPPORTING PEOPLE
PROGRAMME AND CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COUNCIL'S SAVINGS
PLANS (Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and Community
Services - Agenda ltem 10)

We noted that the Supporting People programme was an invest-to-save
strategy which responded to the Prevention Agenda. We also noted that
the programme had been externally evaluated as delivering good
outcomes within robust governance and had been successfully reviewed
in line with reducing income over the past 3 years.

We were informed that the programme team enjoyed a mature working
relationship with providers, which had allowed for re-modelling and re-
negotiated contracts and that this approach was to be taken forward to
achieve further savings of £5 million required in response to the current
spending cuts. Equality Impact Assessments (EIA’s) and full consultation
procedures would be followed prior to any final decisions. We were also
informed that market shifts indicated that current contract values were
“adrift” of benchmarked prices, and this would be used as a mechanism
for a further levelling of costs across the programme.

In response to a question whether there were any emerging key strands
from the EIA’'s we were further informed that consultation on the
proposals including responses to EIA’'s was continuing and that the
conclusions from these would be included in a further report to the
Cabinet. With regard to the housing aspirations of the re-designed
programme the intention would be to retain the Home Improvement
Agency and the Rent Guarantee scheme as well as seeking to develop a
Foyer in the borough. These proposals would be developed through
closer working arrangements with Strategic Housing and the Childrens’




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

Service.

With regard to the possible impact of the reduced Supporting People
programme on the core social care budget, we were informed that
financial impact might have to be mitigated against the number of
service users.

Clarification having been sought of the possible impact on third sector
providers, we were advised that there was to be a meeting on 14 April
with third sector Supporting People programme providers and that the
feedback from this meeting would also be included in the further report.

The comment contained in paragraph 5.5 about existing contracts being
overpriced related mainly to contracts for mental health support which
were yet to be re-negotiated and which would provide an opportunity for
a contract value reduction which would achieve some levelling of costs.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the budget commitment to the
Supporting People programme being reduced by £5 million from 1
April 2011.

2. That approval be granted to the redesign of the programme in line
with the current and future needs of the Borough.

DACCS

DACCS

CAB141.

PARKS SERVICE - CHANGE PROPOSALS (Report of the Director of
Adult, Culture and Community Services - Agenda Item 11)

With the consent of our Chair, UNISON comments on the report were
tabled. UNISON requested that consideration of the report be deferred
and their paper set out their reasons for seeking a deferral. In response
to the points raised by UNISON in relation to consultation, it was pointed
out that reference to the current report had been made at the last
meeting and that the Assistant Director Recreation had been speaking
with Branch Officials informally in the meantime. Formal consultation
would commence on 28 March. It was accepted that the cuts to the
funding of parks services were significant but were considered
necessary in the face of reductions in Government funding.

We noted that the report reviewed current arrangements for funding and
provision of parks services in the Borough and considered a range of
options for future service provision and delivery. The report also outlined
specific proposals to implement the approved budget reduction and
sought our decision on the way forward.

In response to a question arising from paragraph 6.5.1 of the report we
were informed that that the number of volunteering hours for the British
Trust Conservation Volunteers might have to be reduced as a result of
the loss of time limited Area Based Grant as well as reductions in the
core budget. A longer term agreement was being sought which would tie
in to other outside sources of funding. It was confirmed that there was




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

provision for the funding of the Neighbourhood Watch Co-ordinator post.
It was also confirmed that devolution of parks functions to Area
Committees could be discussed at the meeting of the Members’ Delivery
Group on the Governance Review on 31 March.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted in principle to the package of proposals
set out in paragraph 8 of the interleaved report, subject to the
outcome of statutory consultation with recognised trade unions
and taking into account the authority’s public sector equality
duties, noting that final decisions might not be taken until these
matters are considered fully.

2. That approval be granted in principle to the related redirection of
funding to voluntary sector and partner led delivery subject to the
authority’s public sector equality duties and the results of
consultation referred to in 1 above being taken into account.

3. That in the event that the relevant decision-maker decided not to
proceed with the result that savings were not realised, it be noted
that there would be an inquiry as to whether equivalent savings
can be found elsewhere and that accordingly approval be granted
to the delegation of final decisions on the savings to be adopted
to the relevant Directors in consultation with the appropriate
Cabinet Members, following consideration of the results of any
consultation and with due regard to the Council’s public sector
equality duties.

4. That it be noted that decisions on staffing matters fell within the
terms of reference of the General Purposes Committee.

DACCS

DACCS

DACCS

CAB142.

REVIEW OF PAY AND DISPLAY CHARGES - FEEDBACK TO
STATUTORY NOTIFICATION OF PROPOSALS TO INCREASE
CHARGES (Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda ltem
12)

We noted that the report informed us of the feedback to the statutory
notification of the Council’s intention to increase pay and display charges
and the outcome of the additional assessment of the likely impact on
town centres. We also noted that the report set out officers’ response to
this feedback (objections) for consideration before making a decision on
whether or not to proceed to give statutory notification of the increase in
charges for pay and display parking.

Cabinet Members complimented officers on the thoroughness of the
work and commented that the feedback revealed differing levels of
knowledge about the uses to which parking revenues could be put.
Reference was made to the comments of the Traders Groups about
there being no free on street parking in the Green Lanes area as distinct
from the Muswell Hill and Crouch End areas.




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

Reference was also made to a meeting which had taken place with all 3
Trader groups at which support had been expressed for an increase in
parking charges to the Mid Band, but there was strong objection to being
moved onto the High Band for charging purposes. The 3 town centres
comprised local shops which attracted customers whose length of stay
would vary. A new Controlled Parking Zone was to become operational
in Crouch End in early April which coupled with a large increase in
parking charges might result in many shoppers going elsewhere which
would have serious_consequences for these small businesses.

We were informed that the Council’s aim was to set charges at a level
that encouraged a turnover of parking spaces which was especially
beneficial for short stay visits by shoppers and visitors. While
improvements had been made in parking provision in Muswell Hill, and
Crouch End with further work underway in Green Lanes the main
concern still raised in relation to parking was the availability of parking
spaces. With limited kerb space and as such limited capacity to further
increase parking provision the only means of meeting demand was by
managing turnover. Charging would play a key role in managing this and
an impact review would be conducted in 12 months time.

RESOLVED

That following due consideration of the feedback to proposals to
increase pay and display parking charges approval be granted to

a) The implementation of the proposed increase to pay and
display charges detailed in the interleaved report; and

b) Charges being moved to the higher band in the town centres
of Crouch End, Muswell Hill and Green Lanes.

DUE

CAB143.

FEEDBACK FROM REVIEWS OF THE FINSBURY PARK AND
FINSBURY PARK A CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES (Report of the
Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Iltem 13)

We noted that the report advised us of the feedback received during
informal consultation for a review of the Finsbury Park and Finsbury Park
A Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ’s) and sought our approval to proceed.

Attention was drawn to the specific comments in relation to Arsenal
match day controls which might warrant a review of them and to the
concerns expressed about allocation of residents bays in
Ennis/Woodstock/Perth/Oxford Roads and in particular to the number of
essential user service permits issued to the teachers of Stroud Green
Primary School. With regard to essential permits, we were informed that
these were normally restricted to one or two roads near the school and
the areas where the essential permit holder might be permitted to park
would be further investigated.

RESOLVED




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

1.

That the feedback from the consultation and additional comments
set out in the interleaved report be noted.

That officers be authorised to proceed to statutory notification for
the creation of a new CPZ operating Monday — Friday between 12
noon and 2:00 which would incorporate the existing Finsbury Park
‘A’ CPZ and the following roads.

e Stapleton Hall Road (between Oakfield Road and Mount View
Road)

Elyne Road
Addington Road
Quernmore Road
Mount View Road
Ridge Road
Albany Road
Ferme Park Road
Granville Road
Oakfield Road

That officers be authorised to proceed to statutory notification for
the creation of three sub zones within the existing Finsbury Park
CPZ to operate at the existing hours, Monday — Saturday, 8.30am
— 6.30pm and 12pm — 4.30pm on Sundays and bank holidays on
match days and event days and that the three zones be split as
follows:

Finsbury Park:
Woodstock Road, Perth Road, Ennis Road, and Oxford Road

Finsbury Park B:

Connaught Road, Dagmar Road, Oakfield Road, Cornwall
Road,Carlton Road, Beatrice Road, Lancaster Road, Upper
Tollington Park (between Oakfield = Road and half-way between
its junctions with Lancaster Road and Florence Road),
Scarborough Road and Carlisle Road.

Finsbury Park C:

Stapleton Hall Road (between Stroud Green Road and Lancaster
Road), Mount Pleasant Crescent, Albert Road, Lorne Road,
Marquis Road, Osborne Road, Upper Tollington Park (between
Stroud Green Road and half-way between its junctions with
Lancaster Road and Florence Road), Florence Road, Victoria
Road, Victoria Terrace.

. That officers be authorised to modify / relocate business, pay and

display, and shared use bays within the Finsbury Park CPZ to
better meet the needs of the local community.

That officers inform all residents/traders of the original
consultation of the foregoing decisions.

DUE

DUE

DUE

DUE




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

CAB144.

HOMES FOR HARINGEY BUSINESS PLAN 2011-16 (Report of the
Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 14)

Councillor Reith declared a personal interest in this item by virtue of
being a Homes for Haringey leaseholder.

We noted that under the terms of the Management Agreement, the
Homes for Haringey Business Plan was required to set out how the
organisation supported delivery of the key strategic priorities of the
Council, and met the expected key performance standards and
requirements for the service. Homes for Haringey was also required to
provide details of the resources which would support the organisation in
providing the required levels of service.

We were advised that Homes for Haringey had submitted its Business
Plan for 2011-16 to meet the requirements of the Council’s business
planning framework and that the Plan had been developed in
consultation with the Strategic and Community Housing Service and the
Cabinet Member for Housing and included their suggestions and
amendments.

We also noted that the Business Plan set out how Homes for Haringey
was acting upon the recommendations made by Audit Commission
inspectors which were set out in Section 11 and that the Strategic and
Community Housing Service believed the plan supported the strategic
objectives of both the Council Plan and the Haringey Housing strategy,
as well as taking into account the requirements of the wider national,
regional and sub-regional policy context.

We were also advised that Homes for Haringey’s performance team
were consulting the Council’s client team and the Cabinet Member for
Housing on performance indicator suite targets and these would be
included in the Plan following agreement.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the Homes for Haringey Business
Plan 2011-16 as set out at Appendix 1 to the interleaved report.

2. That authority to approve the performance indicator targets for
inclusion in the Plan be delegated to the Interim Director of Place
and Sustainability in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Housing.

DUE

DUE

CAB145.

HARINGEY OLDER PEOPLE'S HOUSING STRATEGY 2011-2021
(Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda ltem 15)

We noted that the Older People’s Housing Strategy was a sub-strategy
of Haringey’s Overarching Housing Strategy for 2009-19 and had been
developed to address the particular issues relating to housing for this
group. We also noted that the strategy had been developed through a
multi-partnership approach involving statutory and third sector




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

organisations as well as older people themselves.

We were advised that the consultation process had followed the
Council’s consultation framework and had covered a 3 month period
using a wide range of methods to ensure that as many organisations and
individuals as possible were able to give their views.

We were also advised that the main priorities of the Strategy were to —

e Improve partnership working to provide joined up services;

e Housing options that enabled people to live independently for as
long as possible;

e Ensure specialist housing and support was targeted to those most
in need,;

e Ensure this strategy supported the wider Council agenda for older
people.

We further noted that while the key actions supporting these priorities
had been developed through consultation it was recognised that
because of the rapidly changing political agenda the action would need
to be reviewed after a year to ensure it captured this and the implications
for older people’s housing in Haringey.

RESOLVED

That approval be granted to the Older People’s Housing Strategy
2011-21 as set out at Appendix 1 to the interleaved report.

DUE

CAB146.

UPDATE ON TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION (Joint Report of the
Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate Resources - Agenda Item
16)

We were advised that changes to the Housing Benefit Subsidy
Regulations affecting Temporary Accommodation (TA), implemented in
April 2010, had placed considerable pressure on the Council’s TA budget.

At our meeting on 12 October 2010 (vide Minute CAB 62) on
consideration of a detailed report which set out the circumstances which
had led to the current deficit situation we asked that a further update be
provided which set out the actions being undertaken to reduce the deficit
and to minimise the impact on the Council’s overall financial position and
we noted that the purpose of the report now submitted was to provide that
update.

Clarification was sought of what steps could be taken to improve the
performance of housing associations providing temporary accommodation
and if there was any factual evidence to confirm the suggestion that
Central London boroughs were intending to place an increasing number
of homeless households in Outer London boroughs where the rents were
more affordable.

We were informed that the evidence about the placement of homeless




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

households was not entirely anecdotal and that constituent members of]
London Councils had agreed to sign up to a pledge about such
placements. If the voluntary code did not prove sufficient then
consideration would be given to putting it on a statutory basis.

With regard to the funding of new housing, as a consequence of the
Comprehensive Spending Review, the Homes and Community Agency)|
(HCA) had its grant programme cut by 75% and the remainder was
largely restricted to contractual obligations. The Government’s approach
was predicated on social landlords being able to charge a higher rent, up
to 80% of the market rent for an area as the basis for securing some grant
from the HCA. The Government also assumed that social landlords would
borrow more and use their reserves to fund new housing which while
giving the social landlords greater freedoms and, potentially, access to
higher rents required them to take greater risk in their borrowing and
lowering of reserves. Also, in areas of exceptionally high rent, the 80%
model would be unsustainable the more so with the benefit cap in place.

Councillor Gorrie asked to be supplied with information about the number|
of homeless households thought likely to be placed in Haringey.

RESOLVED

1. That the action taken by officers in order to reduce the cost of
procuring and managing temporary accommodation and minimise
the Council’s financial exposure be noted and supported.

2. That additional measures be put in place by the Council and its
partners to further mitigate the impact of the Housing Subsidy
Regulations on the Council’s finances.

DUE

DUE

CAB147.

COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER - 22 WIMBOURNE ROAD N17
(Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda ltem 17)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person.

We noted that the report provided us with details of an empty property in
Wimbourne Road which was causing a serious nuisance to the residents
of neighbouring properties and recommended that the compulsory
purchase of the property be pursued in order to bring it back into use.

Arising from consideration of this item we asked that an update report be
brought forward to a future meeting with details of the progress of other
Compulsory Purchase Orders which we had previously agreed.

RESOLVED

1. That the action taken by officers in an attempt to bring 22

Wimborne Road back into use be noted and supported.

DUE




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

2. That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to take the
following action in relation to 22 Wimborne Road using the
powers vested in the Council under Part 17 of the Housing Act
1985:

a. Make and seal the Order for submission to the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government for
consideration and approval (including the service of any
requisition notices necessary to establish interests in the
property) and carry out the statutory notification required;

b. Confirm the Compulsory Purchase Order in the event of
the Secretary of State returning the Order authorising the
Council to do so;

c. Prepare for, and represent the Council at any public inquiry
held following the submission of the Order to the Secretary
of State;

d. Proceed with the acquisition of the property following
receipt of confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase Order;

e. Actin relation to any other procedural matters that may
arise in the normal course of the Compulsory Purchase
Order process.

3. That, subject to the confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase
Order by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government or the Council, approval be granted to the disposal of
the property to a Registered Provider, or to an individual or private
developer on terms to be approved by the Head of Property
Services.

4. That approval be granted to the financial costs of the Compulsory
Purchase Order being met from the Council’s capital programme
on the understanding that the net capital receipt from the disposal
following deduction of the cost of any works carried out in default
would be put back into the capital programme budget.

DUE/
HolLS

DUE/
HoLS/
HPS

DUE

CAB148.

RE-CONSTITUTION OF THE CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY
AND PRACTICE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Report of the Assistant
Chief Executive (People and Organisational Development) - Agenda
Item 18)

We noted that the report sought approval to the re-constitution of the
Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee so that it would
work along similar lines to the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee.

We also noted that this would involve increasing and defining the officer
representatives to support the Committee and the compilation of a twice
yearly report for submission to the Cabinet and to the Council. In order to




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

aid further the parallel working of the Safeguarding Policy and Practice
Committee and the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee, it was
proposed that there should be an annual joint meeting between them
and that both Committees should also share information on their
continuing work on safeguarding and corporate parenting by considering
the minutes from each other’'s meetings.

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the proposals for the reconstitution of
the Children Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory
Committee including its membership, quorum and terms of
reference as set out in paragraph 7.1 of the interleaved report.

HLDMS

CAB149.

MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES (Agenda ltem 19)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the following meetings be noted and any
necessary action approved —

a. Corporate Parenting Committee — 24 January 2011

b. Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory
Committee — 24 January 2011;

c. Procurement Committee — 3 February 2011;

d. Procurement Committee — 24 February 2011;

e. Cabinet Member Signing — 24 February 2011.

CAB150.

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET
MEMBERS (Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Director of
Corporate Resources - Agenda ltem 7)

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

CAB151.

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (Joint Report
of the Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate Resources -
Agenda ltem 7)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

The meeting ended at 20.40 hours.




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2011

CLAIRE KOBER
Chair



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda ltem 6

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Overview and Scrutiny Committee On 28 March 2011

Report Title. Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit

Report of Councillor Bull, Chair of Review Panel

Contact Officer : Robert Mack, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer Tel: 0208 489 2921

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

That Members approve the report and recommendations of the review, as outlined in
the report.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
e Council Plan: A cleaner, greener Haringey

e Sustainable Community Strategy outcomes: Safer for All and An Environmentally
Sustainable Future.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That the report and its recommendations be approved and referred to Cabinet for a
response.

4. Reasons for recommendations

Please refer to the scrutiny review report (attached)




Page 16

5. Other options considered

Please refer to the scrutiny review report (attached)

6. Chief Financial Officer Comments

6.1 The recommendations of the Scrutiny Review Panel include consultation on the
introduction of a 20mph speed limit for all side roads within the borough, a pilot 20
mph speed limit in a suitable town centre and a comprehensive publicity and
promotional campaign.

6.2 No work has been undertaken to date to assess the costs of each of these
recommendations and there is currently no earmarked capital or revenue funding
within the Council’'s Medium term Financial Plan. It would be possible to capitalise
an element of the cost of implementing a pilot scheme within a town centre which
could be funded from existing LIP capital allocations but all associated revenue
costs would need to be contained within existing highways budget provisions.

6.3 The report highlights that the introduction of a 20 mph limit without the use of
physical traffic calming measures would be significantly more cost effective than a
similar scheme with traffic calming measures although the on-going enforcement
costs would be greater.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted and has no specific legal implications
arising from this report.

8. Head of Procurement Comments
N/A

9. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

These are considered throughout the report.

10. Consultation

10.1 The review sought and received evidence from a wide range of stakeholders as
well as local community and resident organisations.

11. Service Financial Comments: The overall cost of establishing a default 20 mph
speed limit enforced by signage alone is likely to be significantly less than that of the
Council’s extending the number of 20 mph zones by physical calming measures. The




Page 17

Islington scheme cost £1.6 million to implement which compares with a cost of £10
million for Haringey’s current strategy. However, the expenditure is likely to be
incurred over two financial years rather then spread over 10 — 15 years. The Panel
has recommended that it be financed via the using of LIP funding.

12.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The background papers relating to this report are:

Braking Point — Report by the Transport Committee of the London Assembly —
April 2009

Interim Evaluation of the Implementation of 20 mph Speed Limits in Portsmouth -
Atkins - Final Report

These can be obtained from Robert Mack, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer on 0208
489 2921, 7" Floor, River Park House,
E- Mail rob.mack@haringey.gov.uk




Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

X

=

Haringey

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit

A REVIEW BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MARCH 2011

www.haringey.gov.uk




Page 20

Contents:

Chairs Foreword

Executive Summary

Recommendations

Background

Introduction

Haringey's Current Strategy

Evidence from Other Local Authorities
Feedback from Community Organisations
The Panel's Conclusions

Appendix A; Participants in the review

Appendix B; Documents referred to

page

10
13
18
21
23

24

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit

Page 2 of 25



Page 21

Chair’s Foreword:

Research on road traffic collisions shows quite clearly that speed kills. Even small
reductions in speed can have a significant effect on casualty figures. Slowing traffic down
has therefore been a priority for many local Councils across the country and considerable
success has been achieved in recent years. Physical calming measures, such as road
humps and chicanes, have contributed significantly to this. The setting of default 20 mph
speed limits for whole areas, enforced by signage alone, can be seen as the logical next
step to this. Our review looked specifically at the feasibility of adopting this approach in
Haringey.

The Panel considered the evidence from schemes currently in place as well as the views
of a range of local stakeholders and community and resident associations. There is no
doubt that significant progress has been made in recent years in reducing road casualties.
However, there is still scope for further improvement and | hope that the Panel's
conclusions and recommendations, which are outlined in the following report, will
contribute towards this.

Councillor Gideon Bull
Chair of the Review Panel

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 3 of 25



Page 22

Executive Summary

In recent years, considerable success has been achieved in reducing road casualties
through the establishment of 20 mph zones, particularly in London. These are self
enforcing due to the use of appropriate physical calming measures, such as road humps.
Generally, the most high risk or dangerous locations have been prioritised for action. In
London, many local authorities have already addressed most, if not all, of such areas.
Some, such as Hackney, have been considering joining up all their 20 mph zones to form
a borough wide 20 speed limit. Haringey, in common with many other authorities, has a
long term strategy of increasing the number of 20 mph zones in the borough until most
residential streets are covered.

Several local authorities, such as Portsmouth, Islington and Oxford, have taken the step of
setting 20 mph as the default speed limit for their area, enforced by signage alone. The
scheme in Portsmouth has been independently evaluated and showed that it has been
associated with reduced traffic speeds and casualty figures. Islington Council has also
recently implemented a borough wide 20 mph speed limit which has been well supported
amongst local residents. Whilst more evidence is needed on the long term effectiveness
of default 20 mph speed limits, that which is currently available has demonstrated some
promising results.

The cost of establishing a default 20 mph speed limit enforced by signage alone is
considerably less than that of extending the number of 20 mph zones by physical calming
measures. The Islington scheme cost £1.6 million to implement which compares with a
cost of £10 million for Haringey’s current strategy. A default 20 mph speed limit can also
be established quickly — in approximately two years as opposed for the Council’s current
strategy which will take 10 — 15 years to complete.

The Panel is therefore of the view that there would be merit in introducing, subject to
consultation with residents, a default 20 mph speed limit for the borough for all side roads.
This would be enforced by signage alone in areas not currently within 20 mph zones. Itis
essential that local residents are fully engaged in the process as the success of such a
scheme is dependent on their support. The Panel also believes that the Council should
work with Transport for London to set up a pilot 20 mph speed limit in a town centre. This
should be subject to monitoring, evaluation and, if successful, extended to suitable other
town centres

Realistic expectations should be built for the scheme. Whilst the Panel is of the view that
it is likely to reduce average traffic seeds, the change is unlikely to be substantial, at least
in the first instance. This is due in part to the fact that many of the side streets included in
the new speed limit are likely to already have low traffic speeds thus limiting the potential
for reductions. In addition, reductions in casualties may be modest due in part to the fact
that many of the higher risk locations are already in 20 mph zones.

The Panel nevertheless feels that a default 20 mph speed limit would be of benefit. In
addition to reducing road casualties, it has the potential to lead to a long term change in
the behaviour of drivers, simplifies the issue of speed limits and makes expectations
clearer. Over time, drivers will become more familiar with the lower speed limit and
therefore more sympathetic to it. There is also evidence that it increases the perception
of safety and makes residents feel more positive about their area.

The Panel notes the concerns about enforcement but is of the view that it should not
necessarily be a major issue. The 30 mph speed limit is not enforced rigorously by the

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 4 of 25



Page 23

Police and it would therefore be unrealistic to expect any great level of enforcement of a
20 mph speed limit. Where persistent problems do occur, ward panels can make the
issue a priority for their Police Safer Neighbourhood team. Physical calming measures
can be considered as a last resort in areas where problems prove to be difficult to resolve.

Finally, the body of evidence on 20 mph speed limits, although increasing, is still limited.
Any Haringey scheme should therefore be carefully monitored and evaluated so that
progress can be mapped and the borough can contribute to developing a stronger
evidence base on the issue.

Recommendations:

1.

That the Council undertake a borough wide consultation process on the proposal to
establish a borough wide default 20 mph speed limit for all side roads and the
establishment, in consultation with TfL, of a pilot 20 mph speed limit in a suitable town
centre.

. That such a scheme be financed with the use of appropriate LIP funding.

That a comprehensive publicity and promotional campaign be developed for the
scheme to encourage compliance.

That Council vehicles and those of contractors be specifically required to comply with
the new speed limit.

That such a scheme be subject to monitoring and evaluation.
That where persistent problems are identified that are not possible to resolve, officers

work with local residents to identify creative and cost effective solutions such as
psychological traffic calming.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 5 of 25



Page 24

1. Background

1.1 A scrutiny review on sustainable transport was undertaken by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee in 2009/10. It recommended that the Council develop a
borough wide 20 mph speed limit to be operational in all residential areas and,
where appropriate, enforced by traffic calming measures. The recommendation was
partially agreed by the Cabinet on the basis that a 20 mph speed limit in residential
areas was only effective with physical measures to slow traffic.

1.2 Following this, a motion was submitted to Council on 19 July 2010 proposing that a
20 mph speed limit be implemented on all residential roads in Haringey over a four
year period and that a town centre 20 mph speed limit be piloted. In response to
this, the issue referred to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to look at the
proposal.

1.3 The Committee commissioned a time limited scrutiny review on the issue, with the
following membership:

Councillors Gideon Bull (Chair), Dhiren Basu, Martin Newton and Lyn Weber
1.4 The Panel agreed the following terms of reference for the review:

“To consider:

e the feasibility of the introduction of a default borough wide 20 mph speed limit
for suitable residential streets and, in particular, whether reductions in traffic
speeds and casualty figures are likely to be achieved without the need for
physical calming measures and enforced by signage alone;

e whether a time limited pilot scheme in a suitable town centre location should be
set up to test the potential effectiveness of such a scheme”.

1.5 In undertaking its work, the Panel considered:

e The potential for reductions in traffic speeds and road casualties through the
introduction of 20 mph speed limits in areas not already covered by existing 20
mph zones that are enforced by signage alone

e The views of local residents and whether such a policy has potential to gain
wide support. As such schemes are intended to be self enforcing, this is
particularly important.

e The relative cost effectiveness of this approach in comparison to the current
approach to reducing speed limits, where appropriate, to 20 mph

e The sustainability of potential benefits i.e. whether initial improvements are likely
to maintained without the need for physical calming measures

1.6 The review considered the following sources of evidence in undertaking the review:
¢ Interviews with key stakeholders and local residents organisations

e Research documentation and national guidance

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 6 of 25



Page 25

e Evidence on the effectiveness and outcomes of schemes in local authorities
which have already implemented default 20 mph speed limits, such as such as
Portsmouth, Bristol and Islington.

e Information on relevant work in this area being by Transport for London and the
Mayor

e Relevant financial data including comparative costs of specific schemes

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 7 of 25



Page 26

2. Introduction
Background

2.1 It has been established clearly that there is a link between traffic speed and road
collisions. Excessive speed has been shown to be a direct contributory factor in
about 20% of all collisions and a major factor on a third of all road deaths. This
does not necessarily mean that drivers are breaking the speed limit but may instead
be driving faster then appropriate for the conditions. Reducing speed limits has
therefore been widely accepted as an important means of reducing road casualties.
Research has shown that for every 1 mph reduction on average traffic speed, road
collisions are reduced by 5%.

2.2 London boroughs have lead responsibility for changing and enforcing speed limits
on minor roads in London whilst Transport for London (TfL) is responsible for major
arterial roads. Many local authorities have introduced measures to reduce traffic
speed to 20 mph. Nationally, police forces have generally been reluctant to enforce
lower speed limits and there is an expectation that any such schemes should
therefore be self enforcing. For example, the current policy of the Metropolitan
Police is not to enforce 20mph speed limits except in exceptional circumstances.

2.3 Self enforcement has typically been through the use of physical calming features
such as speed humps and cushions, speed cameras, width restrictions and
chicanes. Research published by the Royal Society for the Prevention of Accidents
in 2009 showed that the more disruptive measures are the most effective:

e Signage alone reduces speeds by 1 mph
e Road humps reduce average speed by 10 mph
e Speed cameras reduce average speed by 20 mph

20 mph Zones

2.4 Until recently, the principal means used to reduce speed limits to 20 mph was
through designating specific areas as 20 mph “zones”. These are areas where
speed is restricted to 20mph by boundary signage and enforced by physical traffic
calming measures such as speed humps or chicanes. Although zones can be
limited to a single road, they normally include a cluster of streets. There are now
around 400 of these in London, covering 11% of total road length. Their use has
been targeted particularly at areas that are considered to be “high risk”, such as
around schools and hospitals.

2.5 Evidence from Transport for London (TfL) has shown that 20 mph zones have been
very effective in reducing road casualties. Casualties have gone down by 42% and
fatal or serious casualties by 46% in streets where zones have been introduced.
The impact has been particularly great in more deprived areas, which typically suffer
higher road casualty figures.

Default 20 mph speed limits
2.6 A number of local authorities have considered introducing default 20 mph speed

limits for entire areas. Some, such as Portsmouth City Council, Oxford City Council
and the London Borough of Islington, have implemented specific schemes. As with

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 8 of 25



Page 27

a zone, a 20mph limit is applied to roads to restrict the maximum legal speed to
20mph. In streets not already within 20 mph zones and subject to physical calming
measures, enforcement is by signage alone i.e. without any physical calming
measures. The limits apply to all residential roads in a particular area.

DfT Guidance

2.7 The introduction of limits and zones is subject to specific Department for Transport
(DfT) guidance which states that if the mean speed on a road is 24 mph or lower, a
20 mph speed limit can be set and enforced by signage alone. If mean speeds are
any higher than this, physical calming measures should be used. The Metropolitan
Police currently require that the relevant guidance is followed or appropriate
exemption is sought for the Department for Transport.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 9 of 25



Page 28

3. Stakeholder Views

Current Council Policy

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

The Panel received a presentation from Tony Kennedy, the Group Manager for
Transport Policy and Projects in the Urban Environment Directorate which outlined
the Council’s current position. It noted that it was looking to further increase the
number of areas with 20 mph speed limits. The overall policy had been discussed
at the Council’s Transport Forum and received approval, in principle, from all user
groups. The method of implementing such a limit was the main issue and, in
particular;

Whether it should be achieved by zones or limits
Whether it should be in priority areas only

The enforcement implications

The raising of public expectations

Financial implications

He stated that the option of achieving the speed reduction by speed limits and
without physical calming measures was considerably cheaper than through zones -
£600,000 to £1 million compared to £10 million. The Tower Gardens zone alone
had cost £400,000.

The Council valued the benefits of 20mph and recognised its contribution to
accident reduction, the perception of safer roads and encouragement of walking and
cycling. Its current policy was to increase the number of 20mph zones in the
borough through the neighbourhoods programme. This programme looked
holistically at neighbourhoods with a view to providing physical measures and
initiatives to make them safer and more pleasant.

As part of this approach, work was currently being undertaken on a scheme called
DIY Streets. This was an initiative run by the sustainable transport charity Sustrans
who had been contracted to work with the local community for 2 years in order to
help residents develop low cost solutions to making streets safer and more
attractive. It aimed to find simple interventions and materials which can be both
effective and durable.

The neighbourhood to the south-east of Turnpike Lane station, which includes
Langham Road, Carlingford Road, Stanmore Road and Graham Road, was being
looked at this year. This was a pilot project and it was intended to roll it out in other
neighbourhoods and to cover 2 to 3 each year, including 7 to 8 roads in each
exercise. The current policy was ongoing and would take approximately 10 — 15
years to complete. DIY Streets would look at possible ways forward, such as cycle
training and car clubs, in order to try and change the way that people think. £68,000
had been invested in this so far. Residents led on the scheme and the intention
would that they would come up with an outline scheme for a bid to TfL. In addition,
the Council had also set up a Sustainable Transport Commission to review its
sustainable transport policies.

He stated that the London Borough of Islington was the only borough to implement a
default 20mph limit on residential roads at the present time. The majority of their
streets (78%) were already in 20 mph zones and there were already relatively low

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 10 of 25



3.7

3.8

Page 29

average speeds in the borough. It would be more difficult to follow such an
approach in Haringey where only 30% of streets were currently in 20 mph zones.
However, he felt that there might be some merit in introducing a pilot scheme in a
street with an average speed of around 27/28 mph to see what effect it had.

In the event of a pilot scheme being set up in a town centre, he felt that Crouch End
or Muswell Hill would probably be the best options. Wood Green was already slow
and calmed and Green Lanes was also already fairly slow. It would be important to
obtain measurable statistics so the effectiveness of the pilot scheme could be
properly evaluated.

He had reservations that setting 20 mph speed limits without physical calming
measures might raise expectations that could not be met. If a default 20 mph speed
limit was introduced across the borough, it probably would not be possible to
enforce it. It was noted that 12 of the 19 Police Safer Neighbourhood Team (SNT)
areas of the borough had officers trained to use speed guns. The trained officers
currently also covered the 7 areas without dedicated trained officers. However,
SNTs only work until midnight. Average speed cameras could be used but were
currently very expensive, although the price was likely to come down. Flashing
speed signs were introduced where needed and worked well. Mobile ones were
available but needed to be manned. He stated that, in general, the number of
prosecutions for speeding within the borough was currently comparatively small.

Enforcement

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

Inspector Mark Long from the Police Safer Transport Team and Martin Young from
the Traffic Police gave the Panel their views on 20 mph speed limits. Mr Long
reported that the Police were not against the 20 mph speed limit in principle. The
issue for them was how it was to be achieved and enforced. Policing resources
were finite. He felt that signage alone would not be enough to reduce speeds.
Whilst speeds in some side roads were relatively slow due to their narrowness,
reducing speed would be a problem on wider roads.

Mr Young felt that signs alone would probably only reduce speeds slightly and many
vehicles were likely to travel well in excess of the limit. There needed to be some
physical means of enforcing limits. The Police would not be able to enforce a 20
mph speed limit unless it was properly implemented using an engineered solution.
However, if speeds were already under 24 mph, it was unlikely to be a major
problem. This would probably be the case where streets were narrow. In such
circumstances, there might not be any need for engineering measures such as
speed humps.

It was noted that the government had relaxed the requirements for introducing 20
mph speed limits and it was now more a matter for local determination. However,
local authorities would normally consult the police regarding enforcement. Safer
Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) had ward panels who decided upon priorities for their
area and it was possible for them to make enforcement of speed limits one of these.
5 wards out of 19 in Haringey had already set traffic as a priority. These are
Alexandra, Harringay, Noel Park, Northumberland Park and Woodside.

Mr Long stated that if SNTs were asked to focus on speeding, they would. Whilst
they were supportive of the principle of 20 mph speed limits, they were concerned
about enforcement. There was a balance between forcing traffic to slow down

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 11 of 25



Page 30

through physical measures and, if this did not work, through enforcement by the
police. If there was likely to be a significant amount of additional enforcement
required, if would not be possible for the police to commit the extra resources that
would be required. The Police would have a clear preference for engineering
instead of enforcement as a solution.

3.13 Mr Young stated that the traffic police liaised with SNTs on a regular basis. If
necessary, speeds could be monitored. It was quite often found that the reality did
not match the perception that speeding was a problem in an area. Where an issue
was identified, the information gathered could be used to decide whether an
engineering solution or education was required.

3.14 Mr Young stated that properly engineered physical calming measures worked and
removed the need for enforcement. Without them, the speed limit would only work
with the aid of enforcement. Traffic issues needed to be investigated properly and
expenditure focussed on where there had been collisions. He was of the view that
if speed limits were brought in haphazardly, it could bring them into disrepute.
Hackney and other boroughs were bringing in a borough 20 mph wide speed limit
through a patchwork of zones. He felt that this was a better way of achieving a 20
mph speed limit on a borough wide basis.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 12 of 25



Page 31

4. Evidence from Other Local Authorities

London Assembly

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

A London Assembly report entitled “Braking Point” looked at the issue of default 20
mph speed limits in detail. The report was of the view that there was, as yet,
incomplete evidence to determine the potential effectiveness of default 20 mph
speed limits. It concluded that there was a case for testing further the likely benefits
and recommended that the Mayor work with boroughs planning to introduce default
20 mph limits to monitor their effectiveness and that the results of the programme
should be published and used to inform future TfL and borough policy.

In terms of cost, the report noted that Islington were planning to spend £1 million to
introduce a borough wide default limit. The cost of zones could vary considerably
depending on their size and the enforcement measures that are used. The report
quotes a range between £40,000 and £250,000. Southwark had calculated an
average figure of £143,000 per zone and a total of £1.9 to cover the remaining 20
mph zones that it was planning.

The Panel received evidence from Jenny Jones, a Member of the London Assembly.
As a member of its Transport Committee, she had played a leading role in the
“Braking Point” investigation. She reported that each road death cost the economy
approximately £1.5 million. Serious injuries could cost almost as much. Road
casualties disproportionately affected children and people from black and ethnic
minority and deprived communities. There was a general consensus that reducing
speeds to 20 mph saved lives and this included motoring organisations such as the
AA and the RAC. A reduction is speed of only 1 mph could lead to a significant
reduction in road casualties.

She was of the view that having a default 20 mph speed limit made expectations
clearer and simplified the issue. Physical calming measures had found by the
Assembly to be very effective in reducing casualties. A further 900 were planned in
London for future years. The move to default 20 mph speed limits was a logical and
practical progression from this. However, the overall effectiveness of them had not
yet been fully tested although the scheme in Portsmouth had been evaluated. In
Hull, all of the individual zones had been joined together to produce an overall 20
mph speed limit. There was a need for the introduction of such schemes to be
accompanied by widespread public consultation.

Department of Transport advice was that a steady speed could improve traffic flow
and reduce emissions. A 20 mph speed limit could have a small positive effect on
this. There was a lack of research currently about whether lower speed limits had
the potential to get people out of cars, although Hull had seen a huge increase in
cycling following the implementation of its 20 mph scheme.

There were a range of views amongst London boroughs about the potential of
default 20 mph speed limits:

e Eight boroughs had been actively pursuing the option

e Other boroughs felt that further evidence was required on their impact

e Some did not believe that they should be considered and were taking forward
alternative approaches.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 13 of 25



4.7

4.8

4.9

Page 32

Several boroughs were intending to implement 20 mph speed limits on a piecemeal
basis through introducing more 20 mph zones over a period of time until all their
residential streets were covered. Hackney had wanted to extend its 20 mph speed
limit to TfL roads as well, although permission from them would be required. The
Mayor had previously agreed to fund the setting up of pilot 20 mph default speed
limits in two boroughs. Hackney and Southwark had been interested and were
ready to implement this. Hackney were no longer interested but Southwark still
were and a potential agreement had been brokered. The Mayor had been asked for
the funding but this had not yet been forthcoming.

The biggest sticking point had been the attitude of the Police. ACPO advice was not
favourable to default 20 mph limits. The Police did not like road humps and
preferred road narrowing or speed cameras. The Police view was that government
guidance had to be followed and that they could not, in the normal course of events,
enforce 20 mph speed limits. Nevertheless, residents could determine the priorities
for Police Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) and speeding cars were nearly
always amongst the top three concerns. Ms Jones was of the view that the Police
had sufficient resources to pursue speeding issues. There was a feeling that traffic
policing was not proper policing and attempts had been made to cut funding.

The transport research laboratory had shown that there could be more emissions at
20 mph. However, less emissions were produced where traffic moved at a steady
speed. Ms Jones felt that the speed limit should be 20 mph everywhere except for
main roads. In her view, 20 mph speed limits reduced the level of road danger and
delivered significant cost benefits to communities.

Portsmouth

4.10 Portsmouth was the first local authority to introduce a default 20 mph limit on all

residential roads. It has a population of approximately 200,000 which is slightly
smaller than Haringey (circa 225,000). On most of the roads where the speed limit
signs and road markings were installed, the average speeds before installation were
less than or equal to 24 mph. The relatively low speeds on these roads before the
implementation of the scheme were mainly due to the narrow carriageways and on-
street parking that are common within the city, which reduces the effective width. 20
mph signs were also provided on roads with median speeds greater than 24 mph in
order to avoid inconsistency and confusion. These were not accompanied by any
physical calming measures. As this was contrary to the Department for Transport
guidance, special dispensation from the Secretary of State needed to be obtained
before implementation.

4.11 An independent evaluation of the scheme was published by the Department for

Transport in September 2010. The evaluation found that the overall average speed
after the 20 mph speed limits were imposed was 1.3 miles per hour lower than the
average speed beforehand. At sites where the average before speed was greater
than 24 mph, the average speed reduced by 6.3 mph. Despite a reduction in the
number of sites with average speeds above 24 mph, which was 21 before the
schemes implementation, 19 sites were found to still have average speeds between
24 mph and 29 mph after the schemes were implemented. The changes were
regarded as being statistically significant.

Average Traffic speed changes after 20 mph speed limit implementation

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 14 of 25



Page 33

Sector Average Before Average After Speed Change
Speed (mph) Speed (mph) (mph)
Central West 20.2 19.1 -1.1
South East 19.6 18.6 -1.0
Central East 18.5 17.9 -0.6
North East 18.2 16.4 -1.8
South West 18.4 16.9 -1.5
North West 23.9 22.2 -1.7
All Sectors 19.8 18.5 -1.3

412 The analysis showed the total accident reduction was 21% and the number of
casualties fell by 22%. The number of killed or seriously injured (KSI) accidents
increased by 8% and casualties by 6%. However, the total numbers of KSI
accidents were very small and therefore susceptible to variations. These figures
compare against a national reduction in casualty rates of 14% and of 12% in KSI
casualties.

4.13 The evaluation came to the following conclusion:

“early figures suggest that the implementation of the 20 mph Speed Limit scheme
has been associated with reductions in road casualty numbers. The scheme has
reduced average speeds and been well-supported during its first two years of
operation.”

4.14 In summary, the report sates that the effects of implementing the 20 mph Speed
Limit scheme (use of signing alone) were as follows:

1. “The average speed reduction achieved by installing speed limit signs alone is
less than that achieved by the introduction of 20 mph zones partly because 20
mph Speed Limits are implemented where existing speeds are already low;

2.  Within an area-wide application of 20mph sign only limits, those roads with
average speeds higher than 24 mph may benefit from significant speed
reductions, but not to the extent that the 20mph speed limit is self enforcing;

3. Based on the available data for two years after scheme implementation, casualty
benefits greater than the national trend have not been demonstrated”;

Islington

4.15 Islington is London's smallest borough, with a size of six square miles. It has a
population of approximately 200,000. The Council has recently decided to
implement of default 20 mph sped limit for the borough.

4.16 The Panel met with Zahur Khan, Bram Kainth and Michelle Thompson from the
Council. They reported that Islington had completed its programme of setting up 20
mph zones in 2009. It had then been decided to extend 20 mph speed limit to the
remaining 22% of the borough’s roads not covered by zones through the use of
signage alone. The Council’'s Cabinet had made this decision but there was
unanimous cross party support. The Council’'s new administration had re-affirmed
this position.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 15 of 25



417

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

Page 34

There had been strong cross party support for reducing traffic speeds. This had
initially been through the setting up of 20 mph zones. The number of accidents had
gone down from 227 in 2001 to 71 last year following the implementation of them.
The most dangerous streets within the borough had been done first. There normally
had to be an accident before any action could be taken. The approximate cost of an
accident was £80,000. Schemes had to demonstrate to TfL that they were cost
effective. The original plan had been to extend 20 mph zones to every part of the
borough and there had been a programme to do this until 2016 but this had been
built on the assumption of there being continued funding.

The implementation of a default 20 mph speed limit had cost £1 million initially.
However, the Department for Transport (DfT) and the Police had advised that the
signs should all be illuminated and this had added another £600,000 to the cost.
This was contrary to the approach that Portsmouth had adopted with the setting up
of their scheme as the signage used there was not illuminated. The costs of the
scheme came more from excluding particular roads as illuminated repeater signs
were needed where speed limits changed. If signs were not properly illuminated, it
might cause any prosecutions to fail. The DfT had worked closely with Islington on
the implementation of their scheme.

It was doubtful whether the streets that had not been incorporated into 20 mph
zones would have received funding. Residents appeared to generally feel safer and
happier about their area following implementation of a lower speed limit. A traffic
survey would be undertaken to evaluate how well the new scheme worked. This
would use radar technology and be undertaken during the first 18 months.

Reducing traffic speeds could, conversely, reduce journey times through increasing
the capacity of roads. This had been tried on both the M1 and M25 and had shown
to be effective. The issue of whether to put main roads in the scheme was
controversial and would be reconsidered after the scheme had been reviewed. The
Police had generally been supportive. Safer Neighbourhood Teams (SNTs) would
deal with any issues arising from complaints in relation to speeding. The Police had
admitted that they were not even able to enforce the 30 mph speed limit.

They felt that, before implementing a scheme such as this, local authorities needed
to ask themselves what their criterion for success was — whether it was reducing
speed and accidents or increasing the perception of safety or making people feel
happier about their environment. They were of the view that it was not a road safety
issue - traffic calming was the most effective way of addressing this. Although there
was not much evidence available on the effectiveness of default 20 mph speed
limits, that which there was had shown that they made a minimal difference. They
could not recommend a default 20 speed limit as professionals as there was limited
evidence that they would reduce collisions or traffic speed.

However, the lower speed limit could nevertheless deliver some benefits. |t might
make residents feel happier about their area. The lower speed limit could also
possibly make it possible to prosecute people for driving at 29 — 30 mph. Where
default 20 mph speed limits had been implemented, reductions in traffic speed had
been bigger in streets areas where speeds had been comparatively high before
implementation but this might not be sustainable.

It was not possible to say whether the lower speed limit would increase cycling or

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 16 of 25



4.24

4.25

4.26

Page 35

walking. There was also no evidence so far the default 20 mph speed limits led to
a step change in the psychology of drivers. It was nevertheless hoped that
speeding would eventually become as unacceptable as drink driving. If it was
possible to get the Police to enforce 20 mph speed limits, there was a chance that
they might work.

There had been a backlash against speed humps and default 20 speed limits were
probably more popular now. A large scale consultation exercise had been
undertaken before their scheme had been implemented and 25% of the 40,000
people consulted had responded. Two thirds had been favourable. Residents
would not be aware of average traffic speeds in their area so would be unable to
quantify any improvement. The scheme could nevertheless be used to identify
problem areas and help to change mind sets and would not do any active harm.

The decision to introduce the default 20 mph speed limit had been contrary to officer
advice. Members had the right to ignore officer advice but their view had been that
there was no factual evidence to support the policy. However, they had been able to
make the scheme work effectively. Given the choice, officers would prefer to spend
what money was available on where particular problems had been identified. It
would have cost £3 to £3.5 million to put the remaining part of the borough into 20
mph zones. This would have been undertaken in stages and not all at once. It
could not be done now due to the financial climate.

There had been little negative feedback to the introduction of the scheme so far and
there had only been good publicity. However, the lack of complaints from residents
suggested that the policy had been ineffectual. There were some resources
available for enforcement. Although 20 mph speed limits were cheaper to
implement, there was still a significant cost. In the long term, it was possible that it
would lead to a change in culture and mindset. It was noted that much less of
Haringey was currently covered by 20 mph zones so implementing a similar scheme
was likely to be more challenging.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 17 of 25



Page 36

5. Feedback from Community Organisations

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

The Panel received evidence from a number of community and residents
organisations. They also received a written submission from 20’s Plenty.

The view of Rod King, from 20’s Plenty, was that in today’s economic climate, value
for money was very important. A comparison between traditional 20 mph zones and
20 mph limits was therefore an important one. In the past 20 mph zones had been
used to target the streets most requiring speed reduction and in these cases had
usually been effective. However they were expensive. 20’s Plenty had done a
comparison between the use of zones and limits and were of the view that 20mph
speed limits were 7 times more cost effective than zones.

He highlighted the fact that Portsmouth had spent just £1,100 per km for limits
compared to £60,000 per km for physically calmed zones. Comparing £100,000
spent within a community with 50 miles of roads, they had found that 20 mph limits
with signage alone gave better value for money than 20 mph zones. This was
demonstrated by the following:

Option 1: Spending £100,000 on 20mph zones with physical calming; This would
fund one mile of streets with a 20 mph zone with physical calming. Average speed
was likely to drop by 9 mph. As the speed limit on the other 49 miles of roads
remained the same, the average speed reduction across the whole network would
be 0.18 mph.

Option 2: Spending £100,000 on 20mph limits without physical calming; This would
fund 56 miles of streets with a 20mph limit and cover the whole community. The
average speed reduction (based on the results of the Portsmouth evaluation) will be
1.3 mph.

From this, he concluded that 20mph area-wide limits were 7.2 times more cost
effective than physically calmed zones. He stated that there are other benefits from
community-wide limits such as the fact that they:

e Increase the collective ownership of lower speeds where people live.

e Deliver a 20 mph street to most drivers, hence increasing value and
compliance.

e Provide a more consistent approach linked to road usage rather than road
design.

He stated that there are now over 5m people living in Local Authorities who had
adopted a 20 mph speed limit policy for all residential roads. He hoped that
Haringey would be the next to be added to that list.

The Panel also received evidence from Paul Bumstead from the West Green
Residents Association and, in particular, on the DIY Streets Scheme operating in the
neighbourhood. The area was primarily residential in nature with streets that were
often short and narrow and therefore traffic speeds were normally comparatively
low. There were nevertheless some exceptions to this, such as the link between
Lordship Lane and West Green Road formed by Downhills Way and Belmont Road.
The DIY Streets programme was not supportive of physical calming. However,
there was a need for lower speed limits to be self enforcing. Signage and

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 18 of 25



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Page 37

appropriate road markings were preferable as well as being cheaper options.

Evidence was received from Chris Barker from the Sustainable Haringey Network,
Haringey Living Streets and Haringey Federation of Residents Associations.
Experience had shown that schemes enforced by signage alone could bring speeds
down by a little and this approach should therefore be considered as beneficial. As
the 20 mph speed limit became more prevalent, it was possible that there would be
a greater level of observance. Drivers would be more likely to live in an area with
such a limit and therefore become used to it. He felt that, given time, people would
begin to drive slightly more slowly if there was a default 20 mph speed limit. For
example, there was now a greater observance of the 30 mph speed limit then
previously.

However, enforcement was not the most critical issue. Most people ignored the 30
mph speed limit. It was acknowledged that most people disliked speed humps but
streets that appeared to be long and open needed some means of reducing traffic
speed. Entry arches, narrower road sections and chicanes could were all options
that could be used. Vegetation could also be used, such as trees in pots. Such
calming measures were not necessary where streets were narrow. [f signage alone
was found not to work, then physical calming measures could then be considered.
It was acknowledged that enforcement was important but it would not be necessary
for the Police to stop everyone who was exceeding 20 mph — it could be applied
selectively. Speed guns were an excellent idea as were average speed cameras.

Jennifer Bell from Hawthorn Road Residents Association stated that speeding was
often a problem in her area. Nightingale Lane was narrow and motorists often
speeded up after passing through it. She had written to complain about this but the
response she had received had stated that accident rates were low and therefore
there was no immediate need for action. She felt that it should not be necessary to
wait until there was a fatality for action to be taken and that it would be beneficial to
make a cultural change. She acknowledged that it would be difficult to stop “boy
racers” from speeding but there were a lot of other people who were likely to be
more receptive to lower speed limits. She felt that the default speed limit should be
20 mph in residential areas. A lower speed limit would make people feel safer and
increase awareness amongst drivers. Debora Lucarelli, also from Hawthorn Road
Residents Association, felt that the Council needed to take into consideration a
range of different options as there was not a single solution.

David Rennie of the Crescent Road Residents Association felt that psychological
traffic calming, such as trees being placed in close proximity to traffic, could be
effective. Research had shown this to work well. One option that could be used
was to place trees within concrete boxes. These also had the advantage of being
moveable. Chevron parking and chicanes were other options but these could also
result in the loss of parking space, which was not always popular. He drew
attention to the removal of railings and road markings in areas of Kensington and
Chelsea. As well as reducing speeds, these could make streets less cluttered and
save money. Innovative schemes had the potential to work but relied on local
councils being brave enough to adopt them.

Adam Coffman from Haringey Cycling Campaign stated that the SNT in his
neighbourhood, which was Harringay, had been proactive in addressing traffic
issues and used creative means of addressing the issue. However, the enthusiasm
of the Police for addressing speeding was something of a “post code lottery”. He

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 19 of 25



5.12

5.13

Page 38

felt that pressure should be put on the Police to enforce lower speed limits.
Speeding affected everyone and there should be a strong message given out that it
was a serious issue. He noted that the DIY Street project was looking at
alternatives to road humps but he was nevertheless still in favour of them. He felt
that the main issue with road humps was that they were often not well built. The
project was looking at cheap ways to calm traffic and these could be used in other
areas of the borough.

He felt that 20 mph speed limits were beneficial. They built confidence in cyclists.
There was a correlation between low speed limits and the number of cyclists. For
example, Germany and Denmark both had low speed limits and large numbers of
people cycled. In contrast, the default speed limit in Australia was 60 kmh and there
were fewer cyclists. A 20 mph speed default limit for Haringey would be consistent
with the greenest borough strategy and be a brave move by the Council. It could be
promoted in a number of ways such as car stickers and other publicity. In addition,
Council employees could sign pledges to observe the 20 mph speed limit and
Council vehicles required to observe it.

John MacBryde, from Kingsley Place Residents Association and Bus Watch West
Haringey, reported on efforts being made to centralise access to bus services in
Highgate Village. The angled parking that was used in certain areas was only
feasible where there was a 20 mph speed limit. He felt that the Village area would
benefit from a 20 mph speed limit. It was noted that it was possible to have cross
borough arrangements on speed limits so that any issues around borders could be
resolved.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 20 of 25



Page 39

6. The Panel's Conclusions

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

The Panel is of the view that, on balance, there is sufficient evidence to demonstrate
that a default 20 mph speed limit will be of benefit to the borough. However, the
Panel believes that it is important that there are realistic expectations from such a
scheme. There is clear evidence to suggest that it should lead to a reduction in
traffic speeds and causalities. Whilst these are likely to be relatively modest, they
will nevertheless be beneficial. Due to congestion and the narrow nature of some
streets, traffic speeds in many areas may already be relatively low and therefore the
scope for reduction will be limited. For example, the current average speed on ‘A
roads within the borough during peak hours is only 12 mph. In addition, many higher
risk areas are already in 20 mph zones and have already benefited from the
considerable difference that these have made.

A default 20 mph speed limit should nevertheless deliver a number of long term
benefits to the borough and have the potential to provide a more cost effective
approach than the current policy. The potential cost of the current strategy will
ultimately be around £10 million and will take 10 -15 years to complete. This
compares with a potential cost of £600k to £1 million for implementing a default 20
mph speed limit. Even if one uses the £1.6 million cost of the Islington scheme as a
more realistic benchmark, this is still a substantial saving. This could also be
achieved in around two years.

The Panel believes that the introduction of a default 20 mph speed limit has the
potential to lead to a long term change in the behaviour of drivers. A default limit
simplifies the issue of speed limits and makes expectations clearer. Over time,
drivers will become more familiar with the lower speed limit. In addition to driving in
streets with such limits, many will also live in streets with 20 mph limits and therefore
be aware of their potential benefits. The ultimate aim should be to make speeding
as socially unacceptable as drink driving.

In respect of enforcement, the Panel notes that the 30 mph speed limit is generally
not enforced rigorously by the Police due to the resource implications of this. In
such circumstances, it would be unrealistic to expect any great level of enforcement
of a 20 mph speed limit. However, it may increase the likelihood of motorists being
prosecuted for lower speeds than is currently the case e.g. for speeds of 33 — 34
mph in areas with a 20 mph speed limit as opposed to 40 mph where there is a 30
mph speed limit. Where persistent problems do occur, ward panels can make the
issue a priority for their Police Safer Neighbourhood team. Physical calming
measures can be considered as a last resort in areas where problems prove to be
difficult to resolve.

There is clear evidence from Islington and Portsmouth that residents are likely to be
favourable to the introduction of a default 20 mph speed limit. In addition, there
have been very few if no complaints from Islington residents since its introduction.
The Panel is nevertheless of the view that the introduction of any scheme should be
accompanied by widespread consultation and a publicity campaign. The Council
itself can play a key role in promoting compliance through leading by example.
This could be done by ensuring that Council vehicles and, where possible, those of
contractors observe the lower speed limit. In addition, Council vehicles and those of
staff could be used to publicise the speed limits through, for example, bumper
stickers.

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 21 of 25



6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

Page 40

The Panel is of the view that all side roads should be included in the Haringey
scheme. It was noted that much of the costs associated with implementing the
scheme in Islington came from roads that were not included as it is necessary to
install signs in all places where there is a change of speed limit. There will
nevertheless still be a need for some signs to be located in areas within the areas
where the 20 mph speed limit applies.

The Panel is of the view that the Council should work with Transport for London to
also set up a pilot 20 mph speed limit in a town centre. This should be subject to
monitoring and evaluation and, if successful, extended to suitable other town
centres.

The risks associated from the introduction of a default 20 mph speed limit would
appear to be relatively small. The experience from both Islington and Portsmouth
has been that the schemes have been well supported and have not lead to any
major problems. The main risks associated with such a scheme would seem to be
that it might be ineffectual and raise unrealistic expectations. However, a realistic
approach to the likely outcomes may assist in reducing the potential for this.

The Panel notes that the body of evidence on the effectiveness of 20 mph speed
limits is still fairly limited. It is therefore of the view that any Haringey scheme
should be carefully monitored and evaluated so that progress can be mapped and
the borough can contribute to the body of evidence on the issue. In addition, it
could also be used to identify any problems that may arise where further action may
be need to be considered, such as the installation of physical calming measures.

Recommendations:

That the Council undertake a borough wide consultation process on the proposal to
establish a default borough wide 20 mph speed limit for all side roads and the
establishment, in consultation with TfL, of a pilot 20 mph speed limit in a suitable town
centre.

That such a scheme be financed with the use of appropriate LIP funding.

That a comprehensive publicity and promotional campaign be developed for the
scheme to encourage compliance.

That Council vehicles and those of contractors be specifically required to comply with
the new speed limit.

That such a scheme be subject to monitoring and evaluation.
That where persistent problems are identified that are not possible to resolve, officers

work with local residents to identify creative and cost effective solutions such as
psychological traffic calming.

Appendix A

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 22 of 25




Page 41

Participants in the review:

Tony Kennedy, Group Manager for Transport Policy and Projects, Urban Environment
Directorate.

Inspector Mark Long, Police Safer Transport Team
PC Matin Young, North East Area Traffic Police.
Jenny Jones, London Assembly Transport Committee

Richard Berry, Scrutiny Manager, London Assembly

Zahur Khan, Head of Traffic and Engineering Services (Public Realm), Environment and
Regeneration, Islington Council

Bram Kainth Service Director (Public Realm), Environment & Regeneration Department,
Islington Council

Michelle Thompson, Environment & Regeneration Department, Islington Council
Paul Bumstead, West Green Residents Association.

Chris Barker. Sustainable Haringey Network, Haringey Living Streets and Haringey
Federation of Residents Associations

Jennifer Bell, Hawthorn Road Residents Association
Debora Lucarelli, Hawthorn Road Residents Association
David Rennie, Crescent Road Residents Association
Adam Coffman, Haringey Cycling Campaign

John MacBryde, Kingsley Place Residents Association and Bus Watch West Haringey

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 23 of 25



Page 42

Appendix B
Documents referred to in the preparation of this review report:

Interim Evaluation of the Implementation of 20 mph Speed Limits in Portsmouth
Final Report — Atkins (September 2010)

Interim Evaluation of the Implementation of 20 mph Speed Limits in Portsmouth —
Summary Report

Braking point; 20mph speed limits in London - London Assembly Transport Committee
(April 2009)

Introduction of 20mph Speed Limits — Report to Colchester Borough Council Policy
Development and Review Panel, 1 September 2010

Introduction Of 20mph Zones - Report of Regeneration And Employment Review
Committee, Islington Council, March 2011

Report of the 20 mph Speed Limits/Zones Scrutiny Panel, Brighton and Hove City Council,
May 2010

Roads; Speed Limits — House of Commons Standard Note (11 October 2011)

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 24 of 25



Page 43

(J

INVESTOR IX PFEOMLE

Scrutiny Review — 20 mph Speed Limit Page 25 of 25



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Overview and Scrutiny Committee On 28" March 2011

Report Title: Scrutiny Review of the Haringey Guarantee

Report of: Councillor Basu, Chair of the review panel

Contact Officer : Melanie Ponomarenko, Principal Scrutiny Support Officer

Email: Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk

Tel: 0208 489 2933

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision]

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

1.1. That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee approve the recommendations laid
out in the attached report.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. N/A

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1.This review links with the Sustainable Community Strategy Outcomes of:
e Economic vitality shared by all, specifically:
e Maximise income
¢ Increase skills and educational achievement.
e Healthier people with a better quality of life, specifically:
e Tackle health inequalities




Page 46

. Recommendations

4.1.Review recommendations are laid out in the attached report.

. Reason for recommendation(s)
5.1.Reasons for the recommendations laid out in the main report are covered within
the main body of the attached report.

. Other options considered
6.1.N/A

. Summary

7.1.The Haringey Guarantee, established in 2006, is the council’s strategic approach
to tackling worklessness in the borough and is the main vehicle for delivering the
Local Area Agreements around worklessness in Haringey.

7.2. The Haringey Guarantee has been funded through the Area Based Grant which
no longer exists.

7.3.The Government is introducing a new ‘Work Programme’ which will replace all
current pathways into work and will be contracted from the Department of Work
and Pensions to Prime Contractors, who can then sub-contract some of this work
locally. The Haringey Guarantee is hoping to become a sub-contactor under the
Work Programme.

7.4.During the course of the review Panel Members spoke to a number of partners,
providers and stakeholders for the Haringey Guarantee in order to make the
recommendations as outlines below. The panel hopes that these
recommendations add value to the work already being undertaken in Haringey
around reducing worklessness and also that they assist in taking this work, and
the work of the Haringey Guarantee forward under the Work Programme.

7.5.Key findings include:
e There is a need to focus on 18-24 year olds in any local programme around
worklessness.
e Greater engagement is needed with local businesses to highlight the Haringey
Guarantee and get local jobs for local people.
e There is a challenge in moving away from public sector jobs to private sector
jobs.




Page 47

e The holistic approach used by the Haringey Guarantee projects is beneficial to
local residents.

e Commissioning for outcomes should be continued where possible, alongside
the Work Programme output measures (should the Haringey Guarantee
become a sub-contractor).

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1. This report considers the outcomes of a review of the Haringey Guarantee by a
panel of Members from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The extent to
which the panel’s recommendations can be adopted is dependent both on the
Council’s success in being nominated as a ‘subcontractor’ under the
Department of Works and Pensions new Work Programme and the outcome of
the Council’s own review of resources in this area.

8.2. The Haringey Guarantee was established in 2006 and is the council’s strategic
approach to tackling worklessness in the borough; it is the main vehicle for
delivering the Local Area Agreements around worklessness in Haringey.

8.3.1n 2010-11 the Working Neighbourhoods Fund (an element of the Area Based
Grants) was used to fund both the Haringey Guarantee (£660,703) and an in-
house project, Families into Work (£322,500). The Haringey Guarantee budget
was used to commission other projects through the voluntary sector and other
providers, including Northumberland Park Community School and Positive
Employment.

8.4.As a result of the radical changes in government grant funding, which includes
the abolition of Working Neighbourhood Funding and Area Based Grants, the
Council is currently reviewing those projects previously financed through these
funding streams with a view to re-prioritising future investment from a
significantly reduced budget. As a first step the in-house project teams for
Families into Work and Employment Action Network (which is currently funded
by the London Development Agency) will be merged and transition funding of
£500k has been allocated to Haringey Guarantee for 2011/12 whilst the review
process is completed. This transition funding is an allocation of Performance
Reward Grant received in 2010-11 and carried forward into 2011-12.

8.5. From summer 2011 the Government is introducing a new ‘Work Programme’
which will replace all current mainstream welfare to work programmes and will
be contracted from the Department of Work and Pensions to Prime Contractors,
who can then sub-contract some of this work locally. The Haringey Guarantee
is hoping to become a sub-contactor under the Work Programme. However, if
the Council is not successful then the Haringey Guarantee will become a greatly
reduced service.

8.6. The success of the bid for subcontract status will therefore shape the outcome
of the Council’s own review into the allocation of resources. Once the review
process has been concluded recommendations on relative priorities and
associated funding proposals will be presented to Cabinet for consideration.

8.7.The panel’s review includes an economic impact assessment of two Haringey
Guarantee projects (Women Like Us and 5E) in 2009-10. Whilst recognising the
difficulty in accurately evaluating the success of such projects the report




Page 48

concludes that there were measurable financial benefits that flowed from the
investment these projects.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1. The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
There are no specific comments on the recommendations set out in the
appended review report. The Council’s powers to undertake the steps outlined
are those included within Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2000 to promote
or improve the economic and social well being of persons resident in their area.

10. Service Financial comments

As above

11. Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]
11.1. N/A

12. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

12.1. In Feb 2011, 6.9% (10,159) of the working age population were claiming Job
Seekers Allowance (JSA). This includes 7.9% of all working age males and 4.7%
of working age females. All three rates are the third highest in London.

12.2. Location —In Feb 2011, 11.6% (1026) of the working age population in
Northumberland Park were claiming JSA. This is the highest ward in London.

12.3. Age —In Feb 2011, 10.4% of all 20-24 year olds in Haringey are claiming JSA.
This is the highest proportion for all the 5 year age bands.

12.4. Disability — In August 2011, 1.71% (2660) of the working age population were
claiming Employment and Support Allowance (ESA). This is the 7th highest
proportion in London.

12.5. Ethnicity — The annual population survey states the unemployment rate for
Haringey’s ethnic minority groups was 17.2% (June 2009 — July 2010). This is
the 4th highest rate in London.

11 Consultation

11.2 Throughout the scrutiny review process views and evidence was
considered from Council departments, NHS Haringey, Northumberland Park
Community School, Families into Work, Job Centre Plus, Reed in Partnership,




Page 49

College of North East London, North London Partnership Consortium Ltd,
Positive Employment, Women Like Us, ECORYS and Ecotec.

12 Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

12.2 Please see Contents page in main report for appendices

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Initial Work and Skills Plan, Haringey Council, April 2010

Framework agreement for the provision of employment related support services,
Department for Work and Pensions

Haringey Guarantee Service Standards, Haringey Council

The Coalition: Our programme for Government, Cabinet Office, 2010
http://www.dwp.gov.uk/policy/welfare-reform

Sustainable Community Strategy, Haringey Council, 2007-2016

The Work Programme, Questions and Answers, DWP, 2010

London Borough of Haringey, Integrated Youth Support Management Information
Report, January 2011.

The Cost of Exclusions: Counting the cost of youth disadvantage in the UK, Prince’s
Trust, 2010

Mid Year Estimates, Office of National Statistics, 2009
http://www.dwp.gov.uk/policy/welfare-reform/
http://www.dwp.gov.uk/policy/welfare %2Dreform/pathways%2Dto%2Dwork/




Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Haringey Council

Scrutiny Review of the Haringey
Guarantee

Percentage of working age population claiming Job Seekers Allowance (JSA)
Haringey Super Output Areas
February 2011

Proportion is calculated using working age population statistics
from the 2009 Mid Year Estimates

Northumberland|
White Hart Lane Rark

Bounds Green

Woodside

Alexandra

. Seven Sisters
Highgate Stroud

Green

% of working age population
claiming JSA

M 138t018

(1)
B 9510137 (23)

Source: ONS
Produced by Policy and Performance 52to 9.4 (73)
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved LBH (100019199) (2011) 09to 5.1 (47)

A REVIEW BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

March 2011

www.haringey.qgov.uk




Chair’s Foreword

| would like to thank all of those who took time to contribute to this extremely interesting
review. On behalf of the panel | would particularly like to thank those who provide
invaluable support to residents of Haringey who need support to access employment
opportunities.

| hope that the recommendations made in this report are able to assist the Haringey
Guarantee in continuing its work, in ever changing times and under the forthcoming
Work Programme.

i

Clir Dhiren Basu

Panel Membership:

ClIr David Browne
Clir Pat Egan

Cllr David Schmitz
CllIr Juliet Solomon
Clir Paul Strang

For further information: Melanie Ponomarenko
Principal Scrutiny Support Officer
Overview & Scrutiny
7" Floor River Park House
High Road
Wood Green N22 4HQ
Tel: 020 8489 2933
Email: Melanie.Ponomarenko@haringey.gov.uk

Page 2 of 42




EXEeCULiVE SUMMaArY ... .o e Page 4
Recommendations. ... ... Page 5
The Haringey Guarantee............cooiiniiiii e Page 6
INtrOAUCTION. ... Page 7
POlICY CONtEXt. ... i Page 7
FINAINGS . .o Page 8
Appendices

Appendix A — Contributors to the review................oooiiiii, Page 21
Appendix B — Written submission from ECORYS on Families in Work......... Page 22
Appendix C — Written submission from Women Like Us........................... Page 26

Appendix D — Written submission from North London Partnership
Consortium Ltd...Page 27

Appendix E — Haringey Guarantee: Economic Impact Assessment............. Page 33

Appendix F — Haringey Guarantee: Effectiveness and Value for Money
(see separate document)

Page 3 of 42




Executive Summary

The Haringey Guarantee, established in 2006, is the council’s strategic approach to
tackling worklessness in the borough and is the main vehicle for delivering the Local
Area Agreements around worklessness in Haringey.

The Haringey Guarantee has been funded through the Area Based Grant which no
longer exists.

The Government is introducing a new ‘Work Programme’ which will replace all current
pathways into work and will be contracted from the Department of Work and Pensions
to Prime Contractors, who can then sub-contract some of this work locally. The
Haringey Guarantee is hoping to become a sub-contactor under the Work Programme.

During the course of the review Panel Members spoke to a number of partners,
providers and stakeholders for the Haringey Guarantee in order to make the
recommendations as outlines below. The panel hopes that these recommendations
add value to the work already being undertaken in Haringey around reducing
worklessness and also that they assist in taking this work, and the work of the Haringey
Guarantee forward under the Work Programme.

Key findings include:

e There is a need to focus on 18-24 year olds in any local programme around
worklessness.

e Greater engagement is needed with local businesses to highlight the Haringey
Guarantee and get local jobs for local people.

e There is a challenge in moving away from public sector jobs to private sector
jobs.

e The holistic approach used by the Haringey Guarantee projects is beneficial to
local residents.

e Commissioning for outcomes should be continued where possible, alongside the
Work Programme output measures (should the Haringey Guarantee become a
sub-contractor).

Page 4 of 42




Recommendations

18-24 Year olds
1. 18-24 Year olds should be mainstreamed in all programmes aimed at tackling
worklessness in the borough.

Work with Local Businesses
2. Haringey Council should continue to regenerate Tottenham and lift its profile in
order to facilitate a positive perception of N17.

3. The Haringey Guarantee should re-visit and build on the work undertaken during
the initial commissioning of the Haringey Guarantee in order to actively engage
with local businesses, small business federations and trader associations to:

e Gain an understanding in the skill set they are looking for in potential
employees.
e Promote the Haringey Guarantee brand.

Work to reduce the perceived stigma of people with mental health needs and

those who have been on Incapacity Benefit.

Work to reduce the perceived stigma of N17.

Get local businesses to sign up to the ‘Job ready’ Haringey Guarantee stamp.

Encourage the recruitment of local people in local jobs.

Identify opportunities for apprenticeships.

4. Work should be undertaken, to identify who our local big employers are outside
the public sector. These employers should be actively encouraged to recruit
local residents for local jobs.

Geographical Barriers
5. Full Council/Cabinet to lobby the Greater London Authority through the new
Local Enterprise Partnership to consider ways to overcome geographical
barriers, both in terms of financial barriers and resident perceptions of travelling
for work.

6. Where possible and practical the Haringey Guarantee should build travel
confidence training in its support package.

Haringey Guarantee projects
7. That Full Council recognises that worklessness is not an individual issue but a
household issue and continues to support the holistic approach which has been
introduced by Haringey Guarantee projects such as Families into Work.

8. Consideration to be given to ways in which the council can support the
continuation of this holistic approach and where resources allow replicate
principles of Families into Work model in other areas where this may add value.

Meganexus
9. That Meganexus’ capabilities are effectively and fully utilised by all providers

under the Haringey Guarantee.

Future of the Haringey Guarantee
10. That the qualitative outcomes of any Haringey Guarantee project are given equal
weighting to quantitative outcomes.

Page 5 of 42




PaXl =Y A
AV

loVal
uyu

11.Haringey Council should continue to support the Haringey Guarantee so that all
of those who need support get it and not just those who fall into the Work
Programme Customer Groups.

12.That the Haringey Guarantees continues with it's flexible approach in order to
shape itself for the new Work Programme whilst continuing to support the most
vulnerable into work.

The Haringey Guarantee

1. What is the Haringey Guarantee?

1.1. The Haringey Guarantee, established in 2006, is the council’s strategic approach
to tackling worklessness in the borough and is the main vehicle for delivering the
Local Area Agreements around worklessness in Haringey. An initial aim of the
Haringey Guarantee was to bring all employment and skills projects running across
the borough together as a new strategic approach with 6 streamlined and focused
projects, commissioned based on outcomes.

1.1.1. Prior to 2006 there was a number of projects running but making a
negligible difference to unemployment in the borough.

1.2.  Some examples of the Haringey Guarantee projects included:
Working closely with the NHS e.g. Working for Health project
Working with Northumberland Community School to focus on those people who
were at risk of NEET (Not in Employment, Education or Training). This project
supported Support Workers to work with 40 children away from the every day
class room environment.
e Out of the 40 pupils — 38 went onto 6" Form or into employment.

N.b. “The definition of worklessness is wider than referring to unemployment. Whereas
unemployment is a term that captures people who are actively seeking work or have
sought work within a specified period of time, worklessness is a term that also captures
people that are not actively seeking but would like to find work."”

1.3. “The Haringey Guarantee works with employers, schools and colleges, skills
training providers, employment services and local communities to deliver:

e Jobs for unemployed local people who already have skills to a level required
by employers

e Jobs for local people with relevant skills following completion of training
courses and/or work placements

e Routes into structured, relevant, training and education for local young people
(including under 16’s).

e Support for local businesses by providing a local committed and skilled
workforce.

1.4. The Haringey guarantee is offered in three parts:

1 Initial Work and Skills Plan, Haringey Council, April 2010

Page 6 of 42




e That our local residents will receive high quality information, advice and
guidance, tailored education and training, and guaranteed interviews for job
opportunities.

e That delivery partners and providers will deliver high quality, focused and
professional services to jobseekers and employers.

e That we will produce committed trained workers to meet recruitment and skills
needs of local businesses.?”

Introduction

2. The Panel is aware that the recommendations made in this report are done so
within the context of an ever changing environment and that there is a risk of none of
the Prime Contractors who have offered the Haringey Guarantee a sub-contract being
successful. However, the Panel hopes that the recommendations made will assist in
the provision of support for residents of the borough.

2.1. ltis important to note that the Work Programme is a mandatory programme and
as such providers (including the Haringey Guarantee) will have responsibility for
ensuring that participants comply with the conditionality imposed on them. As with
other programmes of this nature failure to comply with these conditions can lead to
participants being sanctioned through loss of benefits. Recommendations of this
report are made with this in mind.

Policy Context
. National Context

3.1. The Government believes that the current system is too complex and work
incentives are poor®. It has therefore committed to introducing a ‘Work Programme’
to replace existing employment programmes (for example, Pathways to Work) and
aims to deliver comprehensive support to help longer-term benefit customers into
work*.

3.2. Early on the Coalition Government announced plans for radical reform of the
welfare to work system and the implementation of The Work Programme. The Work
Programme will be an integrated package of support providing personalised help for
people who find themselves out of work based on need rather than benefit claimed.

3.3. The Government plans to set up a new contracting vehicle for the delivery of the
Work Programme - a ‘Framework Agreement’. The Government anticipates that the
Framework arrangement will enable them to call on the services of providers which
they have ‘pre-qualified’ as being capable of delivering the services which they
believe will be needed over the coming years. The framework covers eleven ‘lots’,
one of which is London and the government envisages that there will be a number of
providers on each lot.

3.4. For delivery of London employment services there will be between 3-8 contracts,
however each provider must show that it has the capacity to deliver across the
whole of London (even though it may only be delivering to 1/8).

® Haringey Guarantee Service Standards, Haringey Council
3 http://www.dwp.gov.uk/policy/welfare-reform/
4 http://www.dwp.gov.uk/policy/welfare%2Dreform/pathways%2Dto%2Dwork/

Page 7 of 42




a 59
(AW}

loVal
uyu

3.5. The intention of the new approach is to put the financial risk onto the Prime
Contractor.

3.6. It is estimated that the annual saving to the treasury when someone is in
employment/off benefits is £9,000. This saving would be used to pay the provider
once a person has been in sustained employment. Out of the £9,000, under the
Work Programme, it is estimated that £5,000 would be spent getting a person into
employment, £2,000 would be given to the provider and the Government would save
£2,000.

3.7. Under welfare reform changes when someone who is receiving Incapacity
Benefit (IB) is reassessed by a physician they will either be migrated onto
Employment Support Allowance (ESA) or moved onto Job Seekers Allowance
(JSA). There is an appeals process, however it is expected that high numbers of
people will be moved onto JSA. There is concern about people being put onto JSA
who are not ready for it, particularly as the kind of support being provided to people
on IB would stop as well as the continued support being provided to people once
they do move into employment. There is concern that people will ultimately drop out
of work again.

4, 18-24 Year olds

4.1.Educational success has a dramatic impact on a person's quality of life and
wellbeing. A strong positive relationship exists between education and health
outcomes whether measured by death rates (mortality), illness (morbidity), health
behaviours or health knowledge®. Poor educational attainment can also keep
families excluded, as it has a pivotal role in the intergenerational transmission of
social exclusion.

4.2.The panel heard from the Principal of the College of North East London who
expressed concern about young people and their future prospects given the
current economic situation. The panel heard that if people have not been
successful in employment by the time they are 25 years of age then they are
highly likely to become long term unemployed and subsequently are at increased
risk of becoming the next wave of inter-generational workless.

4.3.This is of particular relevance to a borough such as Haringey where 18-24 year
olds currently make up 9.1%6 of the population, and thus has the potential to
have significant financial implications for local services in later years.

4.4.A recent report by the Prince’s Trust’ drew the following conclusions:

e Annual cost of a young jobseeker on the economy is £5,400 (however, this can
be up to £16,000 depending on circumstances).

e “The cost to the Exchequer of youth unemployment and inactivity is £22 million
per week in JSA.

® Institute of Public Health, Ireland
® Mid Year Estimates, Office of National Statistics, 2009
" The Cost of Exclusions: Counting the cost of youth disadvantage in the UK, Prince’s Trust, 2010

Page 8 of 42




Page-59

¢ A conservative estimate of the productivity loss to the economy would be around
this amount again. An upper estimate is £133 million a week®”.

e “psychological scarring’ due to unemployment can leave young people at risk of
lower happiness and poorer health™.

e “youth unemployment imposes a wage scar on individuals in the order of 12-15
per cent at the age of 42”'°

4.5.The panel noted that those Not in Education Employment or Training (NEET) has
decreased in the borough in recent years but the challenge preventing this from
going up is going to increase given the current economic climate and reduction of
job opportunities.
16 to 18 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEET)

Haringey wards
January 2011

—

Northumberland|Parki
Green| ) \White|Hart|llane!
Woodside

Alexandra

Nottenham
Hale:

\West{Green Sl ia e

iottenham!

Green|
<;§ Crouch End \\ AL smfi?//
. AN _~_~Stroud TS
Highgat h \
ighgate \j\ o x Green e —
I . )/
|— i S \W
—~ S N
\\/ \\
\\ Total NEETS
) M 211026 (1
M 161020 (8

)
)
Produced by Policy and Performance [ 11t015 (3)
© Crown copyright. All rights reserved LBH (100019199) (2010) [] 5t010 (7)

4.6.The importance of preparation and support for young people, for example
teaching them about the recruitment process and supporting them when they are
in employment to ensure they keep the job was noted by the panel as well as the
need to get commitment for local apprenticeships (which the panel notes is part
of the forthcoming Work Programme).

The panel recommends that:
18-24 Year olds should be mainstreamed in all programmes aimed at tackling
worklessness in the borough.

5. Employment and Health

5.1.Employment is one of the most important determinants of health. Having a job or
an occupation is an important determinant of self-esteem. It provides a vital link

® The Cost of Exclusions: Counting the cost of youth disadvantage in the UK, Prince’s Trust, 2010, page 9
“ “, page 24
“, page 24

10 «

Page 9 of 42




a AN
\W AV}

loVal
uyu

between the individual and society and enables people to contribute to society
and achieve personal fulflment. The World Health Organisation identifies a
number of ways in which employment benefits mental health. These include the
provision of structured time, social contact and satisfaction arising from
involvement in a collective effort.

5.2. The Panel heard that approximately 60% of people supported by Reed in
Partnership have mental health needs. Whilst this is not necessarily the main
reason why they are not working/in receipt of health related benefits. Once
someone has been out of work for an extended period they may begin to feel
isolated and depressed which is an additional health need from why they are
originally out of work. This is applicable to a broad spectrum of age groups.

5.3.The panel also heard that any discrimination around employment opportunities
tends to be weighted towards people with mental health needs and employers
perception of these mental health needs, as well as of those who have been on

Incapacity benefit longer term. A key challenge is finding employers who are

willing to employee people who have been receiving benefits. The panel

therefore felt that there is work to do around education employers on mental
health needs to ensure people with mental health needs are given an equal
opportunity of finding work.

5.3.1. Approximately 75% of those on Incapacity Benefit in Haringey have been
on this benefit for 2 years or more. Statistically, people who have been on
Incapacity Benefit for 2 years or more are more likely to die than to return
work.

5.4.The panel noted concern over the fact that prevention is the first area to suffer in
times of budgetary constraint. This is not cost effective and will mean that further
down the line more money is needed at the acute end.
Please see below for a recommendation relating to this area.

6. Work with Local Businesses

6.1. The majority of job placements for Haringey Guarantee participants have been in
the retail and public sector. The panel heard from a number of stakeholders
about the challenge for the Haringey Guarantee of moving from a public sector
focus to a private sector focus, in order to access job opportunities for residents
particularly due to the contraction of the public sector. The panel noted that there
is a need to link up more with the private sector and also engage with local
employers who tend to view themselves as London based as opposed to
Haringey based, and subsequently focus on a wider geographic area than
Haringey when recruiting staff.

6.2.The panel also noted anecdotal evidence with regards to a business based in
N17 who pay a premium to staff from outside of the area in order to encourage
them to apply for the jobs rather than employ residents from N17 itself due to the
negative perception sometimes associated with the area. The panel felt that
should this be the case then it is an area which should directly be addressed with
local companies and felt that the Haringey Guarantee would be an ideal vehicle
for this due to its pool of job-ready applicants.

6.3.The panel heard of initial work undertaken by the Haringey Guarantee with local
businesses in order to get them to sign up to the principles of the Haringey

Page 10 of 42




Guarantee and felt that more work could be done in this area. The panel
recognises that there are resource implications due to Council restructuring, but
is however hopeful that should the Haringey Guarantee be successful in securing
a sub-contract this work could be supported by a new Employer Engagement
post.

6.4.Further to this the panel discussed the advantages of developing a Haringey
Guarantee ‘job ready’ stamp which could be put on the Curriculum Vitaes of
those who have participated in the programme and would show that the person
has completed a training and support programme and that they come with a
recommendation from the Haringey Guarantee. The panel felt that this would
enable Haringey Guarantee participants to stand out from other potential
employees.

6.5.As a way of ensuring that local businesses are fully engaged with the ‘job ready’
stamp the panel felt that it would be beneficial to talk to local businesses and find
out what key skills they would look for a potential employee to have. The
Haringey Guarantee could then ensure that these are covered in any support
programme, giving the local business confidence that the prospective employee
comes with the skill set.

6.6.The panel noted the comment by ECORYS that “there is much which can be
done to improve the overall visibility of the Haringey Guarantee brand, to raise
the profile of the programme amongst its target group. 77 percent of participants
were not aware of the programme before they accessed support”."

The Panel recommends:

Haringey Council should continue to regenerate Tottenham and lift its profile in order
to facilitate a positive perception of N17.

The Haringey Guarantee should re-visit and build on the work undertaken during the
initial commissioning of the Haringey Guarantee in order to actively engage with local
businesses, small business federations and trader associations to:
e Gain an understanding in the skill set they are looking for in potential
employees.
e Promote the Haringey Guarantee brand.
e Work to reduce the perceived stigma of people with mental health needs
and those who have been on Incapacity Benefit.
e Work to reduce the perceived stigma of N17.
e Get local businesses to sign up to the ‘Job ready’ Haringey Guarantee
stamp.
e Encourage the recruitment of local people in local jobs.
¢ |dentify opportunities for apprenticeships.

Work should be undertaken, to identify who our local big employers are outside the
public sector. These employers should be actively encouraged to recruit local
residents for local jobs.

" ECORYS submission to the Haringey Guarantee Panel
Page 11 of 42




a Rfk2
\ W J ==

loVal
uyu

7. Geographical Barriers

7.1.The panel heard evidence from a wide range of stakeholders with regards to the
geographical barriers faced when trying to support people into work. This is
particularly pertinent in the East of the borough. This included evidence heard at
a visit to the Families into Work project where the panel heard that there is a
challenge in encouraging people to work outside of their immediate area, the idea
of travelling even across the borough alien to some families. There are also
challenges such as travel costs and gang/post-code culture for younger people.
The panel feels that excursions for young people, such as taking them into
central London as undertaken by the Families into Work project, where they have
often never been, is beneficial in beginning to break down these barriers.

7.2.The panel heard that the South of Haringey is the key to employment
opportunities for Haringey residents for example, Camden and noted the need to
not only look within Haringey boundaries for job creation and opportunities,
particularly as the borough has changed in terms of no longer being an industrial
borough. The panel felt that ‘Local’ needs to mean ‘London Sub-regional’.

7.3.Under the Work Programme, Haringey is categorised as being in the West
London area. This area incorporates boroughs such as Islington, Westminster,
Kensington and Chelsea. It is hoped that this will open up job opportunities in the
future for the residents of Haringey. However, to enable residents to fully take
advantage of these opportunities there is work to be done in widening resident’s
geographic boundaries.

The panel recommends that:

Full Council/Cabinet should lobby the Greater London Authority through the new
Local Enterprise Partnership to consider ways to overcome geographical barriers,
both in terms of financial barriers and resident perceptions of travelling for work.

Where possible and practical the Haringey Guarantee should build travel
confidence training in its support package.

8. Haringey Guarantee projects

8.1.Members of the panel visited Families into Work, Northumberland Park
Community School and Positive Employment during the course of the review and
also heard from the North London Partnership Consortium Ltd; all of which have
been commissioned by the Haringey Guarantee.

8.2.Families into Work

8.2.1. A family dimension to the Haringey Guarantee was devised to consider
the impact of a person’s family as a barrier to employment e.g. cultural and
generational worklessness, health, housing, alcohol, drugs etc. ‘Families
into Work” was set up with a team based in Northumberland Park. This
project made a commitment to see everyone of working age in a family
within 6 weeks. The project offers tailored support in return for agreed
actions from family members.

Page 12 of 42




a R
UJ

oVal
uyu

8.2.2. The Panel felt that Families into Work is an impressive project which has
engaged over 140 families, above their target number of 100 families.

8.2.3. The project works intensively with families furthest away from employment
and assists them in overcoming a range of barriers back into work. The
panel were impressed with the holistic approach of the project and the way
in which it works around the family to consider aspirations rather than just
trying to fit a person to a job role.

8.2.4. The panel also noted that the families being worked with have a huge
range of barriers, including knowledge, experience, skills, understanding of
the job market, lack of role models, child care, education etc. The panel
noted the high level of dedication and enthusiasm of the staff and were
impressed with the wide ranging, complicated and labour intensive support
provided to each family whilst being able to build strong and trusting
relationships with those being supported over a long period.

8.2.5. The panel felt that the model used by Families into Work could benefit a
number of other areas in the borough and feels that the project is an
example of good practice which should be shared widely. The panel noted
that this is a unique project nationally and feels that the positive outcomes of
the project should be disseminated widely nationally as best practice.

8.2.6. The panel noted the lack of certainty for the future of the project with
concern. The panel were also greatly concerned about the gap in funding
from March 2011 to September 2011 should the project secure funding
under the forthcoming Work Programme.

8.3.The Northumberland Park Community School project

8.3.1. The Northumberland Park Community School project works with 40
students per year who are at risk of becoming NEET (Not in Education,
Employment or Training). The panel noted that as well as supporting this
number of students annually the staff are also supporting the 40 students
from the preceding year as well as having an ‘open door policy’ for other
students who have been supported in the past.

8.3.2. The panel were again impressed with the dedication and persistence of
the staff who offer systematic mentoring in a very personalised way to the
students on the project. The staff had gained the trust of the young people
and in turn the young people had begun engaging in education and training.
The panel was also interested to note that the young people each spoke of
having to break away from their circle of friends in order to achieve this.

8.3.3. During the visit Members of the panel spoke to a number of young people
who have participated in the project and were impressed with the turn-
around of the young people’s lives which they heard. The young people had
gone from either not attending school or being extremely disruptive at school
to getting qualifications and started college courses. It was also noted from
the young people that the support they had received had a positive impact
on their home lives.

Page 13 of 42




8.3.4. The panel again noted with concern the uncertain funding, both long term
and in the shorter term for the project.

8.4.Positive Employment

8.4.1. Positive Employment is a job brokerage organisation which receives
referrals from the Haringey Guarantee, Job Centre Plus and word of mouth.

8.4.2. As well as helping people to find work Positive Employment also walks
people through the process into sustained work. For example, interview
techniques, what to ask, coaching, follow up phone calls, provision of
references etc, they also call people when a job becomes available.

8.4.3. The panel was again impressed with the dedication of the staff and the
high level of support provided to people who use the facilities.

8.4.4. The panel noted with concern the uncertain funding of the project.

8.5.The panel feels that the successes of current projects is that it is not solely
focused on getting people into work but about supporting them into sustained
work and giving them the skills. Overall the panel was extremely impressed with
the staff met at projects and feel that they add a lot to the projects successes.

8.6.At the same time the panel noted the comment by ECORYS that “here is
potentially a need to raise the profile of the Families into Work project and further
establish its identity as a unique whole family approach to worklessness. Project
staff and partners feel that Families into Work may not stand out sufficiently as
on%of several programmes that Jobcentre Plus advisers could refer beneficiaries
to. "

The Panel recommends that:

That Full Council recognises that worklessness is not an individual issue but a
household issue and continues to support the holistic approach which has been
introduced by Haringey Guarantee projects such as Families into Work.

Consideration to be given to ways in which the council can support the
continuation of this holistic approach and where resources allow replicate
principles of Families into Work model in other areas where this may add value.

9. Meganexus

9.1.Meganexus is a web based software system used by the Haringey Guarantee to
store information on Haringey Guarantee participants. Information provided by
participants on the Haringey Guarantee is transferred to Meganexus ensuring a
central record is held. The information is used for performance management of
providers (providers only get paid once they have input all of the relevant data
and this has then been verified by the external monitoring agency, GLE) and also
for monitoring service users progress into sustained employment.

'2 ECORYS submission to the Haringey Guarantee Panel
Page 14 of 42




9.2.Referrals between projects can also be done via the software ensuring that
participants do not have to give the same information over and again to a variety
of providers.

9.3.The direction of travel under the Work Programme is likely to be more of a move
towards increased use of the system, for example allowing service users to log
onto the system to view their details, store papers e.g. CVs.

The panel recommends that:

That Meganexus’ capabilities are effectively and fully utilised by all providers under
the Haringey Guarantee.

10.Future of the Haringey Guarantee

10.1. The panel feels that one of the strongest characteristics of the Haringey
Guarantee is that they focus on those who are furthest away from the job market
and most in need of intensive support and provide this for them. The panel heard
from Reed in Partnership who stated that it often takes 6-12 months to get
someone into work whilst providing them with support and can be providing
further support to people overall for anything between 5 months and two years
after this time.

10.2. The panel has concerns that under the Work Programme this level of
support for individuals furthest away from the job market will cease, with Prime
Contractors focused on quantitative aspects, e.g. number in employment and
sustained employment as opposed to the qualitative aspects which are also
focused on by the Haringey Guarantee.

10.3. The panel supports the approach taken by the Haringey Guarantee
around commissioning projects to deliver on pre-agreed outcomes and not on
process targets.

10.4. Reed in Partnership, CONEL and Job Centre Plus all felt that another
strength of the Haringey Guarantee is the network which it has built up across the
partnership. Concern was expressed that this local infrastructure would be lost
without transitional funding for the Haringey Guarantee and also that there was a
possibility that any Prime Contactor could remove this infrastructure, losing a
wealth of experience, knowledge and contacts. The panel therefore hopes that
any Prime Contactor under the Work Programme is able to utilise and retain
aspects of the Haringey Guarantee.

10.5. The panel agreed that there is a real need to ensure seamless pathways
under the Work Programme and therefore partnership and joint working is the
key. As the overall funding is less then residents are likely to suffer unless all
organisations continue to work together and join up. The panel also noted the
importance of the role of the voluntary and community sector in continuing work
to support the most vulnerable into work.

10.6. The Haringey Guarantee has approached the companies bidding for the
West London Prime Contract under the Work Programme to discuss becoming a

Page 15 of 42




sub-contractor and has received offers from four of the Prime Contractors (on the
basis that they are awarded a Prime Contract).

The panel recommends that:

That the qualitative outcomes of any Haringey Guarantee project are given equal
weighting to quantitative outcomes.

Haringey Council should continue to support the Haringey Guarantee so that all of
those who need support get it and not just those who fall into the Work Programme
Customer Groups.

That the Haringey Guarantees continues with it’s flexible approach in order to shape
itself for the new Work Programme whilst continuing to support the most vulnerable
into work.

Value for Money

10.7.

Please see Appendix F for an independent assessment by ECORYS on

the effectiveness and value for money provided by the Haringey Guarantee.

10.8.

Some keys areas of this report as discussed by the Panel are as follows:

The unit cost per Haringey Guarantee participant is £800 — this includes
support and training. Other comparable programmes range from
approximately £250 to just over £1800. Whilst Haringey is therefore not one
of the lowest costs, there is a need to bear in mind that the support offered by
the Haringey Guarantee is more intensive that some other programmes and
that overall the Haringey Guarantee is working with more people of lower
literacy levels who are further from the employment market.

The unit cost per person supported into employment on the Haringey
Guarantee £3,200. This is at the lower end of the comparables across
London.

ECORYS found the Haringey Guarantee to be one of the more effective
programmes at supporting people into employment.

When considering data on programmes where the unit cost is lower than the
Haringey Guarantee there is a need to consider other elements. For
example, the Thames Gateway project is more ‘light touch’ than the Haringey
Guarantee and there is also easier access to employment opportunities in the
area than in Haringey. The Thames Gateway project was also alongside a
number of other funded projects around employment — therefore these other
projects may also have contributed to the outcomes. This does not appear
evident in the analysis.

Page 16 of 42




e The economic benefit of getting people into work is effectively twice what you
put in. Projects like Families into Work not only have a high economic value
but also knock on values both economic and otherwise, for example the
‘whole family’ dimension.

10.9. Please see Appendix E for an Economic Impact Assessment undertaken
by ECORYS on the Haringey Guarantee. This paper concludes with the
following information:

“‘Over the first year of programme delivery, projects funded through the Haringey
Guarantee spent £556,500"%. This equates to a cost per net additional person into
employment of £2,800 (£7,900 at the London level) and a return on investment of £6.3
in GVA per £1 of spending (£2.2 at the London level).

These value for money ratios are compared against the results of recent evaluations of
other London based employability programmes in the table below, which have tended to
focus on impacts at the regional rather than the local level:

e The cost per net additional person supported into employment is low in
comparison to other initiatives. GVA per £1 invested is broadly
comparable, and is likely due to the high proportion of participants that
have obtained part-time employment.

e It should be noted that, some of the evaluation studies made more
favourable assumptions than utilised here. For example, impacts were
assumed to endure for 3 years (rather than the 1 year assumed here) for
the Local Employment and Training Framework, which will inflate
estimates of impact as compared to estimates here.

e Overall, this suggests the Haringey Guarantee has demonstrated
reasonably good value for money. Additionally, the programme will
generate further impacts in the future when further current and new
participants enter employment, which may further improve value for money
measures.

It should be noted, however, that these estimates do not reflect all costs involved in
delivering the programme and associated employment outcomes. Participants may
have received support from other public sector agencies that may have contributed to
these outcomes either directly or indirectly, and the costs of these interventions are not
reflected here. In addition, participants themselves incur costs (including additional
transport costs, childcare costs, and loss of leisure time) that are not captured in this

estimate of return on investment.

'3 Note that this excludes payments made to projects in Year 1 for outputs that would be delivered in year
2.

Page 17 of 42




N AQ
uy \wpw )

Table 0.1 Value for Money Benchmarks”"*

Haringey Guarantee 2,800 7,900

Relay London Jobs'® - - 13,700 1.4
Local Employment and Training Framework'® - - 13,900 2.0
London South Central Enterprlse and - - 14,600 4.8
Employment Programme v

Thames Gateway JobNet'® - - 10,400 21

Economlc Impact Assessment, ECORYS submission the Haringey Guarantee Panel, 2011

® Source: Evaluation of the London Employment and Skills Taskforce, ECOTEC Research and
Consulting, 2010. Results include multiplier effects but exclude monetised losses of leisure time to
ensure comparability.

® Source: Evaluation of the London Employment and Training Framework, Roger Tyms and Partners,
2009. This study assumed the GVA effects of the programme would endure for 3 years, not 1 as
assumed here.

'" Source: Evaluation of the London South Central Employment and Enterprise Programme, ECOTEC
Research and Consulting , 2009. Results include effects of a range of enterprise projects, for which
impacts are assumed to endure for 3 years.

® Source: Interim Evaluation of the Thames Gateway JobNet, Adroit Economics, 2008, results are based
on all sources of funding, note that £ of GVA per £1 invested rises to £4.1 where impacts are assumed
to endure for 3 years.

Page 18 of 42




Appendices

Page 19 of 42




Appendix A — Contributors to the review

Martin Tucker

Economic Regeneration, Haringey
Council

Ambrose Quashie

Economic Regeneration, Haringey
Council

Peter Ryan Jobcentre Plus

Paul Head Principal, College of Haringey, Enfield
and North East London

John Egbo Community Link Forum and North
London Consortium Partnership Limited

Tony Azubike Reed in Partnership

Leo Atkins Head of Healthy

Communities Programme
NHS Haringey

Jonathan France
Principal Consultant

Ecotec — Haringey Guarantee
Evaluation

Chris Hale

Ecotec — Haringey Guarantee
Evaluation

Josephine Roarty
Programme Manager
GLE Consulting

Greater London Enterprise — Haringey
Guarantee Monitoring

Diane Liversidge

Northumberland Park Community
School

Sharon Bolton
Nadine Clarke
Tracey Williams
Roland Wodehouse
Naomi tucker

Families into work

Hyacinth Bonaparte

Positive Employment

Rachael Bailey

Women like us

Page 20 of 42




Appendix B — Written submission from ECORYS on the Families into Work

Project

Families into Work Evaluation

Progress Update and Emerging Findings

This note provides an update and emerging findings from Ecorys’ (formally ECOTEC
Research & Consulting) evaluation of the Families into Work (FiW) project.

1.1 Overview

The Families into Work initiative is a special project of the Haringey Guarantee. Itis a

multi-agency approach based in Northumberland Park to address wider social exclusion

issues by working intensively with families to improve the life chances of all family

members. The initiative aims to:

¢ Improve the life chances of people in Northumberland Park by working with families
to identify and address their barriers to employment

e Support children and young people to achieve success in education and develop
knowledge and skills to gain work with career prospects

e To increase family aspirations to succeed and gain independence

The project team work with families:

¢ to identify barriers to work for parents and older children

to identify barriers to educational achievement for younger children

to identify a family action plan, including a combination of services and projects

to contact service providers to negotiate and agree access to the appropriate projects
and services and shared action plans for the family which will support them into work
to ensure services are provided in a sensible way for the family

to provide support to reduce drop out when things get tough and troubleshoot any
problems which arise with service provision

¢ to monitor progress against each family action plan

Although the project focuses primarily on reducing worklessness, it aims to help families
deal with other issues in their lives which although not directly related to work, create
problems for family members and become barriers to work.

1.2 Evaluation methodology and progress update

Ecorys are utilising a range of methods to evaluate the FiW project. The specific strands
of the evaluation and details of the tasks undertaken to date are provided below:

Qualitative in-depth interviews/focus | eFocus group completed with

group with project staff Project Manager and 4 Family
Support Officers

Qualitative in-depth telephone eInterviews completed with 3

interviews with partners partners

oStill to be completed: 3
further interviews with partners

Page 21 of 42




Qualitative in-depth interviews with | eInterviews completed with 16

beneficiaries beneficiaries

oStill to be completed: 2
further interviews with

beneficiaries
Focus group with Youth User oStill to be completed: FG
Forum arranged for Tuesday 8™
November
Analysis of Ml and Family Action eOngoing

Plans

Literature/document review to set +Ongoing
FiW in context

1.3 Emerging findings

1.3.1 Project concept and operation

e The evaluation evidence available to date suggests that the concept behind the FiW
project (i.e. to provide intensive help to families to deal with other issues which create
problems for family members and become barriers to work) responds to the needs of
workless families in Northumberland Park. Evidence from partners and beneficiaries
suggests that other employment providers do not provide the same intensity and
tailoring of support.

¢ The project team have successfully utilised a range of approaches to market and
raise awareness of the project. The most effective referral mechanisms appear to be
word of mouth and working in partnership with other organisations based in
Northumberland Park. Useful lessons have been learnt about other referral
mechanisms:

» Whilst large scale advertising has been effective in achieving a volume of
potential beneficiaries, this has generated interest from outside of the defined
geographical boundaries within which the project is operating, so some
referrals could not be registered.

» Fewer than expected referrals have been received from Jobcentre Plus as a
result of the defined geographical focus of the project (i.e. advisers would need
to carefully check postcodes to assess eligibility for referral, as a result it is
perceived that they are referring to other programmes).

e There is potentially a need to raise the profile of the FiW project and further establish
its identity as a unique whole family approach to worklessness. Project staff and
partners feel that FiW may not stand out sufficiently as one of several programmes
that Jobcentre Plus advisers could refer beneficiaries to. Project staff also reported
some confusion over their job titles as 'Family Support Officers' with some partners
misunderstanding the employment focus of the project.

® The voluntary aspect of the project is considered by project staff, partners and
beneficiaries to be important in facilitating initial engagement. Beneficiaries, in
particular, reported that they were more likely to engage and maximise the support
available if they felt they weren't being forced to engage.

® The range of employment support offered includes working to identify aspirations and
barriers to employment, building confidence, updating and enhancing skills and job

Page 22 of 42




a 72
I J

oVal
uyu

search assistance. In line with the aim to address wider issues that if unresolved
become barriers to work, there was also examples of FiW staff providing support to
deal with debts, including contacting providers on a beneficiaries behalf to agree an
repayment plan, arranging alternative accommodation for a beneficiary to move away
from domestic violence and facilitating relationships between parents and schools to
address educational issues.

¢ Beneficiaries were generally very positive about the support and advice they had
received from the FiW project. Beneficiaries particularly appreciated seeing the same
adviser, who built up knowledge about their circumstances and who contacted them
regularly to check on their progress.

1.3.2 Outputs and outcomes

¢ The FiW project has exceeded its targets in terms of beneficiary engagement. The
target was to register 50 families in year one and a further 50 in year two, by the end
of the first year, the project had registered approximately 70 families.

* To date there have been 33 positive outcomes for FiW beneficiaries. This includes 11
employment outputs. (Figures as at September 2010).

¢ Regardless of whether or not individuals have so far found work, the evidence
suggests that FIW has impacted on soft outcomes and job readiness. Beneficiaries
suggest that the support from FiW made for more effective job search, boosted their
confidence and broadened their horizons.

» In many instances the beneficiaries was suffering from severe loss of
confidence after lengthy disengagement from the labour market or from never
having engaged with the labour market; in these cases FiW staff were
supportive, providing reassurance and boosting confidence regarding skills and
abilities as suggested by this beneficiary:

"It [engaging with FiW] gave me a bit more confidence as | didn’t really have
confidence before | went there. It brought me out of myself. | now deal with
100s of students everyday, but before my confidence wasn't very high and |

wouldn’t have been able to deal with that." (Beneficiary 11)

» The intensity and personalised support offered by FiW staff was felt by
beneficiaries to have a motivational impact:
"She [FiW FSO] showed a lot of interest right through the whole programme.
She'd ring me up to find out how | was getting on and if everything was okay. The
fact that my adviser rings me up to check on progress spurs me on to keep
looking for work." (Beneficiary 5)

"I feel more focused and ambitious than before | went to them. Before | went to
them | was feeling low that | couldn’t do many things but they made me aware that
this is not the end that | can build myself up."” (Beneficiary 12)

1.3.3 Case study
The following example is illustrative of the support and impact of FiW:

Beneficiary A was finding it difficult to find or focus on looking for employment as she
had 3 teenage sons who were at risk of offending. After a period of building trust with
the family, FiW engaged all members of the family through individual sessions;
providing support and advice to the sons about college courses and job search and

Page 23 of 42




coaching support for the mother. The family is now thriving, with all three sons in
college and Beneficiary A undertaking an apprenticeship working towards an NVQ in
Business Administration.

1.4 Next steps

The next steps for the evaluation are to complete the programme of beneficiary and
partner interviews and focus groups. The evaluation will continue to gather and analyse
the M| data and evidence contained within family action plans. All strands of the
evaluation will be brought together to produce a final report and findings will be
disseminated at the celebration event planned for early December.

Page 24 of 42




Appendix C — Written submission from Women Like Us

Women Like Us — an Introduction
December 2010

Brief history

Women Like Us (WLU) is a multi award winning social enterprise that reaches lone
parents, carers, and other workless mothers and helps them prepare for and find
flexible, part time work they can fit around their families.

Our approach has been developed out of parent-focused grassroots experience. Our
unigueness is our focus on the needs of women with children and we have
developed a model focused on successfully engaging and supporting this client
group. WLU have been delivering publicly funded parent-focused employment
support contracts for six years. We deliver our service in 17 London boroughs, with
a focus on areas with high levels of deprivation.

We have won numerous awards including Best New Social Enterprise, sponsored by
Office of the Third Sector. In 2009 we were awarded the Queen’s Award for
Enterprise in the innovation category in recognition of our work.

Delivery experience

We have a strong track record delivering for a range of agencies including DWP,
LDA, Skills Funding Agency and have held contracts with 12 local authorities. We
have supported more than 4,000 parents on funded programmes and over 1,300
into employment through funded programmes and our recruitment service.

We have an established school gates outreach network engaging with parents at
the gates of their children’s primary schools, employing local parents to promote
our service through 240 partner schools and children’s centres. We have over
20,800 mothers registered, of whom 25% are lone parents, 59% are BAME, and
80% in the top 40% most deprived local super output areas.

We support mothers (both coupled and lone parents) to build their skills and
confidence through employability support and career coaching programmes. WLU
have a database detailing over 600 organisations through which we refer clients for
additional support. In addition we undertake research to identify organisations to
meet individual client needs.

When clients are ready to work, we help them find employment through both our
job brokerage team and our recruitment service specialising in quality part time
and flexible work. Our recruitment service also provides practical support and
training to employers to help them design and successfully implement part time
working within their businesses.

We also work to influence opinion amongst policy makers and through the media to

make the case for part time working, and the direct impact this has on
worklessness and child poverty.

Page 25 of 42




Appendix D — Written submission from North London Partnership Consortium Ltd

Snapshot Overview Report to the Scrutiny Board (Dec 2010) by NLPC Litd

Government Proposed Work Programme: Current Issues and Future
Considerations

As a Voluntary and Community sector organisation, NLPC have been committed to
getting the most vulnerable and marginalised local residents into sustained employment
in other to fulfil our charitable objectives.

In Haringey over the last 4 years we have been able to successfully sustain this
commitment through the Haringey Guarantee Partnership model for tackling
worklessness. The emphasis has been on meeting clearly agreed job related outcomes
and outputs, within an integrated multi-agency, cross-sector, service provision that
builds on the expertise of partners. At the core of this is getting local people into Jobs,
through clear pathways that include clients, delivery agencies and employers.

The work programme is a huge ambitious undertaking and Prime contractors will need
to get some of the most marginalised and disadvantaged back into sustained work,
across enormous contract packages, to make their contracts profitable.

Here, volume is the key and the task is on how we can build on our successful model to
ensure that local residents are able to access the service and receive to one to one
intervention necessary for their entry into the labour market.

» Haringey Guarantee has been excellent at engaging with and supporting people
who mainstream services have failed to reach, in particular the most
marginalised and vulnerable; partly because it’s a voluntary intervention.

» The innovative nature of the programme with the pathways to work model taking
on board a range partners has been a key success. Losing this infrastructure
could be detrimental to the organisations, many of whom are small voluntary
sector organisations, delivering services, therefore impacting on service users.

» Expected rising unemployment/worklessness actually makes it more important
for a programme such as this to exist. We've tested the model and it’s proven to
work so it would appear counter intuitive to withdraw it at a time when it’s most
needed. There is no guarantee that the Work Programme will offer any
improvement on this.

» Serious consideration should be given to “transitional” support package that
ensures that there is continuity and allow the Haringey Guarantee partners to
properly assess the work programme and its delivery impact in Haringey

» The need for strategic co-ordination from the Economic Development Dept that
would enable Haringey Guarantee Partnership to seek sub-contracting
arrangements with Prime Contractors as well as seek other alternative sources of
grant/revenue for targeted worklessness assistance

» Changes to the Welfare Benetfit are likely to have a huge impact on this group and
their ability to access and sustain programmes designed to enable into the labour
market. In the main these group are going to grow in Haringey — and the key
question is whether we are prepared to invest now or face greater
social and economic cost later.

* The need for Prime Contractors to make contracts “profitable” - could result in
the most difficult groups not receiving the “targeted and sustained2 intervention
designed to improve their pathway progression into the labour market.

Page 26 of 42




Page7/7/
» The Work Programme will not cover all client groups that the Haringey
Guarantee has historically supported such as Incapacity Benefit claimants
awaiting a Work Capability Assessment, lone parents on Income Support and
non-benefit claimants.
Who we are

NLPC (North London Partnership Consortium Ltd) is a Matrix and NOCN accredited
voluntary and community sector organisation based in Northumberland Park,
Tottenham. The organisation works to enable marginalized communities to actively
participate and contribute to community economic development and urban renewal,
through cross sector partnerships and community economic initiatives.

The organisations works in FOUR primary areas:

e Employment, Enterprise, Educational and Training initiatives aimed at helping
local residents to enter and sustain jobs within the labour market

e Employment, Enterprise and Training initiatives designed to improve the social
and economic welfare of disadvantaged communities and enable the
competitiveness, sustainability and performance of local businesses.

e Organisational development and capacity building support aimed at local
residents and third sector organisations, including governance and management,
work force development and procurement support.

e Voluntary and community sector representation within cross-sector strategic
forums. The organisations director’s have over the past 10 years played a pivotal
part in cross-sector partnerships, including current sector representation on the
Enterprise Partnership Board, and played an integral role in the Boards
commissioning process in 2009. Our Director is currently the Chair of the
Haringey Community Link Forum — the sectors formal representative forum for
the HSP (Standing Leadership Conference), structure.

As a local Employer, we have remained committed to the ethos of local jobs for local
people, with a history of successful integration of volunteers/local residents into paid
positions within the organisation.

We are current partners in successful Future Jobs Fund bids by Haringey
Council and Urban Futures and have given 25 people jobs with a minimum
of 6 months contracts as a result of these two projects.

Our track Record

NLPC have over the past 9 years developed a successful track record for the delivery
education, employment and enterprise related interventions, in partnership with
mainstream and third sector organisations. This has included SRB 3/4/5/6, ESF, and
ERDF, Equal 1 and 2 and European Refugee Fund. Examples of programmes include
Health and Social Care, Community Economic Development and Leadership, Accredited
Employability Skills Training, Social Enterprises, ESOL and Work Placements. Our
wealth of experience in developing and delivering similar interventions has enabled us
to develop robust quality assured systems and processes for such interventions, and
strong understanding and appreciation of integrated partnership working.

Following an initial successful pilot programme in 2004/2005, since 2006, (following
successive tendering process), NLPC has delivered the Work Placement element of the
Haringey Guarantee Programme aimed at tackling worklessness within the borough.
Over the past 3.5 years the organisation has developed a successful track record

Page 27 of 42




underpinned by quality assurance and value for money in this particular area. During
this time NLPC has also successfully piloted and delivered an innovative NOCN

accredited Level 2 Work Placement Employability Skills Training programme.

Community Engagement and Access

17-25 26-30 31-40 41-50 50+ Total
259 171 295 271 137 1133
23% 15% 26% 24% 12% 100%

NLPC have established a strong track record of effective
promotion and marketing of its programmes to the
target group. From August 2006 to December 2010, the
organisation accessed over 1133 local residents from 13
priority wards, including strong penetration on the top
5 most deprived wards (Bruce Grove, Noel Park,
Northumberland Park, Tottenham Green, and White
Hart Lane). We have accessed over 80 disabled
beneficiaries through the implementation of effective

o17-25
m 26-30
031-40
041-50
|50+

NLPC

engagement with the priority Equality Groups and
strategic linkages with key partners, such as BUBIC, the Haringey Disability

Consortium, and HG delivery partners,

Client destinations — out puts and outcomes
IAG Volunteer Work Employed | Training FIT BOC CRB Total
and Placement Education
Action
Plan
1133 140 350 200 145 392 150 250 1133

Quality Employment and Advice and Career Action Plans
NLPC has provided 1133 beneficiaries with IAG, Action Planning; provided HG

partners with over 500 referrals for/to other identified
employment/education/training and enterprise interventions.

Accredited Vocational Training and Support

145 beneficiaries have received level 2 accredited training, including

Employability Skills Training. The range of training is designed to
complement/enhance trainees existing skills, equip with new knowledge and
skills and enable trainee job sustainability

Volunteering
Over 140 clients were accessed into volunteering positions across sectors.

Better of Calculation (BOC)
NLPC has undertaken 150 BOC’s. This was introduced in 2009 and it is a
mechanism to show clients how they would be better of in-job as opposed to

claiming benefits. Clients are provided with calculations that shows if they would
be “better — off”.

Criminal Record Bureau (CRB)
Page 28 of 42




NLPC have facilitated over 265 CRB checks for clients, our partnership with
external organisations has resulted in free service or discounted cost

Work Placements

NLPC have placed over 350 trainees into sustained work placements,
i.e., until the completion of the designated placement period.

“Work placement is distinct from volunteering — it is a period of planned work
based learning/experience. It offers trainees an opportunity for vocational
learning and personal development without which they are likely to remain
detached from the labour market. It acts as a stepping stone from unemployment
and paid employment”. Clients could undertake full-time placement for 6 weeks
or part-time placement 2.5 days over 3 months. During placement they are
treated like other employees and the employer must have a properly defined job
with agreed knowledge/skills/experience that the clients from prior to
placement”.

Employer/Business Engagement (Host Organisations)

NLPC has been able to ensure awareness, uptake and participation by Employers
for work placement support and pathway progression into paid work. We have
established strong partnership working with employers across many sectors and
developed a database of over 350 Employers (Host organisations), who have
taken part in our HG work placement programme and have actively worked with
over 160 diverse employers, big and small who have undertaken trainees on
work placement. Examples include, Peacocks, Bonmarche, Superdrug, AWWG,
BLFW, Haringey Council, Gladesmore School, North London Business, I-
BMEDIA, BUBIC and HAVCO.

We have successfully placed beneficiaries across diverse job sectors, examples
include, Administration, Accounts, Housing, Security, IT, Recycling, Teaching
Assistance, Youth Service, Health and Social Care, and Construction

We have developed a quality assured customer service framework for engaging
with and getting employers consensus through effective customer service based
on the employers needs.

We have developed innovative Beneficiary / Employer support systems such as a
Compact Agreement of Understanding, and Work Programme forms designed to
document and underpin practical experience gained.

Jobs
In the past 3.5 years NLPC delivery of the HG work placement

programme has successfully enabled over 200 beneficiaries to gain
employment. Our overall rate of job outcome per placement is 57%.

Page 29 of 42




Panga QN
T uyu \WAV )

Client Ethnicity
Ethnicity Quantity | % The organisation has attracted over 18 different ethnic

: categorises, including a strong recruitment within the
White 123 11 White British (11%) and White Other (12%) base (3¢ and
British th high . . .
White Irish 19 5 4t highest group). The organisation has also established
Other white 131 12 a strong recruitment base across different age groups,
Black 369 32 including the 31 — 50 years age group (50% of all
African recruitment) and 17-25 age groups (23% of all
Black British 100 9 recruitment).
Black 192 17
Caribbean
Pakistani 11 1
Bangladeshi 15 1
Indian 21 2
Mauritian 2
Bulgarian 1
Italian 2
Polish 6 1
Chinese 8 1
South 5
American
Turkish 22 2
Mixed race 49 4
Other 57 5

1133 100%

Our programme focus —

The programme is intended to address needs faced by:

1.

Workless residents of the 12 most deprived wards in Haringey, including
those from BAME and recently arrived communities, who face high levels of
labour market detachment and multiple barriers to initially accessing
employment including low skills, language needs, educational
underachievement, labour market discrimination linked to ethnicity, gender
or disability, welfare benefit dependence and a lack of relevant work
experience

Recently unemployed residents of the same wards who have lost their
employment due to the economic downturn and may require re-skilling and
appropriate work experience in order to re-enter sustainable employment
Local employers, predominantly SMEs, who require a high quality, job- ready
workforce in order to be competitive, raise productivity and innovation;
Regional and Sub- regional employers, including large organisations who
require high quality skilled workforce to enable them maintain competitive
advantage

Social Housing residents who have high incidence of unemployment

Third sector employers who require support in responding to the economic
downturn

HG programme partners who require supported exit pathway for their clients
into the labour market with a mix of SME, third sector and large employers
across sectors.

. HG programme partners who need an integrated partnership approach to

Worklessness intervention without issues associated with “chasing outputs”
and/or project “duplication”
Page 30 of 42




Examples of Programme Approach, Innovation and Uniqueness

1.

Joined up approach to addressing the needs of Employers and tackling
worklessness in the borough through the provision of an integrated pathway
progression from Outreach —Assessment- Career Development Action Plan —
Referrals/Work placements —Interview Guarantee — Employment
. A “matching” process that meets the needs of Employers with the needs of
Unemployed residents
Referrals to and from HG partner organisations and other training providers
within the borough
At the heart of our programme is Personalisation — ensuring that Unemployed
clients receive a service in line with their specific needs and have available
options for related interventions that could address their needs.
Proactive approach to Local residents and Employer Engagement including
dedicated officers, community outreach workers, and volunteers.
Extensive community outreach and promotion within key neighbourhoods,
promotion and marketing including Open Days, local media, roadshows, and
leaflet drops.
Dedicated communication info-mail aimed at Employers and Unemployed
residents highlighting opportunities ( clients looking for placements and
Employers wanting to take up trainees for placements)

The longer term achievements include:

Effective contribution in helping reduce / eradicate the issue of worklessness
within the most deprived neighbourhoods in Haringey

Helping to ensure that the borough is able to meet and surpass its LAA stretch
targets

Creating an effective, integrated pathway progression into employment

Creation of a model of good practice in partnership working for tackling
employment issues

Meeting the employers needs for a knowledgeable, skilled and trained workforce
able to meet its challenges

Helping to increase the skills / qualification base for the borough workforce
Creating a Job Ready workforce “databank” that employers can use for future job
opportunities

Establishing work placement as an effective tool for pathway progression into
work and increasing the level of employers offering work placement
opportunities

Increased motivation, self-belief and self-esteem among participants;

Greater economic independence for members of target groups who have been
marginalised from the labour market;

Reduced reliance on state benefits for participants who have been unemployed;
Increased economic activity rates for participants who have been economically
inactive;

Greater purchasing power within low income communities as a result of
increased employment of members of target groups;

Greater health, well being and quality of life of participants, as a wealth of
evidence indicates that being in work is associated with better physical health.

Appendix C — Written submission from North London Partnership Consortium Ltd

Page 31 of 42




Appendix E: Haringey Guarantee: Economic Impact Assessment ECORYS

This paper provides an assessment of the economic impacts associated with the
support provided through the Haringey Guarantee to those individuals participating in
the initiative between April 2009 and July 2010. The assessment covers the impacts of
the two Haringey Guarantee Extension projects (Women Like Us and 5E).

The results are based on a survey of 114 Haringey Guarantee participants undertaken
in July 2010. The methodology employed has been designed to comply with the
Government's guidance on establishing the economic impacts of employability
initiatives, including the HM Treasury's Green Book, and the Impact Evaluation
Framework (and supplementary guidance, such as the IEF plus'®) developed by the
Department for Business, Innovation and Skills.

Analytical Framework

This section sets out our approach for estimating the net economic impacts of the
Haringey Guarantee, and is based on the general framework set out in the Homes and
Communities Agency's Additionality Guide for assessing the economic impact of area
based initiatives. This states that the economic impact should be estimated using the
following:

Net impact = Gross Impact — Deadweight — Crowding Out —
Substitution Effects — Leakage — Displacement + Multiplier Effects

Where:

e Gross impact is the positive economic impacts achieved by programmes
among participants. In the case of the Haringey Guarantee, these will be
achieved where programme participants enter employment, and generate
GVA impacts.

¢ Deadweight is the extent to which those gross impacts would have
occurred in the absence of the intervention (i.e. the number of participants
that would have entered employment in the absence of the programme).

e Crowding Out is the extent to which programme investment has crowded
out private sector investment in similar initiatives. Crowding out is
assumed not to apply in the case of the Haringey Guarantee; it is unlikely

"9 Practical Guidance on Implementing the Impact Evaluation Framework, BIS, December 2009
Page 32 of 42




that Haringey's investment in the initiative has prevented the private sector
developing pre-employment support schemes.

e Substitution Effects occur where employers filling vacancies with
participants of the Haringey Guarantee would have filled vacancies with
other residents of the borough in the absence of the scheme. Related to
this, it is also important to consider whether firms have been able to recruit
workers that were more suitably trained or at an earlier date than in the
absence of the programme.

e Leakage occurs where the benefits of the programme go to other areas
outside Haringey. For example, if a resident that is supported into
employment leaves the borough, then this impact benefits another area.
Where residents of the borough have been supported into jobs outside the
borough, then the GVA impacts are lost to Haringey (although Haringey
retains the employment impact).

¢ Displacement may occur where firms filling vacancies with Haringey
Guarantee participants are able to produce more and generate more
sales. If these sales are taken away from other firms in Haringey then
there are potentially negative effects on employment

e Multiplier Effects occur through two main mechanisms: firms filling
vacancies with Haringey Guarantee participants may increase
procurement spend among local firms, generating positive local impacts
(supply chain multiplier effects). Further benefits will be gained by local
firms where the additional income (i.e. the increase above any benefits
participants may be claiming) are spent by programme participants in the
local economy (induced multiplier effects).

Our overall analytical framework is set out in the diagram below.

Page 33 of 42




o

5::;?:::' Careers advice / Net economic
training in in work support effects on
schools employment and

GVA

Vocational
training and
support

IAG, access to
skills, job
brokerage to users
of public services

Substitution effects:
Probability
vacancies would
have been filled from
the general labour
market

Volunteering
| work placements

Deadweight
Probability positive
outcomes would

have happened in the
absence of project

Employment,
advice, and job
brokerage

Employer and
business
engagement

Employment,

advice, and job
brokerage

Gross Employment and GVA Outcomes

Gross employment outcomes

At the beginning of July 2010, there were 1,751 participants of the Haringey Guarantee
registered on MegaNexus, of which 259 were recorded as entering employment®. Al
respondents to the survey were asked to report whether they had entered employment
since receiving support as a means of verifying the monitoring data.

The survey evidence suggests that 26 percent of participants with no employment
outcome recorded in MegaNexus had in reality entered employment at the time of the
survey, while 22 percent of participants that had been recorded as achieving an
employment outcome reported that they had not entered any employment since
receiving support.

Overall, this suggests that the 259 employment outputs recorded by MegaNexus are an
underestimate of the total gross employment outcomes of the Haringey Guarantee by
July 2010. Applying the results above to the numbers of participants in the programme
(by employment outcome), it is estimated that around 600 Haringey Guarantee

participants have obtained employment since receiving support (closer to 35 percent).

Table 0.1 Gross employment outcomes

%0 Either recorded and verified as a job entry, job sustained for 13 weeks, or job sustained for 26 weeks.

Page 34 of 42




Employment outcome 259 78 201
No employment outcome 1,492 27 403
Total 1,751 - 604

Source: MegaNexus and Participant Survey
Gross GVA outcomes
The Haringey Guarantee will also generate economic effects in terms of GVA as a
result of the output created by those individuals supported into work. The income based
measure of GVA is defined as the sum of wages received by employees and profits
accruing to owners of firms. More productive workers (i.e. those able to generate more
GVA per hour worked) tend to obtain higher wages.
In order to assess the economic contribution of the Haringey Guarantee in terms of
GVA, respondents were asked to report their average hourly earnings, and whether
they worked full-time (30 or more hours per week) or part time (less than 30 hours per
week).
On average, respondents reported they earned an hourly wage of £7.76. This is low in
comparison to borough averages, with residents of Haringey earning £14.65 per hour in
full-time work, and £9.19 in part-time work?', suggesting that participants have mainly
found employment in lower skilled occupations. 34 percent of those finding work
reported they had entered full-time time employment, and 66 percent entered part-time
employment. Applying these results to the average weekly hours worked by residents of
Haringey (37.5 hours for full-time workers, and 16.7 hours for part-time workers?) it is
estimated that participants entering employment work on average 23.8 hours per week,
earn a weekly wage of £184, and an annual wage of £9,600.

Table 0.2 Average Weekly Hours and Earnings, Participants Entering Employment

Full time (more than 30 hours per week) 37.5
Part time (less than 30 hours per week) 35 66 16.7
Total 53 100 23.8
Average hourly earnings £7.76
Average weekly earnings £184.48
Estimated average annual earnings £9,593.21

Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, Office for National Statistics, 2009
22 Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, Office for National Statistics, 2009

Page 35 of 42




FaXE o TA
\PAW

loVal

UHU
Source: Participant Survey (ECOTEC), Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings
(ONS)

On the basis of average annual earnings of £9,600, the 600 individuals entering

employment since participating in the Haringey Guarantee are estimated to earn a total

of £5.8m per annum. In London, wage expenditure represents 54 percent of total GVAZ

(i.,e. every £0.54 spent on wages generates £1 of GVA), implying the Haringey

Guarantee has had a total gross impact on GVA of £10.7m per annum to date.

Table 0.3 Gross GVA Created

People supported into employment 604
Estimated average annual income (£) 9593
Estimated total annual income (£m) 5.8
Ratio of Wage Expenditure to GVA 0.54
Estimated total gross GVA impact (Em per annum) 10.7

Source: Participant Survey

Additionality

A crucial consideration in establishing the net economic impacts of the Haringey
Guarantee is how far participants would have found employment without the support
they received. This comprises two elements: how far the participants entered
employment as a direct result of the support provided, and how far participants would
have obtained an alternative source of similar support that would led to the same

outcomes.

Additionality of employment outcomes

Respondents that had entered employment were asked to report how likely they would
have been to find a job if they had not received the support from the Haringey
Guarantee. More than a quarter of respondents reported that they definitely would not
have found a job without the support they received, and a further 10 percent reported
that that they would only possibly have found a job, suggesting that in many cases, the
programme is making a direct contribution to the employment prospects of participants.

However, a substantial proportion (57 percent) reported that they would have definitely
or probably found their job without the support they received. No respondents reported
that they were able to obtain a job with greater earnings as a result of support, perhaps

reflecting the low earnings received by participants. Using the additionality assumptions

% Annual Business Inquiry, Office for National Statistics, 2008

Page 36 of 42




Page 87

No 99 87 1.00
Yes 15 13 -
If yes, how likely is that you would take up this alternative support?

Definitely 7 6 0.00
Likely 8 7 0.25
Neither likely nor unlikely 0 0 0.50
Unlikely 0 0 0.75
Definitely not 0 0 1.00
Total 114 100 0.89

outlined in the table below, it is estimated that, on average, 45 percent of participants
obtaining employment would not have done so without the support.

Table 0.4 Additionality of employment outcomes

Would definitely have found this job anyway 0.00
Would probably have found this job anyway 8 15 0.25
Would have found a job, but at a later date 4 8 1.00%
Would have found a job, but with lower wages 0 0 1.00
Would possibly have found this job anyway 5 9 0.75
Would definitely not have found this job anyway 14 26 1.00
Total 53 100 0.45

Source: Participant Survey

Additionality of support

Respondents were also asked to report if they would have been able to find a similar
level of support from an alternative source, and if so, how likely they would have been to
use it. The survey results suggested that only a minority (13 percent) would have been
able to find similar support elsewhere, indicating the support provided by the
programme has added substantial value to support provided locally.

Using the additionality assumptions outlined in the table below, it is estimated that 89
percent of participants would not have obtained similar alternative support in the

absence of the Haringey Guarantee.

Table 0.5 Additionality of support

* While the outcomes associated with those that have would have found a job at a later date are
assumed to be 100 percent additional, the impacts are assumed to endure only on a temporary basis
(see section 1.7 below).

Page 37 of 42




a9
UV

loVal
(A.H \ 3
Gross Additional Employment Outcomes

Estimates of the gross additional impacts of the Haringey Guarantee in terms of people

supported into employment, and associated GVA, are set out in the table below.

Table 0.6 Additionality of employment outcomes

Gross additional people supported into
employment 604 0.45 0.89 240

Gross additional GVA created (Em per annum) 10.7 0.45 0.89 4.2

Gross additional impact = Gross impact x Additionality of outcomes x
Additionality of support

Substitution Effects, Leakage, Displacement, and Multiplier Effects

Substitution effects

Substitution effects depend on how far employers would have recruited other labour
market participants (either from Haringey or elsewhere in London) in the absence of the
support provided by the initiative. Employer research has not yet been completed as
part of the evaluation, so a value for substitution effects has been assumed on the basis
of meta-research undertaken by BIS in 2009 that suggested that prior evaluation studies
found a value for substitution effects of 7.6 percent (at the regional level) for
employability programmes.

Applying this assumption implies that 7.6 percent of the vacancies filled by Haringey
Guarantee participants would have been filled by other residents of London in the short
term. It is assumed of these, 50 percent would have been Haringey residents (on the
basis that many jobs will have been sourced locally), suggesting a value for local
substitution effects of 3.8 percent®.

Leakage

The economic impacts of the Haringey Guarantee will leak outside of the borough (or
London) to the extent that non-residents have benefited from support provided by the
programme. Analysis of the postcodes of participants (as recorded in MegaNexus)
suggested at a small share (2 percent) of participants lived outside the borough of
Haringey, and none lived outside London. Leakage is therefore assumed to be 2

percent at the local level, and zero at the regional level.

% These assumptions will be updated on completion of the employer survey.

Page 38 of 42




Pana QQ

T uyu UV
Haringey 0.02 0.04 0.31 1.29
London 0.00 0.08 0.78 1.44

Displacement and Multiplier Effects

Displacement and multiplier effects depend primarily on the extent to which employers
recruiting Haringey Guarantee participants compete and procure from with other firms in
the borough (or London at the regional level). Assumptions for displacement are taken
from a review of City Challenge programmes that suggested training programmes led to
displacement of 31 percent at the local level, and 78 percent at the regional level®®.
Most programme participants obtained employment in service industries, and
assumptions for composite multiplier effects (for B1 office land use classes) of 1.29 at
the local level and 1.44 at the regional level have been taken from the Homes and

Communities Agency Additionality Guide?”.

Gross to net additionality assumptions

Gross to net additionality assumptions are set out in the table below.

Table 0.7 Summary of gross to net additionality assumptions

Net Additional Employment Impacts

Estimates of the net additional impact of Haringey Guarantee by July 2010 are set out in
the table below. Overall, it is estimated that the programme has supported 201 net
additional residents of Haringey into employment, with an associated GVA impact of
£3.6m per annum. Owing to primarily high rates of assumed displacement at the
London level, this impact falls to 70 net additional people into employment, and £1.2m

per annum in GVA, at the level of the region.

Table 0.8 Net additional employment and GVA impacts

Net additional people supported into employment 201 70
Net additional GVA created (Em per annum, residence 3.6 1.2
based)

Net additional impact = Gross additional impact x (1 — Substitution) x (1 —
Leakage) x (1 — Displacement) x Multiplier effects

Add|t|onal|ty Guide, Homes and Communities Agency, 2008
Agam these assumptions will be updated on completion of employer research

Page 39 of 42




Present value of GVA impacts

In order to estimate the total GVA impact of the Haringey Guarantee, it is necessary to
take to further elements into account:

e Persistence: The impacts outlined above measure the annual GVA
impact associated with individuals supported into employment, whereas
the total impact will depend on how long individuals are able sustain
employment. Tracking of participants (to be undertaken over the
remainder of the study) will be used to develop an understanding of the
sustainability of employment outcomes. In the interim, and in line with IEF
plus guidance (for the intervention type 'Matching People to Jobs'), it is
assumed that impacts endure for a period of one year.

e Accelerated effects: Eight percent of participants reported that they
would have obtained employment, but at a later date. On average, these
respondents reported that they would have found a job 9 months later than
they did, so in eight percent of cases, impacts are assumed to endure for
0.75 years only.

e Discount rate: In line with the principles of the HM Treasury Green Book,
a discount rate of 3.5 percent per annum should be applied to monetary
values. As the impacts of the programme have only accumulated over a
single year since the programme started, an adjustment of 3.5 has been
made.

Estimates of the total present value of the GVA impacts of the Haringey
Guarantee by July 2010 are set out in the table below.

Table 0.9 Present value of net additional GVA impacts

Present value of GVA created (£m, residence based) 3.5 1.2

Value for money

Over the first year of programme delivery, projects funded through the Haringey
Guarantee spent £556,500%%. This equates to a cost per net additional person into
employment of £2,800 (£7,900 at the London level) and a return on investment of £6.3
in GVA per £1 of spending (£2.2 at the London level).

8 Note that this excludes payments made to projects in Year 1 for outputs that would be delivered in year
2.
Page 40 of 42




Ao Q1
uy LV A |

These value for money ratios are compared against the results of recent evaluations of
other London based employability programmes in the table below, which have tended to

focus on impacts at the regional rather than the local level:

e The cost per net additional person supported into employment is low in
comparison to other initiatives. GVA per £1 invested is broadly
comparable, and is likely due to the high proportion of participants that
have obtained part-time employment.

¢ It should be noted that, some of the evaluation studies made more
favourable assumptions than utilised here. For example, impacts were
assumed to endure for 3 years (rather than the 1 year assumed here) for
the Local Employment and Training Framework, which will inflate
estimates of impact as compared to estimates here.

e Overall, this suggests the Haringey Guarantee has demonstrated
reasonably good value for money. Additionally, the programme will
generate further impacts in the future when further current and new
participants enter employment, which may further improve value for money
measures.

It should be noted, however, that these estimates do not reflect all costs involved in
delivering the programme and associated employment outcomes. Participants may
have received support from other public sector agencies that may have contributed to
these outcomes either directly or indirectly, and the costs of these interventions are not
reflected here. In addition, participants themselves incur costs (including additional
transport costs, childcare costs, and loss of leisure time) that are not captured in this

estimate of return on investment.

Table 0.10 Value for Money Benchmarks

Haringey Guarantee 2,800 7,900

Relay London Jobs®’ - - 13,700 1.4
Local Emplo(}/ment and Training - - 13,900 2.0
Framework®

% Source: Evaluation of the London Employment and Skills Taskforce, ECOTEC Research and
Consulting, 2010. Results include multiplier effects but exclude monetised losses of leisure time to
ensure comparability.

% Source: Evaluation of the London Employment and Training Framework, Roger Tyms and Partners,
2009. This study assumed the GVA effects of the programme would endure for 3 years, not 1 as
assumed here.

Page 41 of 42




London South Central Enterprise - - 14,600 4.8
and Empoyment Programme®'

Thames Gateway JobNet* - - 10,400 2.1

%" Source: Evaluation of the London South Central Employment and Enterprise Programme, ECOTEC
Research and Consulting , 2009. Results include effects of a range of enterprise projects, for which
impacts are assumed to endure for 3 years.

%2 Source: Interim Evaluation of the Thames Gateway JobNet, Adroit Economics, 2008, results are based
on all sources of funding, note that £ of GVA per £1 invested rises to £4.1 where impacts are assumed
to endure for 3 years.

Page 42 of 42




Page 93

- I L j ,/f \\ . ﬁ
; / w o «, I - i
1 ™ - . -
M / w \\\\\ i I.,:f el %
} ~ w e e 7 i
\ oL | . \\ |
{ | W
AN g_ b e W f// P \\ _
/ M \\m. AH.;.. w /f/., \\\ m
™, e i N !
N P TN | i !
L - L | T w
AN e i N ! o T ;
§ e . - p——
4 - ! . 1 “ haS {
N ,. ~. | T . |
1 L i . i L -~ i
-~ i . 1 L T ! H
4 -~ Vo i . - T !
/ L i . H R i e S % B
al y ~ ; T T R i
A \ ~ ! - R
r,/ i N u. o ﬂ\.ﬂ.«a .. Pl B
y 3 . i o | M, e T,
AJ / wu /_r 1 .\-\ “ .fJ.,alfrr} \\\ M
kY ] -
“.4_ ) i ™~ _, e u i .///: i e o k
m AN AN T ! T - I
! Y .m e : . - i
e, N N | N T i
B Y 1 - i
NG L ﬁ . s |
Y v e / . i . - I
u. =4 a 1 i M o, —~
e /M\\.\\\ ., ] e !
a A — i .. ; T .H
i
- , | i
o ﬂ

Haringey Guarantee — Effectiveness an

=
4]
e
Q

=

V)
>
(o
O
J
LLJ



1.0
1.1
1.1.1
1.1.2
1.2
1.2.1
122
1.2.3
1.2.4
1.3
1.3.1
1.3.2
1.3.3

Page 94

Contents

Haringey Guarantee: Scrutiny

Panel Paper....ccccevemcnrernrneassmsssnnnsan.

Effectiveness of the Haringey Guarantee...........cvmvessrummmmssssmsnmmmesomsmissisimsssnes

Delivering outputS .....vceeciieceiiceeeeeen,

..........................................................................

Effectiveness in moving participants into employment........cccvcvvcvivccen e,

Value for money.......ccccvvcmsassnsassans
Cost per participant.........cccceevviinenns

..........................................................................

Cost per entry 10 employment OUICOME .......ooiiiiee e ceeececee et ae e e st a e

Sustained employment outcomes......

..........................................................................

Time taken to support an individual into WOrK ........ceeviev e
Alignment with the Work Programme.........cmmeseimiscmencnernsessmsen

Overall objectives ......c.cccovervvrrienen.nn.

..........................................................................

Opportunities for the Haringey GUATANTEE ... siees e e e eraaree e

Provider Risk and Competition ..........

List of figures

..........................................................................

Figure 1.1 Percentage of Target Outputs Delivered By Quarter 6 2010/11 ................
Figure 1.2 Percentage of Participants Moving Into Employment .......c..ccoveeiiniieannnn,

Figure 1.3 Unit Cost Per Participant .

List of tables
Table 1.1 Project Level Performance

..........................................................................

ECORYS




Page 95

1.0 Haringey Guarantee: Scrutiny Panel Paper

1.1 Effectiveness of the Haringey Guarantee

1.1.1 Delivering outputs

The chart below shows the progress made by the Haringey Guaraniee in delivering ouiputs by the end of
Quarter 2 2010/11. Around 80 percent of overall participation targets (for the duration of the programme), and
60 percent of the target for job starts were delivered by the end of quarter 2 2010/11 with two quarters for
dellvery remaining. Full figures for quarter 3 are not available yet, although there are early indications that
substantial further progress was made.

Figure 1.1 Percentage of Target Qutputs Delivered By the End of Quarter 2 2010/11

100

a0

Percentage of {arget outpuls delivered - Quarter & 2010/11

Registrations ~ Better Off Work Skills Other  Skills Lavel 2 Job Stans Jebs Jebs Conditicnal

Calsulalions  Placements Susiained (13 Sustained (26 Management
wegks) weeks) Programme

Source: GLE
1.1.2 Effectiveness in moving participants into employment

By quarter 6 2010/11, the Haringey Guarantee had moved some 24 percent of participants into employment.
Comparisons against programmes suggest that the support provided is effective in moving people into
employment, with this ratio at the upper end of the range established for other programmes.

68 percent of those obtaining employment have sustained employment for 13 weeks ({to date}. Monitoring
evidence for other programmes has not tended to collect evidence on sustained employment outcomes,
although evidence for the Thames Gateway Jobnet project suggested that 55 percent of those entering
employment sustained employment for 13 weeks. This suggests that the Haringey Guarantee has also been
effective in supperting sustained employment outcomes although the evidence is fimited in this area.

ECORYS 4

Al




Page 96

Figure 1.2 Percentage of Participants Moving Into Employment

250

20.0

15.0

10.0

Percentage of Participanis Maving Into Employment

5.0

[F+] - T T T -

AllLDAESF Co-  London Employment Haringey Guarantee- Thames Gateway — ESF Opportunilles  Westminster Works

financed Activity and Training achieved QB 2010711 Jobinet Programme Found 1 for Residents -
Framework {LDA} projected

Programme

Source: Programme Evaluation Reports, Various

1.2 Value for money

This section provides a brief outline of the value for money secured by the programme, comparing unit costs for
key outputs and outcomes against those delivered by comparator programmes. The Haringey Guarantee has
been delivered utilising a payment-by-outputs format of contract, so the financial exposure of the Council to non-
delivery has been limited to some extent, and this should be acknowledged in the figures below (i.e. some
providers may have incurred delivery costs over and above the paymenis received through the Haringey
Guarantee). The figures below exclude spending by Families Into Work, and the youth projects funded.

1.2.1 Cost per participant

The unit cost per Haringey Guarantee participant was just over gQ_OT_Q_ths has been estimated by excluding the
costs and outputs of youth projects funded through programme, and Families Into Work). This includes the cost
of ail employment support, IAG, and training provided. As the chart below shows, amongst programmes
delivered via London boroughs (Thames Gateway Jobnet, Westminster Works for Residents, and the London
South Central Employment and Enterprise Programme), unit costs of delivery are relatively high. ESF
programmes have proven considerably more expensive to deliver, with unit costs exceeding £1,500 per
participant — this also applied to the Haringey Guarantee ESF extension with a cost per starter of £1,040.

These variations are likely due to the intensity of support provided (for example, Thames Gateway Jobnet
provided light touch support and referrals to rather than provision of training). However, many of the
programmes delivering these outputs were contracted to deliver the LDA output ‘employment support’ (2 hours

ECORYS

A2 =



Page 97

of IAG) rather than to move individuals into work, which may have encouraged programmes io target
engagement rather than employment outcomes. The Haringey Guaraniee encourages providers to target
employment outcomes, which may have resulted in a more intensive service provided fo participants.

Figure 1.3 Unit Cost Per Participant

2000

3800

1600

1400

1200

100G

Unlt Cost per Participant {£)
o
[=3
2

@
[~
=3

400

200 4

t

Thames Gateway  Wesiminster London South Haringey Landon All LDA ESF Co- ESF Oppostunities

Jobnat Warks for Central Guaraniee - Employmentand  lnanced Activity Programme
Residents - Employment & achiaved Q6 Training RAound 1
projected Enterprise 2010/11 Framework {LDA)
Programme

Source: Programme Evaluation Reports, Various

1.2.2Cost per entry to employment outcome

However, although the costs of supperting participants were higher than comparable programmes, the unit cost
per employment outcome was among the lowest amongst the sample of projects and programmes available (at
around £3,200). As the Haringey Guarantee tended to be amongst the more effective programmes in supported
individuals into employment, this resulted in lowsr unit costs for entry to employment outcomes.

ECORYS

A3




Figure 1.4 Unit Cost Per Person Supported Into Employment

14003

12000

10000

8000

6000 Ve

4000

Cost per Person Supported Into Employment (£}

2008

Thames Gateway Haringey Aelay Londen Landon Westminster All LDA ESF Co- ESF Qpportunities

Jobnat Guarantee - Jobs Employment and Works for financed Activity Programme
achieved G Training Residents - Aound 1
2010711 Framework (LDA) projected

Source: Programme Evaluation Report, Various

1.2.3 Sustained employment outcomes

The programmes for which Ecorys has detailed monitoring evidence did not monitor sustained employment
outcomes, and insufficient time has elapsed to allow the Haringey Guarantee to fully claim outputs sustained
after 13 and 26 weeks, making it difficult to make judgements with respect to VFM.

During 2009/10 and 2010/11, the LDA began contracting on the basis of a unit cost of £5,000 for an
employment outcome sustained for 12 months. If expenditure and outputs are delivered in line with targets, the
Haringey Guarantee will support 200 individuals into employment sustained for 6 months at a unit cost of £6,484
(again, this excludes any expenditure associated with the projects delivered by Northumberland Park School,
the Windsor Feiiowship, and Famiiies into Work]}, suggesting thai unit costs wiii be higher than anticipated by
the LDA. However, the North London Pledge 2 programme was contracted with the LDA on the basis of a unit
cost of £5,000 for each individual supported into employment for 6 months.

Ecorys are currently evaluating an LDA initiative contracted on the basis of £5,000 per employment cutcome
sustained for 12 months - CAP09 — and such unit costs for have not proved attainable, at least for a programme
focused on supporting low-income parents into employment.

1.2.4 Time taken to support an individual into work

On the basis of MegaNexus data taken in July 2010, on average, participants entered employment 114 days
after initial registration to enter employment. No comparator data was available {0 assess the effectiveness of
the Guarantee in this respect,

ECORYS

A4




Page 99

1.3 Alignment with the Work Programme

1.3.1 Overall objectives

The objectives of the Haringey Guarantee are broadly in line with those of the Work Programme - i.e. to support
individuals intc work. However, the Haringey Guarantee has a broader range of objectives, for example, fo
support the reductions in the number of young pecple NEET. These broader objectives will be less relevant to
the Work Programme, and a narrower focus will be required.

1.3.2 Opportunities for the Haringey Guarantee

The Work Programme will operate on a ‘black-box’ delivery model allowing prime contractors to subcontract to
providers that can deliver the ultimate objective of supporting individuals into work. This creates opportunities for
the Haringey Guarantee — the evidence suggests the programme is effective in supporting individuals into work,
and helping them sustain employment, that will likely make the programme attractive to prime contractors.

1.3.3 Provider Risk and Competition

The payment model introduces substantial risks to prime contractors. The payment model is staggered such
that attachment fees (£400-£600 in year 1} that are paid when a participant enters the Work Programme, fall in
each subsequent year to 0 percent of the contract value in year 4/5. Job outcomes are paid after a pericd of
fime (13 o 26 weeks) the participant has sustained employment, with further payments each additional 4 weeks
that outcome Is sustained. Sustained cutcome payments represent the greatest share of the overall contract
value, with incentive payments (paid when employment outcomes exceed expectations by 30 percent) taking on
increased importance over time.

This model is a departure from that used by the Haringey Guarantee. Although the Haringey Guarantee was
procured on the basis of a payment-by-resulis format of contract, what is notable about the Work Programme is
that no payments are made for intermediate activity, such as Better-Oif Calculations or Work Placements. if the
prime contractors pass on the payment model to subconiractors, providers will need to take on substantially
greater levels of risk. Given the average time taken to support an individual into employment of 114 days
(almost 4 months), this implies a long period in which no outcomes based funding would be received (i.e. from 7
to 10 months).

From the perspective of the prime contractors, this feature implies that only those approaches that have been
proven to be effective in delivering employment outcomes will be attractive. While the Haringey Guarantee has
proven effective in delivering employment cutcomes, there is variation across projects, and the programme has
been used fo trial new and innovative approaches that have not all proved successful. The Haringey Guaraniee
will have the mast to offer where it can maximise employment outcomes while minimising costs and risks, rather
trialling innovative approaches.

The tables below show the performance of providers against a range of indicators for Haringey Guarantee
projects. Focusing only on the best performing projects may be the most appropriate approach in light of the
financial risks introduced by the Work Programme. Note that the table does not cover all Haringey Guaraniee
providers, only those that have claimed employment cutputs.

ECORYS .

A5




Page 100

Table 1.1 Project Level Performance

Family Mosaic -

- Positive Em ploym en

ECORYS

A6




Page 101 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Cabinet 26 April 2011

Report Title. The Council’s Performance: February 2011 (Period 11)

Report of The Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate Resources

Signed :

Contact Officer : Margaret Gallagher — Performance Manager
Eve Pelekanos — Head of Policy & Performance
Telephone 020 8489 2971/2508

Kevin Bartle — Lead Finance Officer
Telephone 020 8489 5972

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

1.1.To report on an exception basis financial and performance information for the
year to February 2011.

1.2.To agree the budget virements set out in this report in accordance with financial
regulations.

1.3.To agree the recommendations set out in paragraph 4.




Page 102

. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Performance Management (Clir Claire
Kober)

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5

2.6

.1 am pleased to see that the Council has exceeded its annual target for the

number of social care clients receiving self-directed support. Importantly this
progress is also echoed in the positive feedback received from our service users
and carers. It is also encouraging that our ambition to become London’s greenest
borough continues with improved recycling rates and cleaner streets.

| am disappointed that the number of carers that are receiving a review and needs
assessment falls short of what we expect, and look forward to seeing further
progress in this area. | would also like to see improvements in the Council’s
response to public complaints, for which our targets are not currently being met.

Introduction by Cabinet Member for Finance & Sustainability (Clir Joe
Goldberg)

| draw attention to section 15 and to Appendix 2 which show that there has been
an £0.9m reduction in the projected overspend for the year which is now down to
£1.5m. This reduction is from a high of over £10m earlier in the financial year
when the government announced its in-year cuts in funding. There is, of course,
now a limited period within which the overspend can be eliminated however, the
continuing downward trend encourages me to believe that we will be closer to
having balanced the budget by the year end.

.There remain though real concerns about the level of demand for some key

services which highlights the need for us to reduce our unit costs in those areas
through improved efficiencies and procurement. The number of Looked After
Children went back up again in February and demand for both adult and housing
services remains high. These will doubtless be areas of concern throughout 2011-
12 as the economic climate continues to have a significant impact on both the
Council’s finances and those of our residents.

.Again | should highlight in paragraph 7.3 that the outturn figure assumes the use

of £1.7m unallocated ABG grant without which the overall financial position this
year would be worse. Directors must continue to push to bring the year end
figure down and to effectively manage unit costs as, with the pressure facing
Council budgets in 2011/12 and beyond, we can not afford to incur any budget
over spends.

State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1This report sets out performance against a number of indicators that measure

progress against the Council priorities and the Local Area Agreement targets.




Page 103

4 Recommendations

4.1To consider the report and the progress being made against the Council’s
priorities.

4.2 To agree the budget virement set out in this report in accordance with financial
regulations.

4.3To require Directors, where possible, to take necessary action to bring current
year spending to within their approved budget.

5 Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1To ensure that Members are kept informed about service and financial
performance against the priorities and targets set.

6 Summary (Performance)

6.1 Paragraph 14 and Appendix 1 of this report provide a summary of performance
for this reporting period. Of the 38 key service indicators monitored 26 have
improved since 2009/10; one is the same and seven are worse with no
comparison possible for 4 indicators. Some areas where targets are being met or
where there has been an improvement are highlighted below.

e The annual target of 30% for social care clients receiving self directed support
has been met a month early. Excellent progress has been made in this area
over the past few months.

e The time taken to process benefit claims reduced by a further day to 18 days in
February, 1 day short of the 17 day target but significantly better than this time
last year (28 days).

e Council tax due and received in the year so far exceeds target at 92.5%.The
increase in collection reflects work undertaken in respect of data cleansing and
the pro-active chasing of debt through available channels such as phone calls
and visits.

e An improvement in call centre performance in February with 88% of calls
answered in 30 seconds and the year to date position now meeting the target.

e The number of most serious violent crimes has reduced by 28.1% compared
with the same period last year.

e Recycling and cleanliness targets continue to be exceeded including the
cleanliness of our parks.

6.2 Areas where targets are not being met include:

e Carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, or
advice and information at 18.3% remain below target. An action plan to
improve both the recording of services for this indicator and services to Carers
is in place.

e Average re-let times for local authority dwellings was 33.9 days in February but
the direction of travel is positive. The year to date position is 36.3 days and




Page 104

remains above the 25 day target.

e A reduction of 242 households in temporary accommodation since March but
the rate of reduction has slowed and there remain more households in
temporary accommodation than planned for this point in the year.

7 Chief Financial Officer Comments

7.1There is a projected net over-spend at the year end of £1.5m based on the
position as at the end of February, a reduction from the £2.4m reported last period.
The main reason for this movement is a further increase in the Non-Service
Revenue (NSR) under-spend.

7.2 Although there has been no increase in the projected over-spend in Children and
Young Peoples’ Services (CYPS) the budget position for Looked after Children
(LAC) has worsened, with increases in numbers of both LAC and unaccompanied
minors. These additional costs have been offset by additional income and savings
in other budget areas however, in the next financial year these options will be
severely limited. As indicated last month, the LAC unit costs will therefore need to
be reduced going forward to ensure that the spend does not exceed the 2011-12
budget provision.

7.3Within the Council’s revenue budget as a whole, the underlying areas of pressure
remain unchanged and are caused by the high level of service demand particularly
within Children and Young Peoples’ Services (CYPS) along with the increased
financial liability due to changes in Housing Benefit Subsidy rules. The year end
projection still assumes that £1.7m of unallocated ABG is used to offset the
position.

7.4 As highlighted in previous reports, given the challenging 2011/12 grant
settlement, it remains imperative that the in year overspend in 2010/11 is
minimised to ensure that no additional pressure is placed on the tight budget
position in 2011/12 and beyond. There must be no let up in effort to bring the
budget in on target by the year-end and it is positive to note a reduction in the
Urban Environment (UE) forecast during this period.

7.5The Council’'s Non-Service Revenue (NSR) budget has increased the forecast
under-spend for the year by £0.5m to £3.5m. This is made up of a £1.0m
uncommitted general contingency; £2.0m reduction debt financing costs as a
result of the use of internal cash balances instead of external borrowing, and
additionally this period, a reduction in the projected outstanding single status
liability.

7.6 The dedicated schools budget (DSB) element of the overall CYPS budget is
projected to spend at budget.

7.7 The forecast revenue outturn for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is now an
under-spend of £0.8m which is an increase of £0.3m compared to that reported




Page 105

last period.

7.8 The projected capital year end variance, based on the February position, is an
under-spend of £19.7m compared to the £17.7m reported last period. The detail is
set out in section 15.

8 Head of Legal Services Comments

8.1 There are no specific legal implications in this report.

9 Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

9.1 Equalities are a central thread throughout the Council’s performance and many of
the indicators have equalities implications. Equality impact is considered alongside
performance by services.

10 Consultation

10.1 Throughout the year the report will show the results of consultation with
residents, service users and staff.

10.2 The Council consults widely on its budget proposals with residents, businesses,
service users and other interested parties.

11 Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
11.1  Appendix 1 details the indicators where performance is not meeting the target.

11.2 Appendix 1a February performance for top service outcomes (not attached)
http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/performance_and_finance/council_performance/perfo
rmance-reports/council_scorecards 2010 _11.htm

11.3 Appendix 2. Financial tables. The aggregate projected positions for revenue
and capital, proposed budget changes (virements) for approval in accordance
with financial regulations, and the Red, Amber Green (RAG) status of planned
savings and planned investments.

12 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

12.1 Budget management papers and HR metrics
12.2 Service Pl returns
12.3 Business Plans

13. Background

13.1 This is the February report for 2010/11, covering the period April 2010 to the end of
February 2011, detailing the Council’s performance against agreed targets for



13.2

14.

Page 106

2010/11. Financial and performance information is based on the financial
monitoring reports prepared for the budget and performance review meetings for
period 11.

We have revised our approach to performance reporting so that we focus on a
smaller number of indicators (38) that reflect the council’s priorities. These are
detailed in appendix 1a which can be accessed via this link:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/index/council/performance_and_finance/council_performance/performa
nce-reports/council_scorecards _2010_11.htm

Performance Highlights

Performance highlights in terms of service outcomes for February are as follows:

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

14.7

30% of adult social care clients are receiving self directed support — this remains
higher than the profiled target of 27.5% for this period and the annual target has
now been met. In addition the first ever National Personal Budget Survey for which
Haringey is one of 10 demonstrator sites has revealed some positive outcomes.
Although the survey is still in its early stages over 300 surveys have been sent to
both personal budget holders and their carers and of those who returned their
questionnaires 74% of service users said that their personal budget had “Made
things better or a lot better”.

Call centre performance improved in February to 88% telephone calls answered in
30 seconds and the year to date performance at 70% is now meeting the target.
There has been an improving trend in call answering over recent months and
performance is significantly better than at this time last year (23 percentage points
better than the figure reported in February 2010).

28.5% of household waste has been reused, recycled or composted in the year to
February exceeding the 27% target set for 2010/11. Recycling tonnage has
remained at a consistent level however, domestic waste (which is part of the
calculation of the recycling rate) has dipped markedly in the last month which has
the effect of increasing the recycling rate.

In the year to February 3.4% of streets were recorded as having unacceptable
levels of litter, better than the 10% target.

There have been 6,694 serious acquisitive crimes in the year to the end of
February, 107 fewer crimes when compared with the same period last year.

There have been 307 serious violent crimes in the period April to February, 28.1%
fewer when compared with the same period last year and exceeding the 4%
reduction target.

In the rolling year to February 8.25 days were lost due to sickness absence per full
time equivalent member of staff, bettering the 8.5 day target for the second
consecutive month.

Areas where targets are not currently being met include:



14.8

14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

Page 107

In the year April to February 1,571 public complaints (stage 1) have been received
across the council and 90% of these have been dealt with in the 10 day timescale,
the target is 93%. There has been a slight decline in performance since November
with monthly performance dipping below 90%, 85% in February.

18.3% of carers have received a review and a needs assessment and a specific
service. Whilst there has been continued progress in this area, performance is
below the levels achieved by this time last year and remains slightly short of the
target set for this period (22.6%). The service are confident that work in progress
should enable them to meet the target by the end of the financial year.

At the end of February, the average time taken to process new claims and change
events is 23 days for the year to date (18 days in February) against a 17 day
target. Despite the ever increasing caseload (currently at the highest point that it
has ever been), the Service has managed to ensure that performance against this
indicator continues to steadily improve despite the unprecedented demand for
assistance which the service is receiving. Further improvement in performance is
also predicted for March. We continue to monitor demand and have developed
further control reports which allow us to make informed decisions on the allocation
of resources. The continual promotion of e-benefits and our close working
partnership with Customer Services will continue to be key to performance
improvement in this area. We continue to monitor demand and have developed
further control reports which allow us to make informed decisions on the allocation
of resources. The continual promotion of e-benefits and our close working
partnership with Customer Services will continue to be key to performance
improvement in this area.

E-benefits continues to be a resounding success both in terms of performance and
customer perception. Benefit claims submitted through e-benefits are currently
paid within 15 days (target 32 days) and 88% of all e-benefit claims are paid within
the 32 day target. The take up of e-benefits has continued to increase and
Customer Services now issue 91% less paper forms than they did before e-
benefits was introduced, making a value for money saving for the service in terms
of design, printing and paper cost.

In February performance improved to 73.9% of children’s social care initial
assessments carried out in 10 working days and 65% of core assessments
completed in 35 days both against a 70% target. The year to date positions are
66.2% and 60.5% respectively. There has been an increased level of court work
and efforts to complete older core assessments with a Head of Service audit and
review of assessments older than 40 days. The focus continues to be on providing
high quality and analytical work and the assessment process continues to form
part of a regular programme of audits of quality of practice

Although the number of households in Temporary Accommodation reduced by 253
during the year, the rate of reduction started to slow in August 2010 and the
Council's use of Temporary Accommodation has remained fairly constant
since January 2011. This was due, inthe main, to the severe shortage of



14.14

15.
15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

Page 108

affordable private rented accommodation in Haringey and neighbouring boroughs.
This has reduced the Council’s ability to prevent homelessness and rehouse
Temporary Accommodation residents in the private rented sector. Proposed
changes to Local Housing Allowance (LHA) rates have also had an adverse effect
on housing supply and landlord confidence

The average re-let time for local authority dwellings was 33.9 days in February, for
the year to date it is 36.3 days. This is an amalgamation of relet times 45.6 days
for supported housing and 28.5 days for general needs. There is a positive
direction of travel on this measure but performance remains below the target of 25
days.

Finance

There is a projected net over-spend at the year end of £1.5m based on the position
as at the end of February, a reduction from the £2.4m reported last period. The
main reason for this movement is a further increase in the Non-Service Revenue
(NSR) under-spend. An analysis of the main variations within each directorate is
set out in the following paragraphs.

Adults are continuing to experience high client numbers, but are mitigating much of
this pressure with a vacancy factor against all non-statutory positions: to date this
has been a successful strategy. The year-end forecast has worsened slightly this
period and there is now a projected over-spend of £0.1m, largely caused by cost
pressures within Mental Health. NHS Haringey has reviewed funding for a number
of service users which has resulted in a reduction in Health contributions to
packages primarily in Mental Health services. The impact in the current financial
year is a funding reduction of approximately £1.2m.

The estimated outturn for the Children and Young People’s Service remains at
£7.7m above budget as reported last period. Both the numbers of Looked after
Children (LAC) and unaccompanied minors increased during February by eleven
and 5 respectively. However, the service continue to maximise grant and other
income which has enabled the projection to remain at the P10 figure.

The Urban Environment directorate has reduced the year end forecast again this
month and it now stands at £0.3m over spent compared to the £0.7m reported in
January. The main change has been within Safer & Stronger Communities as
spend in Neighbourhood Management is effectively frozen ahead of the
disestablishment of the unit. There have also been efficiencies within Front Line
Services and Planning, Regeneration and Economy.

The February year end forecast for Corporate Resources remains as an under-
spend of £0.5m. There has been little overall change with the cost pressures
continuing to be the high levels of service demand and problems in dealing with
backlog claims in the early part of the year within the Benefits and Local Taxation



15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

Page 109

service, and under achievement of commercial rent income due to low occupancy
at Technopark. The restrictions on discretionary spend and recruitment along with
other interim savings are still forecast to both offset the pressures being felt and
also to deliver the under-spend reported.

The forecast outturn under-spend for the three Chief Executive directorates
(Policy, Performance, Partnerships & Communications (PPP&C), People &
Organisational Development (POD) and the Chief Executives (CE)) has increased
by £0.1m during February and now shows a combined under spend of £0.8m The
under-spend is mainly due to the impact of the restrictions on discretionary spend.

During February the year end forecast for Non-service revenue (NSR), which
largely consists of budgets for capital financing costs, levies and contingencies,
has changed by £0.5m and now stands at an under-spend of £3.5m. This figure is
made up of the uncommitted £1.0m general contingency built into the 2010/11
budget and an under-spend of £2.0m against the debt financing costs due to the
use of internal cash balances in lieu of borrowing. However, additionally this
period, there is a £0.5m reduction in the forecast single status liability. The
Alexandra Palace and Park Trust continues to work to maximise the profit
generated by APTL and keep discretionary expenditure to a minimum although the
delay to the re-opening of the ice rink has inevitably had an impact on income
levels and the year end forecast over-spend is now likely to exceed the £100k
previously reported.

The under-spend in respect to the 2010/11 unallocated Area Based Grant reported
previously is still being used to help offset the net over-spend in other service
areas. As discussed in previous reports, Directors are still expected to work at
bringing forecast over-spends down as it would be more beneficial to have
recourse to this sum to smooth the transition into 2011/12.

The RAG status of agreed 2010/11 revenue savings and investments is shown in
Appendix 2 and has not changed this period. Only 2% (£0.140m) of savings is
currently flagged as red and is largely due to under-achievement of planned
external income. This is factored into the directorate year end forecasts.

Treasury Management

15.10 The Treasury Management activity in 2010/11 continues to be compliant with the

Treasury Management Strategy Statement agreed in February 2010. Following
the repayment of maturing debt in October, the level of cash balances dropped,
and in February averaged £21m. Investments have been limited to AAA rated
money market funds and an instant access account to ensure sufficient liquidity is
maintained. These accounts pay an interest rate equivalent to one month fixed
term deposits but have the advantage of instant access. Due to the significant use
of money market funds, the average long term credit rating of the portfolio has
been maintained at AA+.



15.11

Page 110

£50m of Council debt has matured this financial year which had in part been
refinanced through £20m of new borrowing in August 2010. Due to the significant
difference between short term investment interest rates and long term borrowing
rates, the Council had continued to finance the balance through the use of internal
cash balances. However, the Council’s cash flow position became such that it was
necessary to undertake further longer term borrowing of £27m during February
2011 albeit at very competitive rates of interest. Officers will continue to monitor
the position closely in consultation with the Council’'s treasury management
advisers.

Capital

15.12

15.13

15.14

15.15

15.16

The aggregate capital programme position for 2010/11 is as shown in Appendix 2
and at Period 11 is forecasting an under-spend of £19.7m, an increase of £2.0m
from the £17.7m under-spend reported in period 10. The change is not due to any
one large variation but is spread across most directorates. The detail behind the
figures is set out by Directorate in the following paragraphs

The Adults, Culture and Community Services forecast under-spend has increased
from £1.4m to £1.8m. The variance is still principally due to slippage on the
Broadwater Farm Community Centre, Muswell Hill Library and the Lordship
Recreation projects.

The projected under-spend on the Urban Environment general fund capital
programme remains at £2.8m in P11. This is largely in relation to the Marsh Lane
project which is on hold until the options to fill the funding gap are reviewed. In the
interim the site is being advertised for rental. The HRA capital programme is now
forecasting a small under-spend of £0.7m spread across a variety of projects.

The Corporate Resources Period 11 forecast remains largely unchanged with an
under-spend of £5.3m. As outlined last period, some £1.9m of this relates to the IT
programme where approximately £0.9m budget remains unallocated and a further
£1.0m is due to the profiling of payments on key projects which will result in the
actual expenditure falling into the next financial year. The Hornsey Town Hall
project continues to forecast slippage of £0.8m against budget caused by the time
needed to assess the optimum overall proposal for the site. The Accommodation
Strategy programme has been forecasting sizeable slippage this year as the
programme was put on hold whilst a comprehensive review was undertaken as a
result of the downturn in the property market and the anticipated changes to staff
structure. Following Cabinet approval of the revised plan in December 2010 a
virement to re-phase £2.7m of the budget into 2011/12 has been proposed which
will be reflected in P12 figures.

The Non-BSF programme is now projecting an overall reduction against planned
budget for the year of £1.5m. This is a £0.3m increase over last period and is
largely due to a more accurate forecast as a number of Primary Capital
Programme projects near completion. As highlighted last period, the main reason

10



Page 111

for the overall under-spend is the re-profiling of the cash flow for the Broadwater
Farm Integrated Learning Campus scheme: with the movement of £1.7m of
expenditure into the next financial year. However the project remains on schedule
overall with good progress being made on site.

15.17 The BSF capital programme overall continues to forecast a balanced position
although some further re-profiling of expenditure into 2011/12 has been made this
month. This is largely due to recent approved use of programme contingency
requiring profiling into future years. Expenditure on all school construction projects
is on target for the year, with 10 of the 12 school projects now completed and
closed.

15.18 The target level of in year receipts from asset disposals is £2m. The actual usable
receipts generated to date against this target are £6.392m. The current forecast for
this year based on latest progress on remaining disposals is approximately £6.6m,
slightly above the figure reported last month of £6.2m. A number of the usable
receipts generated are already ring-fenced by Members for specific purposes and
will therefore not be available to generally supplement the capital programme. The
forecast excess receipts result from the identification of additional properties
considered surplus to requirement and recommended for disposal in this financial
year and also actions to bring forward some disposals planned for 2011/12 to
2010/11.

Virements
15.19 There is one request for virement approval of £2.7m relating to the Corporate

Resources capital budget for the accommodation strategy as detailed in paragraph
15.15 above.

11



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 113

Appendix 1
ACCS
% of carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, or advice and information
NI 135
- YTD (LAA)
Status: YTD against February 2011 Current Target: Polarity:
last year
Red 3 18.3% 22.6% Ao
Rationale

This indicator measures the number of carers whose needs were assessed or reviewed by the council in a year who received a specific carer’s
service, or advice and information in the same year as a percentage of people receiving a community based service in the year.

Related Pls
The number of adults receiving a community-based service during the year 2010/11 4460
Number of carers receiving a specific carers service, advice or information, following a carer’s assessment or review |2010/11 818

Monthly Performance

ACOZ_P_N0135 % of carers receiving needs assessment or review and a specific carer’s service, or advice and information - YTD (LAA)

22.5% 1
20,0% 1
17.5% A
15.0% A
12.5% A
10.0% -
7.5% A
5.0% A
2.5% A
0% -
— Target (Months)
Comment Past Performance and Benchmarking
Please be advised that there are currently 282 carer's assessments Value London Average
to be added tq I_:ramework—l by the epd of March 2011. _\Ne_anticipate 2008/09 29.1% 21.0%
that these additional assessments will ensure that we will hit the end
of year target. Managers have a clear work plan and timeline to 2009710 21:2% 24.6%
ensure this work is completed. Value
April 2010 2.1%
May 2010 4.6%
June 2010 8.2%
July 2010 10.7%
August 2010 10.2%
September 2010 11.9%
October 2010 13.2%
November 2010 14.9%
December 2010 15.6%
January 2011 17.6%
February 2011 18.3%
March 2011




Page 114

CR
NI 181 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new claims and change events (days)
Status: YTD against 2010/11 Current Target: Polarity:
last year
Aim to
Red * 23 7 Minimise
Rationale

This indicator is designed to ensure that local authorities deal promptly with both new claims to HB and CTB and change of circumstances

reported by customers receiving those benefits.

Related Pls

Monthly Performance

32,5

30

27.5

CROZ_H_NO0181 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new claims and change events (days)

— Targek (Months)

Comment

Past Performance and Benchmarking

Despite the ever increasing caseload (currently at it's highest point
that it has ever been), the Service has managed to ensure that
performance against this indicator continues to steadily improve
despite the unprecedented demand for assistance which the service
is receiving. We continue to monitor demand and have developed
further control reports which further allow us to make informed
decisions on the allocation of resources. The continual promotion of
e-benefits and our close working partnership with Customer Services
will continue to be key to performance improvement in this area.

Value London Average
2008/09 18.3
2009/10 24 11.9
Value

April 2010 32
May 2010 29
June 2010 28
July 2010 28
August 2010 28
September 2010 23
October 2010 22
November 2010 20
December 2010 20
January 2011 19
February 2011 18

March 2011




Page 115

CYPS
NI 59 (10 — . , . . T .
days) Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 10 working days of referral
. YTD against . .
Status: last year 2010/11 Current Target: Polarity:
Aim to
Red B 66.2% 70% A e
Rationale

This process indicator is included as a proxy as robust data is not available for outcomes of improved child safety. Initial assessments are an
important indicator of how quickly services can respond when a child is thought to be at risk of serious harm. As the assessments involve a
range of local agencies, this indicator would also show how well multi-agency working arrangements are established in local authority areas

The number of initial assessments completed in the period between 1 April and 31 March, within ten working days of referral, as a percentage of
the number of initial assessments completed in the period between 1 April and 31 March.

Related Pls

The number of initial assessments completed within ten working days of referral 2010/11 1261
Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 7 working days of referral (LAA) 2010/11 31%
The overall of initial assessments completed in the period 2010/11 1904

Monthly Performance

CY0Z2_H_L0605 Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 10 working days of referral

T5% A
72.5% A
F0%

67.5% 1
65% 1
62.5% 1
60% -
57.5% 1
559 1
52,5% A

— Target (Months)

Comment Past Performance and Benchmarking

The timescale for completion of initial assessments has changed Value

from 2010/11 to allow 10 days for initial assessments to be 2009/10

completed rather than 7 to ensure an early and timely view is taken

of children’s needs. The year to date percentage of assessments Value

completed in 10 days is 66% against a plan of 70%. The February April 2010 63.3%

position for this indicator showed much improvement with 136 out of

o o May 2010 75.4%

184 initial assessments completed in timescale, 74%. Assessment ”
processes and timeliness are subject to on-going monitoring, review June 2010 64.4%
and audit. July 2010 63.4%
August 2010 63.5%

September 2010 66.2%

October 2010 73.8%

November 2010 61.2%

December 2010 69.1%

January 2011 53.9%

February 2011 73.9%




Page 116

Percentage of core assessments for children’s social care that were carried out within 35 working days

NI 60
(LAA)
Status: YTD against 2010/11 Current Target: Polarity:
last year
Aim to
0, 0,
Red @ 60.5% 70% o
Rationale
This indicator measures the percentage of core assessments which were completed within 35 working days.
Related Pls
The total number of core assessments completed 2010/11 1149
The number of core assessments that had been completed within 35 working days 2010/11 695

Monthly Performance

CY0Z2_H_MN0060 Percentage of core assessments for children's social care that were carried out within 35 working days (LAA)

70% A
67.5% A
65% 1
62.5% 1
60% -
57.5% 1
55% 1
52.5% 1
50% 1
47.5% A

— Targek (Months)

Comment

Past Performance and Benchmarking

There has been an increase in cores completed in the month partly
due to a focus on completion of older core assessments outstanding,
therein affecting overall timeliness. The Head of Service for First
Response is in the process of undertaking an audit and review of
assessments older than 40 days.

Value London Average
2008/09 80.4%
2009/10 47.3% 73%
Value
April 2010 50%
May 2010 50.8%
June 2010 67.9%
July 2010 62.7%
August 2010 48.4%
September 2010 69.6%
October 2010 52.9%
November 2010 68%
December 2010 65.1%
January 2011 64.2%
February 2011 65%

March 2011




Page 117

UE
NI 156 Number of households living in temporary accommodation (LAA)
Status: YTD against 2010/11 Current Target: Polarity:
last year
Aim to
Red % 3,305 2,678 A
Rationale

This indicator measures the numbers of households living in temporary accommodation provided under the homelessness legislation.

Related Pls

Monthly Performance

3,700 4
3,600 1
3,500 1
3,400 1
3,300 4
3,200 1
3,100 1
3,000 1
2,900 4
2,800 1
2,700 4

UE06_H_MN0156 Number of households living in temporary accommodation (LAA)

— Target (Months)

Comment

Past Performance and Benchmarking

Temporary Accommodation numbers levelled off in February 2011.
This was due, in the main, to the severe shortage of affordable
private rented accommodation in Haringey and neighbouring
boroughs. This has reduced the Council’s ability to prevent
homelessness and rehouse Temporary Accommodation residents in
the private rented sector. Proposed changes to LHA rates have also
had an adverse effect on housing supply and landlord confidence.

Value London Average

2008/09 4,548 1,448

2009/10 3,547 1,183
Value
April 2010 3,520
May 2010 3,496
June 2010 3,454
July 2010 3,425
August 2010 3,370
September 2010 3,341
October 2010 3,321
November 2010 3,305
December 2010 3,296
January 2011 3,298
February 2011 3,305

March 2011




Page 118

I2_(1)266 BV Average relet times for local authority dwellings (calendar days)

Status: YTD against 2010/11 Current Target: Polarity:

last year
Aim to
Red % 36.3 days 25 days A o

Related Pls
Number of voids becoming ready to let February 2011 38
Number of council lets made February 2011 50
Average general needs relet times for local authority dwellings(calendar days) 2010/11 32.4 days
Average supported housing relet times for local authority dwellings (calendar days) 2010/11 50.6 days

Monthly Performance

UEO7_H_L0066 Average relet times for local authority dwellings (calendar days)

50 days 1
45 days 1
40 days 1
35 days 4
30 days 1
25 days 1

20 days 1

— Target (Months)

Comment

Past Performance and Benchmarking

The figure provided for February 2011 is only provisional until approved by HfH’s
EMT Board. HfH will provide a commentary following the EMT Board meeting and
therefore the commentary provided relates to last month's performance.

The commentary below relates to the previous months performance for January
2011:

The Homes for Haringey Voids Team are turning around the minor works (VAV) voids
available at 17.0 calendar days, slightly behind their 15-day target. Over the course
of the year, this has consistently moved in the right direction, contributing to the
general reduction in the headline ex BV212 void figure. Void turn-around
performance, declined in January to 28.8 calendar days from 19.8 days a month
earlier. However, the longer-term trend remains positive. Performance in December
was strong and there was a slight shift back in January. However, despite the
general negative direction of travel for the month, performance is still trending
positively. Despite a monthly increase in the number of days to re-let a void
property, the January figure of 28.8 calendar days was the second lowest return for
over a year. As mentioned, void turnaround performance increased to 28.8 days in
January, nine days more than the previous month. This however is broadly in line
with the third quarter performance of 28.0 days. Consequently, the movement
should be considered a return to trend rather than a precipitous fall in performance.
Indeed, the longer-term movement is positive, with reducing turnaround times in
four of the last five months. There were 48 new tenancies that started in January, 9
of which were in sheltered housing. HouseMark benchmarked top quartile
performance on this indicator was 21.5 calendar days.

Value
2008/09 44.3 days
2009/10 44.6 days

Value
April 2010 31.1 days
May 2010 48.1 days
June 2010 50.1 days
July 2010 37.1 days
August 2010 46.1 days
September 2010 34.2 days
October 2010 32.5 days
November 2010 31.9 days
December 2010 19.8 days
January 2011 28.8 days
February 2011 33.9 days

March 2011




Page 119

Table 1: Revenue 2010/11 - The aggregate revenue
projected position in 2010/11 is shown in the following
table.

Appendix 2

Approved Budget | Projected variation
£m £m

Children and Young People 70.6 7.7
Adults, Culture & Community 78.6 01
Corporate Resources 6.1 (0.5))
Urban Environment 56.9| 0.3
Policy, Performance, Partnerships & 1.7 0.0
Communications

People, Organisation & Development (0.7 (0.8)]
Chief Executive 1.0} 0.1
Non-service revenue 29.3 (3.5)|
Unallocated Area Based Grant 1.7 (1.7)|
Total - General Fund 2451 1.5
Children and Young People (DSG) - Non-Schools 0.0] 0.0]
Children and Young People (DSG) - ISB 0.0} 0.0|
Total - Dedicated Schools Grant 0.0 0.0
Total - Housing Revenue Account 2.9 (0.8)




Page 120

Table 2: Capital 2010/11 - The aggregate capital projected position in 2010/11 is as shown in the follow

Capital Approved Spend to | Projected
Budget date variation
£m £m £m
Children & Young People
BSF Schools Capital Programme 62.9 47.6 (7.5)
Primary Capital Programme 9.9 6.4 (1.1)
Early Years, Community and Access 4.1 2.6 (0.1)
Planned Asset Maintenance 0.9 1.3
Devolved Schools Capital 1.6 0.0
Social care and other 0.4 0.1 (0.3)
Total - Children & Young People 79.7 57.9| (9.1)
Libraries 1.1 0.5 (0.5)
Agency (DFG) 1.6 1.2
Housing Aids & Adaptations 1.5 1.2
Lordship Recreation Grounds 0.9 0.3 (0.6)
Sports and Leisure Improvement Programme 0.9 0.8
Play Provisions 0.7 0.0 (0.2)
Other schemes/projects under £1m 2.5 1.4 (0.5)
Total - Adults, Culture & Community 9.1 5.5 (1.8)
Corporate Resources
Information Technology 2.6 0.7 (1.9)
Property Services 0.2 0.1
Corporate Management of Property 0.9 0.5 (0.1)
Accommodation Strategy Phase 2 3.2 0.4 (2.8)
Hornsey Town Hall 1.2 0.3 (0.9)
Alexandra Palace - Replacement Ice Rink& 28 (0.1)
Repairs& Maintenance
Other schemes/projects under £1m 0.3 0.4 0.3
Total - Corporate Resources 1.1 2.3 (5.3)
Urban Environment — General Fund
Parking Plan 0.6 0.4
Street Lighting 0.8 0.6
BorRds,H'Ways Resurfacing 2.6 1.9
TFL 4.2 3.0
Marsh Lane Depot Project - GAF 3 2.8 0.5 (2.3)
Tottenham Gyratory 3.6 2.9
Other schemes/projects under £1m 3.0 1.7 (0.6)
Total - Urban Environment — General Fund 17.5 10.9| (2.8)
Urban Environment - HRA
Planned Preventative Maintenance 3.0 2.3 0.3
Housing Extensive Void Works 1.2 1.0 0.1
Boiler Replacement 2.4 2.2 (0.0)
Capitalised Repairs 4.4 4.0
Lift Improvements 1.5 1.0 (0.3)
Decent Homes Standard 33.5 25.2 1.5
Mechanical & Electrical Works 3.0 0.5 (1.5)
Professional Fees 1.4 1.5 0.3
Fire Protection Work 1.6 1.3 (0.2)
Other schemes/projects under £1m 3.0 1.1 (0.9)
Total - Urban Environment - HRA 55.0| 40.1 (0.7)
Total- Haringey Capital Programme 172.5 116.7 (19.7)

Appendix 2



Page 121

Appendix 2

Table 3: RAG status of planned savings and planned investments

Council Wide 2010011 Feb-11
Savings and Investments Target

£'000
Planned Savings - Red 180
Planned Savings - Amber 469
Planned Savings - Green 8,004 7,355
Planned Investments - Red 0
Planned Investments - Amber 0
Planned Investments - Green 8,899 8,899




Page 122

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet On 26 April 2011

Report Title. Hornsey Town Hall Refurbishment and Redevelopment

Report of Director of Corporate Resources

Signed : Tras H/Lf-'/”

Contact Officer: David Williamson 020 8489 2929

Wards(s) affected: Crouch End Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.  To decide on the preferred option for the regeneration of part of the Hornsey
Town Hail Complex (including the Homsey Town Halt building) and approve
the disposal of that part of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex and to seek
approval to market the rest of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex on the open
market.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1. Since 2003, when Hornsey Town Hall was identified as being surplus to the
Council's accommodation needs, the Council has consulted with stakeholders
on its future use. The Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust have been especially
constructive in finding a long term solution to the challenge and in 2010 were
instrumental in developing a planning application for the site which was given
planning consent in December 2010.

2.2. Extensive work has been done to find a solution that will be both financially
self-sustainable and provide community benefits, which has not been easy in
current times. This report recommends the proposals by Mountview Academy
of Theatre Arts as a solution which meets the project objectives.




Page 124

2.3.

2.4,

Mountview is a well established charitable organisation. It has previously been
located in Crouch End, near to Homsey Town Hall. There are clear benefits in
having Mountview at Homsey Town Hall, many of which will be attractive to the
local community. Mountview is renowned internationally for its achievements
and has ambitious plans for its future at Hornsey Town Hall.

In the current climate we need to ensure a sustainable plan for the
regeneration of the Hornsey Town Hall. The proposals in this report provide an
opportunity to meet the shared objectives of the Council and residents in
delivering a sustainable business solution alongside a strong dividend for the
community which sees the Town Hall restored and regenerated to its rightful
place within the heart of Hornsey.

. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The vision for Hornsey Town Hall, deveioped by the Council working in a
community partnership with the Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust is:

"A world class model of civic renaissance, an arena for all, which
harnesses the spirit of progress, community, creativity and enterprise for
future generations in Haringey, London and beyond",

This vision is complimentary to the Haringey Sustainable Community Strategy
(2007).

Hornsey Town Hall was identified as surplus to the Council’s needs in 2003. It
is a Grade II* listed building and currently on English Heritage’s ‘Buildings at
Risk’ register. The Council has an obligation to ensure the building is
maintained in good condition.

The Council’'s Accommodation Strategy sets out to rationalise the Council's
Office portfolio. Older buildings such as Hornsey Town Hall have become
increasingly unsuitable for modern and compliant working environments —
particularly when constrained by listed building status.

. Recommendations

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

To declare the land shown edged red on the attached Ordnance Survey Plan
BVES A4 0825q , known as the Homsey Town Hall Complex, as surplus to
requirements in its present use as General Fund property.

Under the provisions of s.122 of the Local Government Act 1972, to
appropriate the land and buildings known as the Hormsey Town Hall Compiex
and shown edged red on the attached Plan BVES A4 0825q for planning
purposes.

To proceed with Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts Limited as the Council’s
preferred option for the area shown shaded orange on the attached Plan BVES

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 125

4.4,

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

A4 0825g and known as the Town Hall Site in meeting the objectives of the
Hornsey Town Hall Renaissance project.

Approve the disposal of the Town Hall Site to Mountview Academy of Theatre
Arts Limited for the sum of one pound, to mitigate the Council’'s future liability
for this Grade II* listed building and subject to such terms and conditions as
shall be agreed pursuant to paragraph 4.5 below.

Delegate authority to the Director of Corporate Resources and Chief Finance
Officer in consultation with the Lead member for Finance and Sustainability to
agree the Heads of Terms for disposal of the Town Hall Site to Mountview
Academy of Theatre Arts Limited and to approve the final version of the
Agreement for Lease and Lease. A draft of the Heads of Terms is attached as
an appendix (Exempt) to this report.

If in the event that Mountview Academy of Theaire Arts Limited is unable to
comply with the provisions of the Agreement for Lease, provide a further report
to Cabinet to seek approval for any other viable option for the Town Hall Site.

Approve the marketing of the remainder of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex
being the land shown shaded blue in the attached Plan BVES A4 0825q with
the purpose of seeking a residential developer and provide a further report to
Cabinet on the preferred bidder once the marketing exercise has been
completed.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

51.

5.2

5.3.

5.4,

The Homsey Town Hall Complex was declared surplus to requirements in
2003, since when extensive research has been carried out to establish a
sustainable future use for the property.

The land shown edged red on the attached Ordinance Survey Plan Drawing
BVES A4 0825q , known as the Hormsey Town Hall Complex, is surplus to
requirements in its present use as General Fund Property.

In 2010 after full consultation, planning consent was approved for the
development of the site. To enable development, under the provisions of 5.122
of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council is required to appropriate the

land and buildings set out in attached Drawing BVES A4 0825q for planning
purposes.

To achieve the objectives of the Hornsey Town Hall Renaissance Project,
which are (inter alia) to:

e Restore the Hornsey Town Hall in a way that respects its Grade lI* listed
building status and safeguards its future by providing financially sustainable
spaces fit for purpose.

o Facilitate cultural, community and other activities in the Town Hali, provide
public access to the building and make a positive contribution to the local

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 126

5.5.

economy.

The Mountview proposal best meets these objectives within a reasonable
timescale, with limited costs to the Council and to the greatest benefit to the
community.

6. Appropriation of Land under Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

Appropriation is the statutory procedure changing the purpose for which land is
held by the Council from one statutory purpose to another, provided that that
land is no longer required for the purpose for which it was held immediately
before the appropriation.

At present the Homsey Town Hall Complex is being held for General Fund
purposes. The Council no longer has any use for the site, which is therefore
surplus to its requirements, and wishes to see it redeveloped.

Appropriation to planning purposes will enable the Council to secure its
redevelopment and future use by relying on the statutory provisions relating to
the redevelopment and disposal of land held for planning purposes. These
provisions will facilitate the marketing of the land and also support the Council
in fulfilling its obligation to obtain best consideration in the sale of the land.

7. The proposed preferred way forward - Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts

7.1.

The Mountview Proposal comprises:

» The refurbishment for educational, community and heritage
purposes of that part of the Homsey Town Halt Complex shown
shaded orange on the attached plan BVES A4 0825q (“Town Hall
Site”);

» The accommodation of Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts, a well
established higher education provider in the field, as the head

Lessee for the part of the site shown shaded orange in the attached
drawing;

¢ A range of community benefits including:

o access to and vibrant use of spaces currently not open to the
public,

o opportunities to explore the architectural interest of the
building,

o increased opportunities for local businesses and

o the establishment of a major new centre for arts education
and training.

¢ __Financial independence from the Council for the repairs and

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 127

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.
7.9.

7.10.

maintenance of the building for the full period of the lease.

A Joint Working Group (JWG) comprising representatives of Hornsey
Town Hall Creative Trust and Haringey Council officers evaluated the
Mountview proposal alongside several other options. The group developed
an agreed set of evaluation criteria based on the vision for and core
objectives of the regeneration project.

The JWG concluded that the Mountview proposals met very well almost all
of the agreed objectives of the project. The Mountview proposal was
judged to have a robust business plan which includes a commitment to a
full repairs and maintenance lease of this Grade II* listed building and
meets the broader objectives for community benefit.

In its funding strategy there is a clear commitment from Mountview to
capital investment from its current reserves. A further sum will need to be
raised and although this will be a major challenge in the current economic
climate, the funding strategy gives a compelling case for achieving this
target through a combination of funding methods.

At their own risk, Mountview has commissioned designers to establish the
feasibility of using Horsey Town Hall. The results show that the site
provides an opportunity to meet their needs both now and into the future.

The Mountview proposals will mean that a smaller proportion of the site will
be used for housing, with 78 residential units being built instead of the 123
units envisaged in the planning consent. All of the Hornsey Town Hall
building will be occupied by Mountview, including the assembly hall. A
further extension, similar to that proposed for part of the residential
element in the planning consent, will form a new studio classroom block.
The proposals will require a revised planning application and the consent
of English Heritage.

Mountview has an ambitious programme of activities that wili bring
extensive community benefit, both at Hornsey Town Hall and across the
borough.

(Exempt information).

Should Cabinet approve Mountview as the preferred option to go forward,
there will then be a period where the Heads of Terms are agreed and the
Agreement for Lease is entered into. Additionally, a funding agreement will
provide the mechanism for the Council to re-invest any surplus capital from
the land sale of the residential element of the scheme into the
refurbishment of the Town Hall building.

The Town Hali Site will be disposed of to Mountview on a leasehold basis
for a sum of one pound and the lease will be granted at a peppercorn rent
for a term of 125 years. The reason for disposal at this value is that:

» The site has been surplus to the Council's accommodation
requirements since 2003

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 128

o The liability for this Grade II* listed building will become the
responsibility of Mountview for the period of the lease;

e Mountview will bring significant capital investment to the project

¢ There are long term regenerative benefits of having a respected
charitable educational organisation located in the area

7.11. The area shaded orange on the attached Plan BVES A4 0825q shows the
extent of the land known as the Town Hall Site and which will be the
subject of the proposed lease.

7.12. The terms and conditions on which the Council will dispose to Mountview
will be agreed through the delegated authority of the Director of Corporate
Resources, the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the Lead Member
for Finance and Sustainability. The negotiations with Mountview will be
based on the draft Heads of Terms attached to this report.

7.13. Any Agreement for Lease will be subject to a number of conditions
precedents which must be met within an agreed time limit before the lease
can be granted. The conditions proposed are that Mountview will provide:

1) A pian for the works on the Town Hall, to be approved by the Head
of Corporate Property Services on behalf of the Council;

2) Detailed planning and listed building consent for the proposed
Mountview scheme, including from English Heritage;

3) A funding plan showing how the capital sum is to be met within
agreed timescales to be submitted to the Chief Finance Officer for
due diligence; The funding plan should include:

|. The contribution to be made from Mountview's reserves and
any approved borrowing;

Il. Any contribution made by Haringey Council from net receipts
from the land sale of the remainder of the Hornsey Town Hall
Complex;

ll. Details of approved capital awards, grants and other funding
mechanisms needed to meet the costs of the Mountview
scheme, verifiable by the Chief Finance Officer of Haringey
Council;

IV. A phasing plan linked to the conditions of the Council's funding
agreement;

4) The mechanism for ensuring public benefit is maintained for the
duration of the lease, agreed by the Head of Corporate Property.

5) Robust governance, project and risk management in place;
6) Procurement arrangements that meets statutory requirements;

7.14. On submission of this information, the Council will commission an
independent due diligence report reviewing the Mountview proposal,

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 129

including the conditions. If the due diligence report is favourable, no other
issues are outstanding and the agreement of the Secretary of State has
been received, the Lease will be granted.

7.15. The remainder of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex will be the subject of a

separate process to find a private residential developer. This report seeks
authority to market that part of the Hormsey Town Hall complex on the
open market with a view to selecting a preferred bidder and a further report
will be brought before Cabinet on this issue in due course.

7.16. Section 6 of this report deals with appropriation of the land on the whole of

the Hormnsey Town Hall Complex.

. Other options considered

8.1

.A wide range of options has been explored by the Council and the Hornsey Town

Hall Creative Trust over a number of years.

8.2.The ‘do nothing’ option was considered alongside others, but is not recommended

8.3.

because the buildings have no further use as office accommodation for the
Council and any other use will require significant investment. The vacant buildings
have high annual running costs, even in a vacant state, and costly works need to
be done to the fabric of the building to bring it up to and maintain it in reasonable
condition.

The Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust was established in 2007 to find a viable
solution to the operation of the Town Hall. The Trust's vision was to run the Town
Hall as a community, arts and cuitural venture. By early 2010 a design was
developed which articulated the Trust’s vision and extensive work has been done
on business modelling. But the uncertainties of setting up a new venture of this
kind in the current economic climate led to the Trust's conclusion that it would
need continuing financial support from the Council, at least for the first few years.
However, Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust continues to provide valuable advice
on community benefits. They will also have an imporiant role into the future,
whether that is with Mountview as the Lesee or any other option.

8.4.The Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust has worked closely with Council officers to

8.5.

evaluate the range of options. A joint working group (JWG) defined agreed
evaluation criteria, based on the project objectives, and applied them to the range
of options, including those from the Trust itself.

The outcome of this and previous work is that two options emerged as having the
greatest likelihood of success:

o Option 1:

(a) Disposal of part of the Homsey Town Hall Complex to Mountview
Academy of Theatre Arts Limited, which has a long history in the area
and which would take over the main Town Hall building, using it largely
for their higher education needs, but with public access to historic areas

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 130

and an extensive programme of community activities both at this site
and elsewhere in the borough; and

(b) Disposal of the rest of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex on the open
market for redevelopment.

This option is described above.
o Option 2:

Disposal of the whole of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex to a developer
that will be able to operate the site on a long lease. Soft Market testing
suggests that there is interest from developers that have experience in
establishing a sustainable future with heritage buildings.

8.6. The Developer/Operator Qption

8.6.1. Soft market testing established that there is an opportunity to find a
developer that can:

» Develop surplus land on the site to yield sufficient capital from
residential development to refurbish the Town Hall building

and

o Establish a sustainable business into the future which is financially
independent of the Council

8.6.2. The JWG assessed this option positively overall. Their analysis of the
responses suggests that there is an opportunity to market the whole of the
Hornsey Town Hall Complex as a single entity, including operation of the
Hormsey Town Hall building, over an extended period. Initial responses
also show that the main objectives of the project can be achieved — i.e.
financial independence from the Council and some community benefits.

8.6.3. However, the JWG also noted that soft market testing is at a very early
stage of the process and that, as developers begin to get into greater
detail, there is a high risk that compromises would have to be made.
Whilst the existing planning approval will be the template used for
procurement, the JWG noted that a developer is likely to want to adjust
the scheme to maximise profits and minimise costs. The JWG noted that
whilst some community benefits could be achieved through this option,
these were likely to be significantly fewer than those brought by the
Mountview option.

8.6.4. The JWG noted that there has been longstanding opposition from the
local community to a developer approach. To date the responses have
been balanced in favour of the 2010 planning consent proposals.
However, this could change if a developer approach is taken at this stage.
If the Mountview option is explored further then found to be unworkable,
stakeholders may be more understanding if it could be shown that all
other alternative options had been fully explored.

8.6.5. The developer option would require compliance with the Public

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 131

Procurement Rules and contract negotiations, which may take up to a
year. The Council’'s major costs and risks would only reduce at the
point of signing a development agreement. Overall this is a longer
timescale to minimise risks than that presented by the Mountview
option.

9. Summary

9.1. After extensive research and consideration of a wide range of options by
Council officers and members of the Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust, the
option which most effectively meets the objectives of the project is that
presented by Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts.

9.2. Whilst the option of a developer will continue to remain in place as an
altemnative, the Mountview option appears to provide the greatest community
benefit and reduces the costs to the Council in the shortest timescale.

10. Chief Financial Officer Comments

10.1. The original objective of this project was to bring the Town Hall back into
use, funding the required capital via disposal of surrounding land /
residential development. The Town Hall would then be transferred on a
long lease to a partner that could operate at arms length with a viable
business plan which required no Council subsidy.

10.2. The council has already invested significantly in this project (circa £2m)
and continues to incur costs (albeit at a much reduced level). The
successful hire of part of the town hall space for interim use is offsetting
the majority of the annual revenue costs however, it is important that a
permanent solution is found to ensure that the fabric of the building
doesn’t deteriorate further and that a valuable asset is brought back into
use.

10.3 The recommendation to proceed with the Mountview Academy of Theatre
Arts Ltd as the council's preferred option to meet the objectives of the
project certainly has merit and based on the current timeframes will reduce
the on-going risk to the council earlier than with the developer / operator
model.

10.4 There are still considerable risks to the successful delivery of this project
and the recommended approach to only enter into an Agreement for Lease
initially until a number of key conditions can be demonstrated to have been
met should protect the Council. It wili only be at this point that the lease
and funding agreement will be signed.

10.56t0 10.9 Exempt information.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 132

11. Head of Legal Services Comments
11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

The Council can appropriate the whole of the Hornsey Town Hall Complex
for planning purposes as long as it is surplus to requirement.

Once appropriated the Council can dispose of the Town Hall Site but must
do so for the specific purpose of securing the best use of the land, or to
secure the construction of buildings or carrying out of other works needed
for the proper planning of the area. The Council must also achieve the best
consideration that can reasonable be obtained otherwise the consent of
the Secretary of State is required.

Ideally in order to secure these objectives, the Council would normally require
Mountview to enter into some form of development agreement, in order to
ensure the redevelopment is carried out together with the refurbishment of the
Town Hall building. Whilst the disposal of land by itself does not fall within the
Public Procurement Rules, by contrast any obligations on Mountview to carry
out such works would, which means that the Council would not be able to opt
for the Mountview option without carrying out an OJEU procurement process
first. Therefore any Agreement for Lease and Lease should contain enough
provisions to safe guard the Council’s interests and objectives. Those agreeing
the heads of terms should seek legal advice as to how best to achieve this
before agreeing these terms.

Authority is also sought to market the rest of the Homsey Town Hall Complex
with a view to selecting a preferred bidder to redevelop that site for residential
purposes. In this instance the Public Procurement Rules must be complied with
before any bidder is selected.

12. Head of Procurement Comments
12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

The OGC Information Note 11/09 16 October 2009 Procurement Policy Note —
preliminary guidance on the application of the public procurement rules to
development agreements states the following. “the sale or lease of land or
property by a public body is not within the scope of the public procurement
rules, so a simple disposal of land is not caught as there is no acquisition (and
thus no procurement) of any goods, works or services”, therefore the disposal
of Horsey Town Hall will not need to be tendered. However the Council should
ensure that they receive best consideration for the disposal.

The agreement of the terms of the lease or sale should be reviewed to ensure
that procurement rules are not breached.

The Head of Procurement therefore notes the recommendation to proceed with
the preferred option of leasing Hornsey Town Hall to Mountview Academy of
Theatre Arts Limited, subject to them complying with the provision of the

Report Template: Formal Bodies 10



Page 133

agreement for lease or funding agreement.

13. Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments
A fuil Equalities Impact Assessment was approved in 2010 as part of the
planning application. In it the EIA noted the following:

The development of Hornsey Town Hall will reduce the current barriers to
access by:

13.1.

13.2.

13.3. If the Mountview option is approved, further benefits will be achieved, including:

designing a site that conforms to DDA requirements, unlike currently where
access is very difficult;

providing residential apartments specifically designed for physical
disability.
providing four affordable family homes;

establishing an operator that will provide access to a wide range of
facilities, events and programs that also address equalities issues, reduce
barriers to engagement and promote the well being of vulnerable groups;

establishing in the lease to the operator a requirement to address
equalities issues identified in Step 2 in the equalities impact assessment
proforma

increasing apprenticeships and use of local labour through the
procurement process, contracts and leases that fully take equality and
diversity issues into account, especially in regard to training and
employment opportunities for young people.

A robust business that will operate financially independent of the Council:
Mountview's proposals ensure that the Council’s limited resources can be
focused on areas and issues of greatest need.

Community: The Mountview proposals are strong on community benefits,
including educational programmes in schools and to the community, use of
the Bemie Grant Centre, public access to the Town Hall, public events in
the assembly hall and an animated building with a sense of vibrancy
especially among young people who will be the predominant users.

14. Consultation

14.1. Since 2003 there has been extensive consultation with the local community
and others with an interest in the future of Homsey Town Hall. Since 2007 the
Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust have worked with the Council to carry out
detailed consultation in the area, including exhibitions of proposals, meetings
and a very informative website. In 2010 a full planning application ensured a

Report Template: Formal Bodies 11



Page 134

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

wide range of responses to the proposals, including a public open meeting at
a development forum, an exhibition and model at Hornsey library, a response
process to capture objections and comments and a public planning
committee meeting.

Throughout this process there has been an overwhelming desire to see a
sustainable future for Hornsey Town Hall and to see the building used for
community benefits. English Heritage and other conservation bodies have
been positive about the proposals.

Any changes to the current proposals will need to build on this groundswell of
expectation and ensure that any changes will not be detrimental to the
overarching vision of the project.

Officers have recently consulted with planners and any material changes to
the existing planning consent will require a further planning application to be
made. This will ensure that local interest groups will again have an
opportunity to comment on any revisions.

15. Service Financial Comments

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

The original objective of this project was to bring the Town Hall back into
use, funding the required capital via disposal of surrounding land/
residential development. The Town Hall would then be transferred on a
long lease to a partner that could operate at arms length with a viable
business plan which required no Council subsidy. These two principles
have not changed.

Because the Town Hall is surplus to requirements, it is a liability to the
Council. The annual costs of maintaining the Town Hall are in the region
of £250-300k. Currently these costs are being mitigated through an
interim uses strategy, but in the long term this is unsustainable.

There is a potential capital investment of circa £2m required in the
medium term to meet out commitments under English Heritage
requirements. The disposal aims to transfer these costs to the approved
leaseholder.

There are circa £2m costs incurred in bringing the project to this point, largely
as a result of the planning application and approval. The disposal of land
aims to recoup these costs and provide a contribution to the refurbishment of
the Town Hall.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 12



Page 135

16.Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

16.1. Appendix 1: the area shaded orange on the drawing BVES A4 0825q attached
shows the proposed area for lease to Mountview. A detailed drawing based on
this assumption will be included in the Agreement to Lease and Lease. The area
of proposed land sale for residential units is shown shaded in blue. Rights of way
will be developed as part of the detail required in the Agreement for Lease and
Lease.

16.2. Appendix 2 (exempt) is the draft Heads of Terms for the Lease

16.3. Appendix 3 (exempt) is an initial assessment of Mountview’s financial position
16.4. Appendix 4: Community Benefits proposed by Mountview

16.5. Appendix 5: Planned timescales

17.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

17.1 _Background Papers

The planning application ref Ref HGY/2010/0500 outlines the vision for the Town Hall. This
is broadly in line with the Mountview option, for which a further application will be submitted
at a later date.

Report to Cabinet on Hornsey Town Hall 21% July 2009.
Notes

Hornsey Town Hall Creative Trust is a registered charity (no 1133610) www.hornsey-town-
hall.org.uk/

Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts is a registered charity { no 274166)
http.//www.mountview.org.uk/

17.2 This report contains exempt information contained in exempt Appendix A which
is not for publication. The exempt information is under the following category
(identified in amended schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

S(3) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular
person including the authoerity holding the information.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 13



Page 136

THE BROADWAY

1104
Broadway House
Bank

Hornsey Town Hall Complex

The Broadway

Crouch End INDICATIVE SITE DIVISION

LONDON Shaded blue (dot stipple} - Propased land sale

N8 Shaded crange (dash stipple) - Town Hall & Assembly Room sile

CABINET REPORT APRIL 2011

CPM No. Site Area (hectares) :

Scale 1:1250

Overlay : Property Terrier
Drawing No. BVES A4 0825q

Plan produced by Kevin Lincoln on 17/03/2011

Report Template: Formal Bodies 14



Page 137

Appendix 4: Community Benefits proposed by Mountview:

The core of proposal from Mountview Academy of Theatre Arts is to establish at
Hornsey Town Hall one of the UK's leading drama schools with a worldwide
reputation for excellence in education and training .

Founded in 1945, Mountview offers extensive and stimulating training for those
interested in pursuing a Performance, Directing or Technical Theatre career.

Beyond this core mission there are potentially many community benefits, including:

¢ Increased opportunities in the arts for the children and young people of
Haringey

¢ Financial benefits to the Haringey community
e The conservation of and public access to a historic building

s Qutreach and support to a wide range of communities across Haringey and
beyond

e Stimulus to the arts and cultural map of Haringey
¢ New opportunities for local businesses

Benefits to Haringey's Children and Young People

Mountview at Hornsey Town Hall will bring clear benefits for the young people of
Haringey.

Montview already runs Saturday workshops and summer schools for children and
young people as well as working in schools and community settings in the Borough,
performing and running workshops. The Town Hall will provide an opportunity to
consolidate and develop this work.

A Youth Theatre will be established with young people drawn from across the
Borough and the possibility of setting up a company calling on former Mountview
students is also under consideration.

Open Days, mini festivals and other special projects will all provide on-going
opportunities for children and young people, both at the Town Hall and within the
Borough. We aim to work in close collaboration with the Music Services and other arts
and education providers in Haringey, such as Haringey Shed, to develop this work.

Our five-year plan contains a proposal to develop an MA course specifically designed
to train theatre practitioners for work in education and community settings and this will
further enhance the programme and enable student participation and development.

We would seek to ensure that the public parts of the building are fully accessible and
child-friendly. We would also present productions, both by Mountview and
professional companies, specifically aimed at/by young people and families as part of
the theatre programme with related activities.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 15




Page 138

Financial benefits to Haringey

In 2003 Hornsey Town Hall was identified as surplus to the Council's needs. It is a

Grade II* listed building and currently judged to be in ‘poor’ condition on English

Heritage's ‘Buildings at Risk’ register. The Council has a legal obligation to ensure the

building is maintained. This is a potentiality a significant financial liability for the

Council.

The Mountview proposals aim to bring the following financial benefits:

¢ reduce the annual revenue costs to the Council by managing the Town Hall

financially independently to the council

¢ reduce the costs to the Council by securing substantial capital investment to

bring the Town Hall back into new use
e maintain the fabric of the Grade II* listed building over 125 years;
¢ bringing investment in the arts into the borough
* increasing trade for local businesses

Especially at this financially challenging time, the Mountview proposals will allow the

Council to focus other capital and revenue expenditure to areas of greatest need.

The conservation of, and public access to, a Historic Building

The Mountview proposals would enable the following areas of the Town Hall to be

accessible to the public and the noted times:

Area

The Theatre foyer and booking
office

The Theatre ante-room

Administrative entrance foyer

Stairway and Upper landing

Assembly hall

Council Chamber

description

Throughout each day this will be a combination
of meeting space, café and the base for the
Mountview community programme

A programme of activities through the year will
provide opportunities for the community in this
space. Children’s activities during the day and
after school, seniors programmes etc,

This will be permeable space that balances the
need for student security with public access.
Generally accessible to the public but security
details yet to be worked through.

As above with permissions from reception desk
and on guided tours.

The assembly Hall will be open to the public
during ticketed performances or as part of
guided tours of the building.

Open for public talks and events and for guided
tours.

Report Template: Formal Bodies

16



Page 139

Business community benefits

Broader benefits to Haringey communities.

Bookable for meetings and as part of guided
tours.

Committee rooms
Whilst this is the basic menu of public access, the Mountview proposal goes beyond
just accessibility. The presence of hundreds of students and staff, all involved in the
arts will bring a vibrancy and life to the building and area. Student rehearsals and
performances will be frequent and even the ‘background’ of artistic endeavour will
create an ambience that will go well beyond anything that the Town Hall has ever
experienced previously.

Hornsey Town Hall was conceived as an integral and cohesive element of the mixture
of local businesses and services. Its use by Mountview will make a substantial
contribution to the revitalising this relationship.

The inward investment attracted by Mountview’s presence is potentially high and
includes:

o Local economic benefits generated by full and part-time students, staff, visitors
and audiences through shops, student and visitor accommodation,
employment. Student population attracts friends, family and other
visitors/residents to the area

¢ Around 3,000 applicants to Mountview each year, many of whom attend with
parents and family members for audition and interview and stay overnight

¢ The two theatre spaces planned have the potential to attract and engage
around 100,000 members of the public when used at full capacity. A significant
proportion of these will also use local facilities e.g. cafes, shops

+ On-going attraction of commercial and industry professionals into the area.
Mountview's activities and events attract business people, opinion-formers,
agents, directors and producers

* High international and UK reputation enhances profile of area, animates locality
and increases investor confidence

+ Over 100 full-time and part-time employees with several hundred sessional,
temporary or related posts

¢ Locally-based training opportunities e.g. in technical theatre and production
arts, develop skills, qualifications and employment within the Borough.

Our aspiration for Homsey Town Hall is to contribute to:

* activities that create a sense of community identity within the locality

» activities that bring together communities from different parts of the borough on
the HTH site

+ activities that reach out from our base in Hornsey Town Hall to other parts of

Report Template: Formal Bodies 17



Page 140

the borough/ neighbouring boroughs

Mountview will provide a strong cultural focus at the heart of the community,
welcoming people of all ages, abilities and backgrounds to join in a shared creative
endeavour.

Mountview's outreach programme is already having an impact across Haringey
communities. This year the programme includes:

e Workshops in partnership with the Neighbourhoods branch of the Metropolitan
police targeted on older and vuinerable people to deal with ‘bogus callers’

e Mountview students supporting Haringey schools through workshops on three
abridged works of Shakespeare

» A variety of workshops designed with a specific focus — storytelling, access
programmes in colleges, street theatre, cabarets for fund raising events, etc;

¢ Evening courses, Saturday workshops and summer Schools.
s Storytelling workshops in primary schools
» Over 25 public performances accessible to all

But this is only a start. Our ambitions in a new location and with growing student
numbers will go well beyond what we have done in the past, ensuring that
Mountview's high standards are part of its work with its communities.

Arts, Culture and Creativity benefits

The Town Hall managed by Mountview will become a home to a unique arts and
cultural project, an innovative model of a U.K. drama school. It will have local, national
and global significance. It will deliver world class vocational training in all aspects of
theatre and serve its local community through an extensive education and community
programme.

Mountview works in close collaboration with the theatre and arts industry; and will be
a focus of creativity, diversity and leaming for all ages and abilities, animating and
spotlighting a distinctive heritage building.

The link to the Bernie Grant Centre forms a second base for Mountview’s
performances, education and community work, providing a mutually beneficial cross
over between the venues. By establishing a regular following and user groups for
Mountview productions and activities, groups and individuals from both the west and
the east of the borough will be encouraged to visit both venues.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 18




Page 141

Wwazaby ———— =
EEP._’A 36190 0} Juswaasbe Jo suDHIPUDD 0 Emwhw_u?.’ ’ 19H

¥ 9sean

pleme

1asua0 A jesodosd |euly _

QQQA awwesSoid | aseyd | ’A.gﬁs«:au qune. andoid | uopeadde mc_cca_n_@

.A qusLidajasap ubisag o {fBaens Bupund |

m_uwuﬁ._. A Bupastew pue) _ ﬁ%u { 0 3beig ubisag |

(@ T T ledBuseud T T (<l . _ . . mam_w.y_uﬁsu_ { =reugsanue |
| | | | | |

£} sunp FAREL-Ti | 2l sunp b 28Q L) udy L1 Ydep - god !

sojeosawil] pauueld - § xipuaddy

[ounon) Aebuney




Page 142



Page 143 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet On 26 April 2011

Report Title: Capital Programme Priorities 2011-14

Report of: Anne Lippitt, Interim Director of Urban Environment

Signed:@\/\\ (U AA  pae (G ’ G /fLO\ \

Contact Officers : Phil Harris, Assistant Director (Strategic & Community Housing)
Tel: 020 8489 4338
E-mail: phil.harris@haringey.gov.uk

Peter Maddison, Deputy Director (Property Management)
Homes for Haringey

Tel: 0208 489 1269

E-mail: peter.maddison@homesforharingey.org.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide Members with details of the capital funding
that is expected to be available for investment in the Council’s housing stock during
the next four years: 2011/12 to 2014/15.

1.2 It seeks Cabinet approval of the capital programme priorities for 2011/12 and a
revised scope of works for Haringey’s Decent Homes programme. It also highlights
the pressure on the capital programme and recommends a course of action that
will enable the Council to make informed decisions about future investment.

2 Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 This report demonstrates the impact of the Government's decision to reduce
Haringey's Decent Homes funding half way through the programme. It also shows
how much extra investment is needed in the Council’'s housing stock and how
difficult it is to decide how to spend what is a relatively small capital pot.




Page 144

2.2

2.3

24

Although it would have been a lot more helpful and cost-effective if the Decent
Homes funding had been spread more evenly over the 4 years, | do believe there is
scope to negotiate more favourable prices with the four constructor partners.

It remains the longer term aspiration of the Council and Homes for Haringey to
complete the Decent Homes programme. However, in order to achieve this, we will
need to adopt an elemental approach to Decent Homes and consider more
innovative and flexible funding solutions that enable us to deal effectively with
properties and estates that are in need of very high levels of investment.

| support and welcome the proposal to carry out a borough-wide options appraisal
(and to undertake detailed financial modelling), since this will enable us to give full
and proper consideration to how best the Council might address the short term and
long term investment needs of its housing stock.

Link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies

Changes in funding will have a significant impact on our ability to deliver our
Housing Strategy 2009-19, including key priorities:

e To meet housing need through mixed communities

e To ensure housing in the borough is well managed, of high quality and
sustainable

o To provide people with the support and advice they need

Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet;

(a) Notes the size and implications of the reduction in Decent Homes funding
for Haringey and agrees the revised scope of works that will be funded
from the Decent Homes budget allocation (see Appendix 1);

(b) Agrees that first priority for the Decent Homes funding for 2011/12 will be
given to current contractual commitments from 2010/11 totalling
approximately £5m; :

(c) Agrees that first priority for the estimated £10m of new commitments in the
2011/12 Decent Homes programme is given to works in contracts HO13,
NT15 and ST16 and that, if financial savings can be achieved in these
contracts through negotiation or mini tender, authority to commit these
revised contracts is delegated to the Director of Adult & Housing Services
in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing;

(d) Agrees that the ‘deferred’ scheme WG18 will be put on hold and that the
Decent Homes investment required for these homes is considered,
instead, as part of the wider investment needs of the whole of Noel Park;




Page 145

(e) Agrees that any spare capacity within the Decent Homes budget for
2011/12 (including that which is achieved through financial savings) will be
used to fund additional Decent Homes works if those works will support
the capital priorities detailed in this report and can be procured
economically alongside the ongoing HO13, NT15 & ST16 contracts, and
that authority to approve these additional works is delegated to the
Director of Adult & Housing Services in consultation with the Cabinet
Member for Housing;

(f) Agrees that the higher specification (“Option 17) IRS system is installed in
all Sheltered Housing blocks and that the IRS service charge for the
residents of those blocks is ‘capped’ at the cost of Option 2;

(g9) Notes the substantial funding gap that is projected over the next four
financial years (2011/12 to 2014/15) and agrees that additional financial
modelling should be carried out to take into account the Government's
self-financing proposals, the reduction in decent homes funding, up-to-
date information about the condition and investment needs of the stock
and alternative funding opportunities (including the use of Prudential
Borrowing).

(h) Agrees that the 2011/12 capital programme (excluding Decent Homes) will
comprise the investment priorities as set out in Appendix 2 but subject to
the identification of additional funding of up to £2.3m ;

(i) Agrees that a borough-wide options appraisal (based on the financial
modelling described in Paragraphs 9.4 — 9.9) should be carried out to
inform Members’ consideration of how best the Council might address the
short term and long term investment needs of its housing stock; and

() Agrees that Officers should explore the merits and feasibility of
opportunities (including prudential borrowing) to address the peaks and
troughs in capital funding that are anticipated during 2011/12 to 2014/15.

5.2

5.3

54

Reasons for the recommendations

In February 2011, the Government announced the outcome of local authority bids
for funding under its Decent Homes Backlog Funding Programme 2011-15.

Although Haringey fared slightly better than many other local authorities, its award
of £69.9m over the next four years is £28.7 less than what it had been expecting to
receive during the last three years of its Decent Homes programme.

In order to make best use of the funding available, the Council needs to reduce the
scope of the work undertaken under its Decent Homes programme, negotiate
further price reductions with the constructor partners and explore other funding
options where the level of investment that is required in particular properties or
estates is exceptionally high.

For 2011/12, the priority is to use the Decent Homes funding to meet the existing
commitments from 2010/11 and to pay for a number of schemes that have been
approved by the Procurement Committee but have been deferred.




Page 146

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

Given the need to spend £5m on fire safety works and the installation of IRS in
2011/12, there is increased pressure on the Capital programme. This is
compounded by the fact that the Major Repairs Allowance for 2011/12 is almost
£4.9m less than what Haringey is expecting in 2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15.

Considerable efforts have already been made to minimise capital expenditure in
2011/12. However, more work is needed to address the peaks and troughs in
capital funding that are anticipated during the period 2011/12 to 2014/15, with a
particular emphasis on the needs and resources in 2011/12 and 2012/13.

To inform the Council’s decision making in relation to future investment, a new 30
year Business Plan needs to be produced, based on the HRA self financing model
and taking into account the results of this year's stock condition surveys. This
Business Plan needs to be modelled on different scenarios for different types of
property, especially where it is already recognised that certain parts of the stock
are more costly to maintain and might require an alternative funding option.

The remodelling of the long term financial plan and the review of the funding
options are inextricably linked. It is essential that Homes for Haringey and the
Council appraise the range of available options for the future delivery of
sustainable investment in the housing stock.

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Haringey’s Decent Homes Programme

Reduction in Government funding

Prior to the Comprehensive Spending Review in October 2010 and the
Government’'s announcement of its Decent Homes Backlog Funding programme,
Haringey was expecting to receive Decent Homes funding of £98.6m over a three
year period: 2011/12 — 2013/14.

Despite the high quality of its funding bid, Haringey has been advised that it will
now only receive just over £69.9m and that this will be spread over four years
(rather than three), with only £36m of the funding being ‘firm commitments’. Aimost
£30m of the funding — due in the third and fourth years of the programme — is only
an ‘indicative allocation’, so is not guaranteed.

Even if Haringey receives its whole allocation of £69.9million, this is £28.7m less
than the Council was expecting to receive to invest in bringing its tenanted homes
up to the Decent Homes Standard.

Including estimated leaseholder contributions of £4.5m and the £1m (provided by
the Council) for the homeless hostels, Haringey is now planning a four year Decent
Homes programme worth £75.431m:

 Decent Homes [2011/12 [2012/13 | 2013/14

| Related Funding | L
Decent Homes £15m £21m

Homeless Hostels




Page 147

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

The Government has indicated that, as substantially less funding is available,
organisations may wish to review their approach to Decent Homes and move from
the traditional ‘whole house’ approach (where all elements of the property are
brought up to decency) to an ‘elemental’ approach (where investment programmes
focus on particular key elements, such as windows and roofs).

Given the Government’s revised guidance and the reduction in funding, it is
recommended that an ‘elemental’ approach is introduced in Haringey. Such an
approach would prioritise the following works:

o External repair and replacement of roofs and windows, etc; and

o Essential Health & Safety works, such as electrical testing and
upgrade, and Category 1 failures of the Housing Health and Safety
Rating System (HHSRS).

This ‘elemental’ approach will ensure that more homes will benefit from Haringey’s
Decent Homes programme (albeit with a significantly reduced scope) and that key
services and health and safety requirements can be maintained.

Unfortunately, however, the number of council homes brought up to the original
Decent Homes Standard will be significantly reduced if an ‘elemental’ approach is
adopted. Kitchens and bathrooms, for example, have previously been replaced
when they are old or in a poor condition but, under the ‘elemental’ standard, they
will only be renewed if they are assessed as being a health and safety hazard.

We will be seeking Government clarification of the targets and milestones it will be
using to measure and monitor Haringey’s performance against the programme.

6.10 Appendix 1 of this report provides a detailed scope of work for the ‘elemental’

standard that is proposed for Haringey’s Decent Homes programme. This
document describes the key external elements that will be tackied under the
revised programme, but will need to be reviewed when the results of the stock
survey of Year 4 & 5 properties is available in May 2011, when a more accurate
assessment will be made of the cost and priorities within this programme.

6.11 Residents in Years 4 and 5 of the Decent Homes programme have been informed

that the programme is under review. Homes for Haringey residents’ Asset
Management Panel is considering the implications of the changes in the
programme and helping to develop and agree wider resident consuitation on the
key issues facing the programme.

Contractual commitments from 2010/11

6.12 First call on the £15m Decent Homes Programme for 2011/12 is the commitment

from existing contractual commitments, from 2010/11, of approximately £5m.
Schemes that were approved, but deferred, in 2010/11

6.13 In order to maintain some continuity in the Decent Homes programme and ensure

that an early start is made on site during 2011/12, it is proposed that first call on the
remaining £10m of the Decent Homes Programme for 2011/12 is given to the three
contracts (HO13, NT15 and ST16) that were approved by the Council’s
Procurement Committee in July 2010 and were due to commence on site in
February 2011 but were deferred until the funding was confirmed.




Page 148

6.14

6.15

6.16

6.17

6.18

6.19

Excluding the cost of the out-of-borough stock (as agreed by Cabinet at its
meeting on 26 January 2011) and the homes that have already been funded from
the 2010/11 programme, the total cost of the three contracts — based on the new
‘elemental’ standard which will result in far fewer kitchen and bathrooms being
replaced than at present — is estimated to be just over £7.7m:

Contract Estimated cost of ‘elemental’ works
Number (excluding out-of-borough stock)
HO13 £1,001,657
NT15 £4,422,488
ST16 £2,290,736
TOTAL £7,714,881

Although a fourth contract (WG18) was approved by the Procurement Committee
in July 2010 and was also due to commence on site in February 2011 but was
subsequently deferred until the funding was confirmed, this contract relates only
to the window renewal of 286 homes in Noel Park.

As the WG18 contract does not include the full cost of all of the external work
required to the 286 properties (such as roof renewals, structural repairs and
external redecoration), it is proposed that this contract is deferred and that the full
extent of the works required are considered in the context of the investment
required to the rest of the Noel Park estate, including the Noel Park Pods.

Reducing the contractors’ prices

At present, the Decent Homes programme is divided into four geographical areas
with a contractor allocated to each area. The reduced level of Decent Homes
funding in 2011/12 means that it may not be cost effective to continue working
with all four contractors, each with their own overheads

Homes for Haringey is working with the contractors to explore options for
reducing their overheads. Options being considered include the following:

o Carry out a mini-tender (involving all four contractors) to select two contractors
for the 2011/12 Decent Homes programme. (Such an approach will require
the contractors’ agreement to amend the framework conditions);

e Limit the Decent Homes work to just two of the four geographical areas during
2011/12. (Such an approach would be worth pursuing if the contractors are
unwilling to agree to a mini-tender).

Use of any additional capacity in 2011/12 programme

It is proposed that any additional capacity in the 2011/12 Decent Homes
programme should be used to fund further Decent Homes works (identified from
the stock condition survey) if those works will support the capital priorities
detailed in this report and can be procured economically alongside the ongoing
contracts (HO13, NT15 & ST16).




Page 149

6.20

It is proposed, also, that authority to approve this additional work is delegated to
the Director of Adult & Housing Services in consultation with the Cabinet Member
for Housing.

7.2

7.3

74

7.5

7.6

2011/12 Capital programme

Excluding Decent Homes funding, the Capital programme for 2011/12
(comprising Major Repairs Allowance of £13.6m and funding of £100k each for
the Transferable Discount Scheme and Major Void Works) will total £13.8m.

Appendix 2 of this report contains details of the investment required to maintain
the housing stock and key services through programmed, planned preventative
maintenance. It also proposes the priorities for investment in 2011/12.

The investment planned for 2011/12 will aim to ensure that key statutory and
health and safety requirements are met, all of the Council’s tenants and
leaseholders are prepared for the digital switchover on 4 April 2012, and essential
capital repairs and renewals can be carried out within the available funding.

Unfortunately, however, there is very limited scope for some essential works such
as Planned Preventative Maintenance or the renewal of key components, such as
kitchens and bathrooms. The impact of this is increased pressure on the
Responsive Repairs budget as repeated repairs are likely to be required to try to
maintain elements that have reached the end of their useful life.

Mechanical and Electrical — £2.21m

The Mechanical & Electrical programme includes the renewal of key mechanical
and electrical components (such as communal wiring, ventilation systems and
door entry systems), the provision of fire fighting equipment and improvement
works recommended following Fire Risk Assessment inspections.

The following table details the priorities for the programme between 2011- 2014:

Description of Works

2011112

2012/13

2013/14

Rewiring of landlord’s
electrical supply to blocks.

£290,000

£780,000

£780,000

Door Entry Systems —
planned maintenance and
repair to maintain operation
of existing door entry
systems. -

£420,000

£420,000

£420,000

Fire Risk Assessment
works — Priority 1 works
recommended following
Fire Risk Assessment

£1,500,000

inspections.

£2,210,000

£1,200,000

£1,200,000




Page 150

Iolf

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.7

The Fire Risk Assessment allocation of £1.5m for 2011/12 covers essential works
identified as being required in the higher risk high-rise blocks, hostels and
sheltered housing. There is also provision for essential works to approximately
1,200 low rise blocks that are currently being assessed and will have an
investment need, albeit at a lower value per block.

There is no scope to reduce the Mechanical & Engineering budget without
increasing the risk to health and safety or the risk of failure of key services.

Installation of Integrated Reception System (IRS) — £3.5m

In preparation for the digital switchover in London in 2012, Homes for Haringey
has been installing IRS in all blocks of flats that require a communal television
aerial. Without such a system, residents will be left without a TV signal when
London’s analogue signal is switched off on 4 April 2012.

A substantial proportion of the cost of installing IRS will be recovered from tenants
and leaseholders through their service charges.

By the end of March 2011, Homes for Haringey had installed IRS in 2,009 homes.
During 2011/12, it will complete its IRS programme by installing IRS in another
9,255 homes (491 blocks) at a cost of £3.5m.

Homes for Haringey has now consulted all of the residents affected, asking them
to express a preference for one of two types of IRS (Option 1 or Option 2).

When the residents of Sheltered Housing were consulted about IRS, 30% of
residents attended the consultation meetings and, of those who attended, 58%
expressed a preference for Option 2, the lower specification IRS.

It is acknowledged that many residents of Sheltered Housing rely very heavily on
television for information, entertainment and enjoyment. It is acknowledged, also,
that non English speaking residents of Sheltered Housing are more likely to
become isolated and, due to their age profile, are less likely to learn English.

Taking all of these factors into account — including the low sample level — it is
proposed that the higher specification IRS (Option 1) is installed in all 1,311
Sheltered Housing dwellings but, as the majority of the residents who expressed
a preference (albeit only 17.5% of all residents in Sheltered Housing) requested
Option 2, it is proposed to ‘cap’ the IRS service charge for Sheltered Housing
residents at what it would have cost them for Option 2.

The estimated cost of this decision is £93K. This approach was considered and
endorsed by the Housing Capital Programme Board in December 2010.

Asbestos Removal ~ £100k

This budget funds the testing, removal and management of asbestos containing
materials (ACMSs) identified during responsive repair works. It is essential that this
budget is maintained to enable responsive repairs work to be completed safely
and ensure that ACMs are safely managed in homes and communal areas. It is
however possible to halve the budget, to £100k, by sealing or encasing the
asbestos, rather than removing it in all cases. The residual risk would be small.




Page 151

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

Sewage & Drainage Works — £37k

This small budget of £37k funds the replacement of sewage pumps to pumping
stations. As these services must be maintained, this budget should be retained.

Boiler Replacements and Major Repairs — £2m

This budget funds the replacement of boilers, together with major repairs such as
the replacement of heat exchangers, on a reactive basis.

Although a boiler has an expected life of 15 years, many boilers are considerably
older than this and should be replaced. Modern energy efficient boilers that
Homes for Haringey is now installing have a life expectancy of only 12 years.

In a recent report to the Homes for Haringey Board, it was recommended that an
annual budget of £4m be provided to support a planned approach to boiler
replacement. Unfortunately, in view of the pressure on the capital programme, it
is proposed that a budget of £2m is set aside for replacements and repairs.

Lift Renewal — £1.4m

This budget funds the replacement of lifts that have reached the end of their
useful life. Lifts have an expected life of between 15 and 20 years, and lift
replacement programmes require long lead-in periods because of the specialist
nature of the work and the bespoke requirements of each lift.

There are 142 lifts in the Council’'s housing stock. In 2011/12 and 2014/15, there
are 60 lifts identified for renewal. Each of these lifts is more than 20 years old,
and several are significantly older.

The contract for the renewal of lifts on the Broadwater Farm Estate was let in
2010 and this contract will result in expenditure of £1.4m in 2011/12. It is
proposed that the 2011/12 budget covers only this commitment.

As no allowance will be made for the renewal of other lifts in 2011/12, there will
be a higher reliance on repair rather than planned replacement, and an increased
likelihood of lifts having to be taken out of service. Significant responsive repair
expenditure may be incurred in keeping old lifts working until they are renewed.

Structural Works — £400k

This budget funds essential structural works including, for example, underpinning,
concrete repairs and brickwork repairs.

It is proposed to reduce this budget by one third, to £400k, for 2011/12. This may
result in the period of monitoring structural movement being extended and/or
concrete and brickwork repairs being limited to areas where there is a Health &
Safety risk, such as where concrete may fall from the building. The latter
approach is likely to increase the need for ongoing maintenance, including
multiple access costs such as scaffolding.




Page 152

7.28

7.29

7.30

7.31

7.32

7.33

7.34

7.35

7.36

7.37

Essential Capital Works — £200k

This budget provides a small contingency of £200k for unforeseen / emergency
capital works that may arise over the course of the year. The budget is now only
one third of what it has been historically, and it is proposed that it is retained.

Capitalised Responsive Repairs — £4m

This budget funds capital works (such as kitchen renewal, bathroom renewal and
the installation of new central heating systems) that are carried out, as part of the
responsive repairs programme, to renew items that are beyond economic repair.

A detailed review of capital works funded through Responsive Repairs is to be
carried out to ensure that the works are consistent with the capital priorities
agreed by Cabinet, and to ensure that an appropriate balance is achieved
between capital and revenue expenditure.

Repairs to void properties account for a significant amount of expenditure within
this budget and, although it is anticipated that the reorganisation of the Repairs
Service will result in reduced costs and assist the reduction of expenditure in the
longer term, consideration will need to be given to whether or not there is scope
to reduce the average cost of void repairs without reducing standards.

It is proposed that this budget is reduced from £4.363m to £4m.
Extensive Void Works — £600k

This budget funds the repair and improvement of void properties that require
major works before they can be re-let.

It is proposed that Extensive Voids Budget is halved, to £600k, in 2011/12.
Although this budget reduction will result in far fewer major voids being brought
back into use during the year, this is unavoidable and can be mitigated by the
selective disposal of properties that are in the worst condition and require the
highest level of investment.

Further consideration will need to be given to whether or not the capital receipts
from such enforced disposals should be recycled into the capital programme and
used to fund extensive void works to properties requiring substantial investment.

Planned Preventative Maintenance

As reported to the Housing Capital Programme Board in September 2010, a full
Planned Preventative Maintenance (PPM) Programme would cost in the region of
£8.7m per annum up until 2014/15 and £6.2m per annum thereafter. A basic PPM
Programme (limited to external repair and redecoration) will cost around £5.2m.

Given the severe constraints on the capital budget for the period 2011/12 to
2013/14, it is proposed that there is no PPM programme in 2011/12, and only a
limited PPM programme in years 2012/13 and 2013/14.. Any high priority external
work that is required during this period will be funded from the Decent Homes
programme which will now focus on the repair and renewal of external elements.




Page 153

7.38

7.39

7.40

7.41

7.42

7.43

7.44

7.45

7.46

| 7.47

7.48

In the absence of an adequately resourced PPM programme, the external
condition of the stock will deteriorate and key elements of the homes (such as the
roofs and the windows) will require renewal sooner than would have been
expected if a full PPM programme was in place. It is also likely that there will be
increased pressure on the Responsive Repairs budget, as repeated repairs will
be required in order to maintain elements that are due for renewal.

Aids & Adaptations — £1.2m

This demand-led budget funds the adaptation of council homes and the provision
of disabled facilities for council tenants and members of their household.

The Council and Homes for Haringey have eliminated the backlog of requests for
Aids & Adaptations, and waiting times are now controlled by the time taken for
assessment, surveying, costing and installations.

It is estimated that, during 2010/11, more that £1m of disabled facilities work was
undertaken by Homes for Haringey, as part of the Decent Homes programme.
The need for these works was often identified during the initial Decent Homes
assessment which takes into account access issues and disability.

Unfortunately, due to the substantial reduction in funding, it is likely that
Haringey’s Decent Homes programme will include only very limited expenditure
on home adaptations and disabled facilities. This will increase the pressure on
the Aids & Adaptations budget.

Although the Aids & Adaptations budget was £1.4m in 2010/11, it is proposed
that this is reduced to £1.2m in 2011/12. This is the sum that has been allowed
for Haringey’s Aids & Adaptations in the proposals for the reform of the HRA.

As expenditure of £500k is already committed for 20011/12, just £700k is
available for new applicants. Any further reduction in the Aids & Adaptations
budget is likely to result in the available budget being fully committed just part of
the way through the year. It will also result in residents who have been assessed
as being in need of a major adaptation having to wait for funding.

In view of the high demand for Aids & Adaptations and the reduced level of
funding, it is proposed that the service provided by Adult Services, Homes for
Haringey and the Lettings Team is reviewed to ensure that an efficient, joined-up
service is provided and that, where possible, applicants whose homes require
major adaptations are moved to homes that have already been adapted.

Estate Improvements — £50k

This small £50k budget funds high priority environmental improvements that are
identified by Tenancy Management staff in consultation with residents and local
tenant and resident associations. As this is a low cost / high impact budget, it is
recommended that it is retained.

Major Works Conversions — £100k

This budget funds major works to create additional bedrooms — to reduce
overcrowding — through loft conversions and by making use of unused spaces.

Although the conversions programme could be stopped, this would deny the
Council an opportunity to relieve overcrowding. It is therefore proposed that this
budget is reduced, by one third, to £100k.




Page 154

7.49

7.50

7.51

7.52

Energy Conservation — £150k

This budget funds works that increase the thermal comfort for residents, reduce
fuel bills and carbon dioxide emissions, and lever in energy efficiency grants.

This is a low cost / high impact budget that attracts matched funding and
improves residents’ quality of life. It is proposed that budget is retained at its
current level of £150k.

Cash Incentives — £100k

This budget provides council tenants with grants to enable them to purchase a
suitable home on the open market, freeing up homes for other people in housing
need. Take up of these cash incentives has reduced significantly in recent years
and, on average during each of the last two years, 6 grants a year have been
paid at an annual cost of £115,000.

Although the cash incentives scheme could be stopped, this would deny the
Council an opportunity to free up social rented housing. It is therefore proposed
that this budget is reduced, by one third, to £100k.

8.1

8.2

Balancing the 2011/12 Capital programme

Excluding Decent Homes expenditure, the 15 capital priorities for 2011/12
(detailed in Section 7 of this report) amount to £16.047m:

£2,210,000 (Mechanical & Electrical)
+ £ 3,500,000 (Integrated Reception System)
+£ 100,000 (Asbestos Removal)
+£ 37,000 (Sewage & Drainage Works)
+ £ 2,000,000 (Boiler Replacements & Major Repairs)
+ £ 1,400,000 (Lift Renewal)
+£ 400,000 (Structural Works)
+ £ 200,000 (Essential Capital Works)
+ £ 4,000,000 (Capitalised Responsive Repairs)
+£ 600,000 (Extensive Void Works)
+ £ 1,200,000 (Aids & Adaptations)
+£ 50,000 (Estate Improvements)
+£ 100,000 (Major Works Conversions)
+£ 150,000 (Energy Conservation)
+£ 100,000 (Cash Incentives)
£16,047.000

Excluding Decent Homes funding and leaseholder contributions, the funding
available to meet these 15 capital priorities is £13.8m:

£13,600,000 (Major Repairs Allowance)
+£ 100,000 (Transferable Discount)
+£ 100,000 (Major Void Works)
£13,800,000




Page 155

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

The above figures exclude £1.4m of professional fees and £1.5m of leaseholder
contributions and, although very careful consideration has been given to reducing
capital expenditure even further to close the funding gap in 2011/12, Officers
consider that any further reductions in expenditure will impact on the Council's
ability to meet its statutory health and safety obligations, have an adverse effect on
rental income and/or result in a corresponding increase in expenditure on
Responsive Repairs and/or other Council services, such as Adult Social Care.

Notwithstanding the other challenges facing the Council and Homes for Haringey in
relation to the investment needs of the Council’s housing stock, it should be noted
that £5m of the capital expenditure in 2011/12 (fire safety works of £1.5m and IRS
of £3.5m) cannot be deferred until 2012/13 and will not recur in subsequent years.
The cost of IRS is recovered from tenants and leaseholders, however, through their
service charges.

It should be noted, also, that the Major Repairs Allowance for 2011/12 (£13.6m) is
substantially lower than what Haringey is expecting (£18.482m) in 2012/13,
2013/14 and 2014/15 and that there may be scope to reduce the budget for
Capitalised Responsive Repairs even further, in 2012/13, when the changes from
the recent reorganisation of the Repairs Service have become embedded.

Given the cost and priority of the fire safety works and IRS installation, the only
way in which the Council will be able to fund all of the capital priorities in 2011/12 is
to generate additional capital receipts or improve cash flow in 2011/12 and 2012/13
by drawing on HRA balances and/or making use of prudential borrowing.

Officers from Homes for Haringey and the Council are now exploring all of these
options and will be reporting their findings, and recommending an appropriate
course of action, to the Homes for Haringey Board and the Council's Housing
Capital Programme Board by the end of Quarter 1 in 2011/12.

9.2

9.3

Financial modelling and investment options

A lot has changed since September 2008, when Homes for Haringey produced its
last 25 year Business Plan and forecast a shortfall in resources of £536m.

During the past 2)2 years, Haringey’s housing stock has benefited from Decent
Homes investment, the Government has announced its plans to reform the HRA
and introduce flexible tenure and the Affordable Rent Option, and Haringey has
been told that it will now receive £28.7m less funding than it had expected to
receive for its Decent Homes programme. Within the next few weeks, Homes for
Haringey will also receive and analyse all of the data from the surveys of the
homes included in the remainder of the Decent Homes programme.

This survey data will help the Council and Homes for Haringey to identify properties
and estates that have particularly high investment needs and/or fundamental
design issues. It will also enable an assessment to be made of the 30 year capital
investment requirement of the stock and the anticipated funding gap.




Page 156

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

9.8

9.9

In order to inform the Council's decision making, a 30 year Business Plan needs to
be produced, based on the HRA self financing model and taking into account the
results of this year’s stock condition surveys.

A number of different scenarios need to be modelled, in order that the Council can
be properly appraised of the impact of some of the key assumptions, including:

¢ |[nflation and interest rates

e Rent levels and the associated policy
e \Void rates

¢ Rent collection levels

e Future management costs

e The options for capital investment, particularly around the
decent homes standard and what that actually means

¢ The potential to access other external funding sources
e The use of prudential borrowing.

The 30 year Business Plan also needs to be modelled on different scenarios for
different types of property, especially where it is already recognised that certain
parts of the stock, such as the Noel Park Pods, are more costly to maintain and
might require an alternative funding option.

The remodelling of the long term financial plan and the review of the funding
options are inextricably linked. The commissioning process will reflect this.

It is proposed that Homes for Haringey and the Council appraise the range of
available options for the future delivery of sustainable investment in the housing
stock. Options that may be explored could include regeneration initiatives,
managed disposal and reinvestment, local stock transfer, and increased rents.
Specialist advice will be required to fully appraise these options and it is estimated
that this piece of work will cost in the region of £70k.

To this end, it is proposed that a brief be produced and quotations are obtained
from consultants that have the required skills and experience. The scope of this
study, the fee and any budget implications will be reported back to the Housing
Capital Programme Board and to Cabinet. This work will tie into the work that
Strategic & Community Housing Services is leading on to develop regeneration
sustainability indices to highlight the regeneration potential of Haringey’s housing
stock and to inform the Council’s decision on how the short term and long term
funding gap might best be bridged.

10.

Chief Financial Officer Comments

10.1 The figures within this report represent estimates of both the required expenditure

and available budget in future years, in particular the budget figures for 2013/14
and 2014/15 are effectively notional, as the position is likely to change significantly
once the move to self-financing takes place.




Page 157

10.2

10.3

104

10.5

However it is clear that there will be a significant gap between the Council’s
desired level of capital investment in its housing stock and the funding available.
The reduction in Decent Homes funding represents just one element of a change
in the funding landscape that will require Councils to think differently about
investment in housing stock.

This report seeks to use £5m of the 2011-12 decent homes allocation for existing
commitments, with schemes suggested as priorities for the remaining £10m. This
money should only be committed once the opportunity for contract savings has
been explored and the estimated costs revised following the switch to an
elemental approach for Decent Homes work.

The report also asks Members to agree priorities for the remainder of the capital
programme. It should be noted that decisions on the capital programme also
have potential knock-on effects on revenue expenditure elsewhere, for example
reductions in spend on voids could impact on the level of rent income received
and reductions in planned maintenance may impact on revenue costs longer-
term. Similarly opportunities for efficiencies within the revenue budgets should be
reviewed before committing the capitalised responsive repairs budget.

Prudential Borrowing is an option for closing any remaining gap in funding
required, although clearly the costs of this borrowing would fall upon the HRA.
However, any prudential borrowing will only ever form part of a long-term solution
and consideration will need to be given to a range of options in the context of the
remodelling of the 30 year HRA Business Plan under the new self-financing
regime proposed by the government.

1.
11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

Head of Legal Services Comments

The report asks Cabinet to agree that any additional capacity within the 2010-12
Decent Homes budget will fund further Decent Homes works identified from the
ongoing stock conditions survey. The report recommends that approval for this
additional work be delegated to the Director of Adult & Housing Services in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing.

Cabinet has the power under section 15 of the Local Government Act 2000 to
delegate authority to approve contracts to officers.

The report asks Cabinet to agree that further financial savings in contracts HO13,
NT15 & ST16 are explored via negotiation or mini-tender and that authority to
commit these revised contracts is delegated to the Director of Urban
Environment. As stated in paragraph 8.2 above Cabinet has the power to
delegate authority to award contracts to officers.

As stated in paragraph 6.18, running a mini-tender would require agreement of
the framework contractors to amend the Decent Homes framework conditions.
Homes for Haringey’'s external legal advisors, Trowers and Hamlins, have
advised that such an amendment would be in accordance with procurement
legislation.




Page 158

11.5 This report is a key decision and Homes for Haringey have confirmed this has
been included in the Forward Plan.

11.6 The Head of Legal Services confirms there are no legal reasons preventing
Cabinet approving the recommendations set out in the report.

12. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

12.1 Homes for Haringey’s Asset Management Strategy, 2010-17, covers all
investment in the Councils housing stock, including decent homes. In drawing up
the Strategy, an Equalities Impact Assessment was undertaken. The findings
have been incorporated into Homes for Haringey’s planning processes for
delivering decent homes. This includes ensuring that all residents receive the
same standard of work, and consideration of specific language and other needs
are identified and addressed when drawing up programmes of work.

12.2 A high proportion of households living in temporary accommodation are
vulnerable and from Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities

13. Consultation

13.1 Resident consultation on the proposals detailed in this report have been
incorporated into the main text of the document. Consultation is being shaped by
the Resident Asset Management Panel and through the Homes for Haringey
Board.

14. Service Financial Comments

14.1  The Service Finance Comments are incorporated into the text of this report.

14.2 Homes for Haringey’s Director of Resources has been involved in the preparation
of this report and their comments are incorporated in the body of the report.

14. Use of Appendices
Appendix 1 — Proposed Improvement Standard (Elemental)
Appendix 2 — Proposed Capital Priorities 2011/12

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Homes for Haringey’s Asset Management Strategy 2010-17.




Page 159

sisoq Apadoad
[DNPIAIPUL UD UO PBSSSSY

Bulsa} dld Ag pauiuap! spom
ssojun paob|dal 8q Jou {IM

sisoq Apadoud
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO Passassy

Bulisa} did Ag palyusp!
SHOM Ssajun paopidal 8q LoU |lIM

yoooiddp 320iq/a401s9/1984)s
D UO AIDSSEDAU SBW0D3Q
Jom usym paopidal aq IM

(NDD) soupoalg

sisoq Apadoud
[ONPIAIPUI UD UO Passassy

Buisal dld AQ paliusp s3om
sso|un paop|dal 89 |ou |IM

sisoq Apedoud
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO PaSSassy

Bulisal yid A paiuspl
SHIOM SSB|uUN paobidal aq Lou [IM

yopouddp 300jq/ai0isa/1981)s
D UO AIDSS8I38U SBWI0Daq
Jom uaym paopidal aq [IM

{Buuim) soujoea

(SYSHH J8pun pepasu
S| jJuswiaop|dal/}HIoM ssajun)

siIspg Apadoud [pnplAIpul UD
UO passassy "juawalinbal SYSHH
# JO/puUD WooIYyipg UILPOoW
D Y}IM P|O SIDBA QF sayopal

yopoliddp a1pisa/}oaus “Jun
95NDDaQ puUBYaI0jeg papasu
SI JIOM $$BJUN WIOOIYLDQ UIspow
D Y}IM PIO SIDBA O SOW0D8q

pPaoD|dal 8Q Jou [IM | wooiyipg usaym paspidal aq [IIM | Woolyibg usym padnidal aq (IM woouyipg
siIspq Apadoud |pnplAipul yopouddo 8)0}sa/jaa.s “Jun
(SYSHH 1opun papaau UD UO Passassy “juswialinbail 95ND29Q PUDY3I0}Q Papaau
S| jJuswiaop|dai/ oM ssajun) | SYSHH H 10/pUD UusyDdHy uiepowl SI JJOM S$SBJUN UBYDLY WIDpow
D UM PJO SIDBA g s8yoDal D YIM PIO SIDBA g soyoDnal
paop|dal 8g JOU |IM uayoi uaym paonidal aq |IM usyOJP usym paonjdal aq [IIM uayoy
TVNY3INI
pIDpuUD}s pIDpPUDJ}S
juswaaoidwy pasodoly sawioy juadap jusaund piopub}s ASBULDH |Ind juswiajgz

(leyuawajg) psepuelg Juswanoidw) pasodold | xipuaddy

jlouno”) AebBuliey




Page 160

suwwniBoid HQ ul sbujjieamp (o

(Jou 1o payuspl YoM JO
BAl}Dadsal sBullamp (|0 JO %001
SI jJuswialinbal ‘spIomuo ¢ A (N0

PBLUDD SHIOM 818ym sBuljjomp
4O %01 Som Juswalinbal g 1A pup
[ JA) swwpbiBoid HQ ui sBuljjemp

[osioiddy

0} JNO PaLUDD ABAINS SOJSOQSY 0} {NO PSIUDD ABAINS SOJSBQSY suoydQ ui 8ouala}al ON sOJseqsy
sisoq Apadoud sisoq Apadoud
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO PasSassY [ONPIAIPUI UD UO POSSassy
s|qissod JI pajipisul |qissod yi pajjoysul
‘ABAINs 0} }o8lqns - AJIADD ‘ABAINS 0} 403[gns - AUADD uoyp|Nsul
3|qIssod JI WWQQE O} Paj|pisul 3|qissod Jf WWQQE o4 oM ALADD Ulim pajly 89
‘ABAINS O} 108lans — Jjo7 | P |pIsuUL ‘ABAIns o} 108lgns — 1407 pInoys saijuadoud [jom AJADD ||V uolp|Nsy|

158} ¥Id lepun

Buuim Jo spouibdn jo upnd

SD 10 ‘SYSHH J8pun paylusp!
Jl pooD|dal 10 PY|IPisul 8] [IM

sisoq Apadoud
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO PBSSaSSY

juasald Jou J| Po||PIsuUl SUIBJSAS
Alajpq 8yif JA Q| 1O SIMPIDH

s10408)8p
SYOWS PBIIM SUIDU YJIM
Pyl 89 pinoys saipedoid |y

$10}08]8p 9YoWs

(8411 sS4 J0 pud seyopal

WIBJSAS 10 SYSHH Jopun
papasu st jJuswaopidal ssajun)
paop|dal 8q OU |IM

SIDBA

G>=JO 8}i Wal :Juswaop|day
‘ABAINs Buimo||0; sisog Aladoid
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO POSSaSSY

wiajsAs Bulibay |pusD uRPOW
[IN} © 8ADY pINoys saladold v

walsAs BulipsoH

SIDBA

(SYSHH tepun G>=JO 9Ji| Wal juswadp|day
papaau s| juswaop|dail sssjun) "AaAns Buimoy|oy sisoq Apadold WIaJsAs Buyjpay |puad ulepow
paop|dal 8q JOU [iiM [DNPIAIPUI UD UO Passassy [IN} © 8ADY pInoys saluadoud v lajiog
pIopuDys
juswaaoidw) pasodold | PIDPUD}S SAWOY JU3D3P judUND pippuns ASBUUDH [nd jusawajz




Page 161

(Wdd
Japun }Jno paLupd sipdal 100p)

paop|dal 8q [|IM SADMY|DM
uado UO SI00pP/SIo0P
Buiop) (23814s AJUO :8JON

sisoq Apadoud
[ONPIAIPUI UD UO PBsSassy

AIDSS9DBU saW023q

SHIOM uaym ‘uolpoiInads
soupwiopsd yim
92UDPIODID U| SIOOP BIND8S
pupL ulspow Yim paop|day

(Wdd
Jspun jno pap sipdal 100p)

paop|dal aq jim
SADMY|IOM USdO UO SI00P/SI00P
BuIony) J981)s AJUO :8J0N

SIDSA

G>= JO aJi| Wai :Juswadp|day
‘AaAns Buimol|oy sisnq Apledoad
[DNPIAIPUL UD UO PBSSassy

AIDSS928U S8W0D3Q SHIOM
usym ‘uolpoyioads asupuouad
Y4IM 82UDPIODID Ul SIOOP 8IND8S

pPUD uwspow yim paop|day

yopouddp 8jp}sa/19a14s

D UO UOKIPUOD BuUlSIXD

JO BAl}Dadsaul ‘SIOOP 8INJas pub
ulepow yim paopidal aq ||IM

(sBuliemp o)
SI00P YOPg/iuoid

SH|

Buluipwal uo Juspuadap st SIy}
— paop|dal 89 AjL2DWOIND
JOU ||IM SMOPUIM PBWIDY

|[93}s pup pazp|B a|buls :9j0N

Alpssaoau
So pazp|b s|gnop Yjim

(Wdd 1epun
{NO PBIDD SIDAS8] MOPUIM)

sISog 32o0|g/Apadoaid [pnpiAlpuUl
UD UO passassy ‘AaAIns Buimol|oy)
AIDSsa28U Jl spun pazo|b

‘(poajsul

pasn aq Abw Buizp|b AIbpuooss
8i8Yym DSID UOIIDAISSUOD D Ul
1daoxa) sispq %00jq/a40)so/10314s
D UO UCHIPUOD JO BAllDadsaul
Buizo|b a|gnop yiim paosp|dal

paop|dal 10 pasndal 3q [IM 8|gNop Yiim paop|dal 8q [iIM | 89 [|IM SMOPUIM pazo|b a|Buls ||V SMOPUIM

9|qISP3} 818YM $4001 payod

sIspg 3o0|g/Aadold [pnplAipul sIsog Yo0|g/Apadoid [pnpiAlpul yiim paopjdal aq o4 §400l
up UO passassy ‘|psividdp UD UO passassy ‘|psiniddp 104 'yopoiddp apjsa/|oals (@1nyonuys
suolydo/AaAIns Buimoloy suoldo/AaAIns Buimo||o} D UO AIDSS8DAU SBLI0Daq pa}pIo0ssD
paop|dai/palipdal aq [IM paop|dal/paipndal aq |IM JOM uaym paooidal aq [IM oul) Jooy
TVYN33LX3

pIDpUD)S pIDpPUD)S

juswaaoidw pasodosd S9WIOY Jud23p juaund piopup}s ASBUlIDH N4 juswaj3z




Page 162

- "uaypUBPUN 8q
M sIDdal [DINLDNUYS |D1JUSSST

/Usiuly Iopm /AsuwilyD)
SUOI|IODa g PUD SHDAaY [PUISIXT
UolippD Ul — AIDSS8D8U SD N0
pPaWDD sipdal 8}8I10U0D [PUIBIXT

Ul S{lun |DUOIIPDI-UOU BSL
MO| pup salusdoud asu ybiy
8y} 0} N0 pPaLIPD 8q PINOYS
SUOM [DINFONILS AJDSSDDBU ||V

snipdal [pINLoNUS

pIopuDjs

piDpuDjs

juswaroidw pasodouyd S9WIoY Juadap juaund piopunys ASBUUDH |In4 juswalz
swwpibold
[PHADD W By} Ul passaIppPD
8Q ||IM SHIOM S2UDUSUIDWI =71 eJ1y2)
pauup|d |pILUSssT alpudoiddo Uuo SpIBWDD
‘P3JID4sUl 9Q JOU |IIM | PIOPUDIS JUSLND Ul PBPN|oUl JON | pawasp a1aym papiroid aq [iIM AjIND8s ON

swwpibold

IPHADD Y1 By} Ul pessaIppo
4 [[IM SHIOM 8DUDUSUIDW
pauup|d |plyuassy
‘pappiBdn

/ P3||IDJsUl 8g JOU |IM

PIDPUDJS JUBLND Ul PapN[oul JON

swwpiboid

S2uUDUSUIDW SAlDIUBABId
pauupb|d pspuny AN} o Jo pod
so psppibdn/paobidal aq [IIM

Jpdal Jo pasu
ul puo pjo yin

swwpibold

IPHdDD IRW Y4 Ul PassaIppD
aq |[IM SHOM 8DUDUSIUIDW
pauup|d |pIyuUassy

‘P3||Bjsul 89 JOU [IIM

PIDPUDJS JUSLND Ul papN|ouUl JON

$asD2 ||b Ul papiacid 89 |IM

3D0|q O} WISJSAS
AljUa J00Op ON

paoon|dal 8q Jou IM

PIDPUDIS JUSLIND Ul PapPN|DUl JON

yoooiddo

320|g B Uo UoYIPUOD Bulsixa

JO 8Al}0adsall ‘SIO0P 8IND3S PUD
wispow Yim paoso|dal aq |IM

{30019
0}) 100p |DUIBIXT

pIDpPUD}S
juswaroidwi pasodouy

pIDpUD}S
SaWIOY JUadap jusaund

pIDpPUD}S ASBULIDH [In4

juswalg




Page 163

"swwnibold IppdonD IW
8U} Ul passaIppb aqg ||IM SHIOM
95941 "PSpN|oUl 8qQ JOU |IM

PIOPUDYS JUBLND
Ul papn|oul jou - swwniboid
JO 7 PUD | D3 A UIYim PapNou|

1O payoiIms sl anbojpup
a10}9q uoldasal AL [D}IBIP 10}
pa|goo aq pjnoys seipadoud (v

Al 104B1Pp

Papn|oul 89 jou [IM

PIOPUDJS JUBLND Ul PaPN|OUl JON

Pujlepowal ajp}sa JupoLIUbIS
lo} 8doog ‘sjuswaaoidwl
[D4USWIUOIIAUS 10} BpDW

OS|D UOISIAOI4 “pPalinbal uaym
pup so paop|dal aq jm syiod
‘'sopb ‘Buious) SO YoNs sway|

JUSWIUOIIAUS
[oulaxX3

SHIOM

HQ o} pajoala Jou Bulp|opos
11 Wdd J@pun {no palind

sipdal ysiuly pup DUgp) [ouIaxg

sisoq 3oo|g/Auadoud
[DNPIAIPUI UD UO Passassy

"swwpiboid HQ Jepun

SHIOM SMOPUIM JIO/PUD 00 10}
pajoals Buip|oypas J| paliodal
a4 |Iim (9B1pq/4iy40s/010sP

3yl IDBA g D
saipadoud asay} aAIb 0} 1aplo




000°000'7 3 | _

SHIVdIN a3SNV.LIdVYD

000°000° 3| Juswaoe|day Jajlog

SININIDIV1d3 d3109

31| J0 Ayjenb sjuapisal aaosdwit

pue spuny |euogippe ul JaAs) 0} Ajunuoddo sapinoid osie jey) 1e6pnq joedwi Ybiy/sod moj
S9|gEMBUSY -

Buyooud ybneuq -

sjaxoe( jue} Jajem JoH -

(Irem pijos ‘Apaed ‘yoj) uonensu -

000°0S1 3 Buipnjour swweisboud Aousioyje ABIaua puny o} SHIOAN

NOLLVAN3ISNOD ADY3INI

000°00¥ 3 | [

SHUOM TVANLONAULS

Page 164

(019 swia)sAs Bugeasy |esjuad ‘souosle
apnjoul Aew) sjiey SHSHH | Ai0b8jed aAowWal 0} SHIOM Ajojes pue yjeay |e)uassa
000'000'S ) 3 pue (238 S100p SMOpUIM ‘S}001) BN Jayjeam sBull[oMP S3ewW 0} SHIOM |euls)xs [enuassy

S3INOH IN3D3d

S3ALLRIORId A3S0d0¥d

THLLOZ | SY¥OM 30 NOILdINOS3A |

ZL/1102 sanuoud jeyided pasodoid g xipuaddy

jlouno”) Aobuley




Page 165

000'001 3 Anq 0} sjueus} a|qeua o} Sjueic)
S3AILNIONI HSYD

000°002'1 3 _
SNOILYidVaV ® Salv.

000009 3 _
SHUOM SAIOA JAISNILXI

000°2€ 3 _
SHUOM FOVNIVHA ANV IOVMIS

000°00L 3 _
TYAONINY SO1S38SY
000'00Z 3 SHIOM |BJUaSSD 10§ Aouabuiuo)
SYUOM TV 1IdVI TVIINISS3

000'80%'L 3 |
$334 TYNOISS340¥d
000'005°C 3 Syl lesy)
(S¥1) NLSAS NOILJIDIN QILVAOILNI - AL TVLIOIQ
000°005'} 3 SHIOM | ALOLI JUSWISSESSY XSIY 84l
000°0Z¢ 3 9ouBUSBUIRI\ pauueld :wa)sAS Ajug JooQ
000'062 3 saljddns A)1ou109|@ spiojpue aJimay
IVORILOF T ANV TVOINVHOINW
000001 3 SaLI0Y PAPMOIOIBAO 10} S9oBdSPaq |BUORIPPE JO UOIIBaID)
SNOISUYIANOD SHHOM HOrv
000°'00%'L 3 [emauay Y pauue|d

SLINIWIAQUdNI 1411




Page 166

000'SSP'eE 3 _ IViOL

vioL

(019 swaysAs Buneay [eHuad ‘'souosle
apnpul Aew) sjiey SYSHH | A1068jed aA0Wal 0} SHIOM AJBJES pUB Y)Bay |BNUSSS

000°000°L 3 pue (2} s100p SmopuIm ‘sjooi) Jybn Jayieam sBulljemp a)ew O} SHIOM [BUISIXS [BRUSSST
ININHSIGENA3N ST3LSOH
000°0S 3 _ sanuoud [BJUSWIUOLIAUS [B20T]

SININIAOUdWI 31V1S3




Page 167 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet On 26 April 2011

Report Title: Supported Housing Review — Stokley Court

Report of: Anne Lippitt, Interim Director of Urban Environment

Signed: mt%//, Ph}w‘:"’ Date: I.Z./ﬁf—lz_oll

Contact Officer :  Nick Powell, Head of Housing Strategy, Development & Partnerships
Tel: 020 8489 4774
E-mail: nick.powell@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: Hornsey Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 This report updates Members on the progress of the Supported Housing Review.

1.2 It seeks Cabinet approval to change the designation of Stokley Court from a
Sheltered Housing Scheme to a Community Good Neighbour Scheme.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Housing

2.1 The Supported Housing Review has provided the Council with the opportunity to
look in detail at four sheltered housing schemes that do not meet today’s modern
standards. This review includes Stokley Court.

2.2 Together with Haringey's new muilti agency Older People's Housing Strategy, this
Review has enabled us to make informed decisions about how about best to
improve the living conditions of older people in the borough

2 3 We need homes that are accessible, appropriate and meet modern standards, and
we need to develop new models of housing with support that meet people’s
expectations and requirements.




Page 168

24

25

26

By re-designating Stokley Court as a Community Good Neighbour Scheme, we will
be making it clear to prospective tenants what facilities are on offer and that Stokley
Court is not suitable for frail older people who require lifts to the upper floors and
internal corridors between the blocks of flats.

We have listened to the views of the residents of Stokley Court who have
acknowledged the physical limitations of the scheme but expressed a strong desire
to remain in their existing homes with the support of a Community Scheme Officer.

The re-designation of Stokley Court is supported by Homes for Haringey and the
Council’'s Adult & Housing Services, and will help address the Audit Commission’s
concerns about the standard of some of Haringey’s supported housing.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1 The Supported Housing Review supports the Council’s objective of becoming “a
Council we are all proud of — delivering high quality, cost effective services”.

3.2 As well as contributing to the implementation of our Housing Strategy 2009-2019,
this Review supports the delivery of the following corporate priorities:
* Homes and neighbourhoods fit for the future
e Spending wisely and investing in the future

3.3 Haringey's multi agency Older People’s Housing Strategy 2011-21 (approved by
the Cabinet in March 2011) includes, as a priority, the development of “a range of
housing options that enable people to live independently for as long as possible”.

4. Recommendation

4.1 Itis recommended that Cabinet:
(@) Approves the re-designation of Stokley Court from a Sheltered Housing

Scheme to a Community Good Neighbour Scheme; and
(b) Approves the reinstatement of Stokley Court within Haringey’s decent
homes programme.

5. Reasons for Recommendation

5.1 In 2008, the Council carried out a review of its supported housing, with the
assistance of the Housing Quality Network, with a view to ensuring the provision of
well managed, high quality, sustainable homes for older people in Haringey.

5.2 The review concluded that, for a number of the Council's existing sheltered

schemes, there are difficulties in letting properties and doubts about the long term
need and demand for this type of housing. At the same time, there were concerns
about the high cost of bringing the properties up to the decent homes standard and
it was identified that there was a need to explore new models for providing care
and support, including Extra Care Supporting Housing.




Page 169

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

At its meeting on 17 November 2009, Cabinet considered a plan for addressing the
specific needs of four sheltered housing schemes (Protheroe House, Larkspur
Close, Stokley Court, and Campbell Court), increasing the provision of Extra Care
Supported Housing and enabling all of the Council’s supported housing to be
brought up to the decent homes standard.

Cabinet decided that Campbell Court should be retained as a sheltered housing
scheme and included in the decent homes programme and that, subject to
consultation and the redevelopment of the site being financially viable, Protheroe
House would close and be redeveloped as Extra Care Supported Housing.

At that meeting in November 2009, Cabinet decided to defer a decision on the
future of Stokley Court and Larkspur Close pending the outcome of further work,
including the production of Haringey’s Older People’s Housing Strategy.

Officers have met with the tenants of Stokley Court and their representatives on a
number of occasions during the past year. From those discussions, it is clear that
there is a good community spirit at Stokley Court and that the tenants do not wish
to leave their homes. However, tenants do acknowledge that the layout of the
scheme (across a number of separate blocks) and the absence of passenger lifts
to the upper floors cause difficulties for people who are less mobile.

During the consultation on the Older People's Housing Strategy, older people and
other stakeholders called for minimum standards for sheltered housing that will
ensure that such housing is accessible and appropriate. This is one of the priorities
in the new Strategy. Stokley Court clearly does not meet these standards.

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out in relation to Stokley Court
(see Appendix 1). The outcome of the Assessment supports the re-designation of
Stokley Court to a Community Good Neighbour Scheme and has highlighted the
fact that the current tenant profile of Stokley Court is more matched to this type of
scheme, rather than a Sheltered Housing Scheme.

By re-designating Stokley Court and awarding existing tenants on the first and
second floors of the scheme priority for a transfer (if they want and require it) to any
vacant ground floor flats in Stokley Court and any vacancies in the nearby
sheltered housing scheme at Bedale Court, the Council will be providing the area
with a Community Good Neighbour Scheme and placing existing tenants in @ more
advantageous position than they are at the moment.

5.10 The re-designation of Stokley Court will ensure that none of the existing tenants

have to move (which is something they have requested) and everyone moving into
the scheme is clear about the facilities offered and who it is suitable for.

5.11 Stokley Court now needs to be included in Haringey’s decent homes programme.

6.

6.1

6.2

Summary

Since November 2009, the Supported Housing Review Project Team has
undertaken a lot of work to progress Cabinet's decision on the future options for
Stokley Court. This work has been dependent on, and aligned with, Haringey’s
Older People’s Housing Strategy.

Through consultation with the tenants of Stokley Court, their representatives and a
range of other stakeholders, it has been possible to reach consensus on the future
use of Stokley Court as a Community Good Neighbour Scheme.




Page 170

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

A Community Good Neighbour Scheme is one that does not have a dedicated
Scheme Manager, but has instead a Community Scheme Officer who will make
regular visits, monitor tenants’ well-being and provide tenants with advice on day-to
day issues and problems. Each flat will continue to have an alarm system and
emergency help is available, around the clock, just as with sheltered housing.

Arrangements will be put in place to enable existing tenants on the first or second
floors of Stokley Court to transfer to homes on the ground floor (or to a nearby
sheltered housing scheme) when they are no longer able to cope without a lift.

Although the rent may reduce slightly, the housing related support charge will not
change. As the Support Service for sheltered housing is carrying vacancies, the
Scheme Manager at Stokley Court can be redeployed into another role.

The re-designation of Stokely Court is consistent with the strategic direction of the
Supporting People programme which advocates the development of a ‘hub and
spoke’ model of support for older people.

Although Homes for Haringey originally estimated that the cost of decent homes
work at Stokley Court will be in the region of £800,000, this estimate was based on
the ‘whole house’ approach, rather than the ‘elemental’ approach that has been
proposed for decent homes in the light of the Government’s decision to reduce the
funding available. Stokley Court will now benefit from decent homes work.

71

7.2

7.3

7.4

Background

Stokley Court is a Sheltered Housing Scheme comprising 43 flats in 3 separate
blocks. Each block has 2 or 3 floors, none of which are served by a passenger lift.

There is a communal kitchen, lounge and laundry, but each block can only be
accessed by going outside. Not all blocks are visible from the Manager's Office.

Since the Cabinet decision of 17 November 2009, good progress has been made
in relation to decent homes, the Older People’s Housing Strategy, and the options
for Protheroe House, Stokley Court and Larkspur Close:

e Improvement works to 26 of the Council's 29 sheltered housing schemes
(including Campbell Court) are being progressed by Homes for Haringey
through the borough’s decent homes programme;

e In December 2010, Cabinet agreed that discussions should take place with
housing association partners and the Homes and Communities Agency with a
view to providing Extra Care housing on the Protheroe House site:

» Haringey's Older People’s Housing Strategy was approved by Cabinet in March
2011. Priorities include the development of a wider choice of housing with
support and care across all tenures that need to be fit for purpose.

e A multi-disciplinary Project Team (comprising Officers from Housing Services,
Homes for Haringey and Adult Services) has been overseeing the progress of
the Supported Housing Review and has focused on the options for Stokley
Court, Protheroe House and Larkspur Close.

The report on the options for Larkspur Close will be considered separately at a
later date once consultation with Ward Members and tenants is completed.




Page 171

8.2

8.3

Other options considered

Although consideration has been given to the merits and feasibility of redeveloping
Stokley Court (perhaps as a much larger site involving adjoining land) for new
homes, this option has been rejected because of the lack of available funding.

Consideration was also given to the merits and feasibility of providing passenger lift
access to the first and second floors of Stokley Court. This was rejected, however,
due to the severe pressures on the housing capital programme and the fact that, as
confirmed by the Older People’s Housing Strategy, there is over-provision of
sheltered housing in Haringey.

Given its unsuitability for older people with reduced mobility, retaining Stokley
Court as a sheltered housing scheme is not an option that can be considered.

9.1

9.2

Chief Financial Officer Comments

At present, there is no Capital budget allocated to the Supported Housing Review.
It is possible that the capital investment required, in the range of £800k, could be
funded from Decent Homes allocation, but the Council's allocation for 2011-12 is
much reduced from previously announced levels and Members will need to agree
how to allocate the new sum before any projects can proceed.

The impact on the Adult Social Services Revenue Budget is broadly neutral and
the small reduction in rent income expected should be contained within the overall
HRA budget.

10.
10.1

Head of Legal Services Comments

Stokley Court is a building that houses older people and it is proposed that Stokley
Court is re-designated as a “Community Good Neighbour Scheme”. Accordingly
under such a scheme, there will no longer be any dedicated manager who will
instead be replaced by a Community Scheme Officer and some of the facilities will
be restricted. An Equalities Impact Assessment must be carried out in respect of
this proposal and its finding included in the report.

11.
1.1

Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

An Equalities Impact Assessment has been carried out (see Appendix 1). The
outcome of this Assessment supports the re-designation of Stokley Court to a
Community Good Neighbour Scheme. The current tenant profile is more matched
to this type of scheme rather than sheltered housing.

12.
121

12.2

Consultation

The tenants of Stokley Court have been consulted on the future options for their
sheltered housing scheme and, although they were initially opposed to change
(as would be expected), they now accept and agree that the scheme should be
re-designated as a Community Good Neighbour Scheme.

During the consultation, tenants said they wanted residents who are currently
living on the first and second floors of Stokley Court to be prioritised for a transfer
to any of the ground floor flats that become available in the scheme or to any of
the flats that become available in Bedale Court, a nearby sheltered scheme. They
liked the idea of Stokley Court developing closer links with Bedale Court.




Page 172

12.3

124

12.5

As Stokley Court has a communal kitchen, lounge and laundry, it is proposed that
tenants retain access to the laundry, and that the Community Scheme Manager
and a tenant's representative hold a key to use the other facilities for meetings.

The views of the Hornsey Ward Councillors have been sought throughout the
consultation process, and these Councillors have been very helpful in
progressing the recommendations in this report.

The feedback from the wide ranging consultation on the Older People’s Housing
Strategy showed that organisations and older people agreed that all specialist
housing schemes should be accessible. This means that all areas and floors can
be accessed by any tenant regardless of mobility or illness.

13.
13.1

13.2

13.3

Service Financial Comments

It is proposed that Stokley Court be re-designated from a Sheltered Housing
Scheme to a Community Good Neighbour Scheme. The change will mean that
homes on the first and second floors will be available to housing applicants who
do no have mobility issues. This should reduce the voids level for these units.

It is expected that the rent charged per unit will reduce slightly but the higher
utilisation of stock should compensate for any reduction in rent.

Stokley Court requires £800,000 capital spend to bring it up to the decent homes
standard. As reported, there is reduced funding; over the next two years, there
will be £50 million less funding than originally anticipated.

14.

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 Equalities Impact Assessment

15.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Haringey's Older People’s Housing Strategy 2011-21




Page 173

APPENDIX 1
HARINGEY COUNCIL
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT FORM Haringey
Service: Strategic & Community Housing Services
Directorate: Urban Environment
Title of Proposal:  Stokley Court re-designation from sheltered housing to

Community Good Neighbour scheme
Lead Officer (author of the proposal): Rosie Green

Names of other Officers involved: Nick Powell, Len Weir, Rachel Hawley

Step 1 - Identify the aims of the policy, service or function

State what effects the proposal is intended to achieve and who will benefit
from it.

Proposal

In 2009, the Council carried out a review of its supported housing, with the assistance of
the Housing Quality Network (HQN), with a view to ensuring the provision of well
managed, high quality, sustainable homes for older people in Haringey.

The review concluded that, for a number of the Council’s existing sheltered schemes,
there are difficulties in letting properties and doubts about the long term need and
demand for this type of housing. At the same time, there were concerns about the high
cost of bringing the properties up to the decent homes standard and it was identified
that there was a need to explore new models for providing care and support, including
extra care housing.

In November 2009, Cabinet considered a plan for addressing the specific needs of four
sheltered housing schemes (Protheroe House, Larkspur Close, Stokley Court, and
Campbell Court) increasing the provision of Extra Care Supported Housing and
enabling all of the Council's supported housing to be brought up to the decent homes
standard.

At its meeting on 17 November 2009, Cabinet decided that Campbell Court should be
retained as a sheltered housing scheme and included in the decent homes programme.
It deferred a decision on the future of Larkspur Close and Stokley Court pending the
outcome of further work, including the production of Haringey’s Older People’s Housing
Strategy.



Page 174

The Older People's Housing Strategy is now complete and has been agreed by the
Integrated Housing Board at its meeting on 31% January 2011 and is due to be
presented to Cabinet on 22™ March 2011.

This EIA considers the implications for Stokley Court of re-designating the scheme from
sheltered housing to a Community Good Neighbour scheme.

Background information

Stokley Court consists of three separate blocks and each is either 2 or 3 floors high.
There are no lifts and each block can only be accessed by going outside and from the
Managers office not all the blocks can be seen.

Options for consideration

It is proposed that Stokley Court is re-designated as a Community Good Neighbour
scheme. (A Community Good Neighbour Scheme is one where there is no dedicated
Manager, but where a Community Scheme Officer will make regular visits, keep an eye
on tenants’ well-being and offer advice with day-to day problems. Each flat will continue
to have an alarm system and emergency help is available around the clock, just as in
sheltered housing)

For Stokley Court where there is a communal lounge and kitchen plus a laundry, it is
intended that tenants will still retain the laundry but that the communal lounge and
kitchen be locked. A tenant's representative as well as the Community Scheme Officer
will hold a key so the facilities can be used for meetings etc.

Tenants are keen that Stokley Court should become a Community Good Neighbour
scheme as they want to remain in their current homes. Tenants would like those who
currently live on the first and second floors to have priority for any ground floor void
flats.

Tenants are also keen to build closer links with Bedale Court, a sheltered housing
scheme sited two minutes walk away.

It is likely that the rent will decrease slightly. Homes for Haringey are currently
calculating any changes

The housing related support charge will remain the same at £28.76 per person per
week.

The support service for sheltered housing is carrying vacancies so the current
scheme Manager would be redeployed into another role.

This new model fits with the strategic direction the Supporting People programme
intents to develop for older people i.e. a hub and spoke model

ACCS and Homes for Haringey agree and support this proposal.



Page 175

Step 2 - Consideration of available data, research and information

You should gather all relevant quantitative and qualitative data that will help you assess
whether at presently, there are differential outcomes for the different equalities target
groups — diverse ethnic groups, women, men, older people, young people, disabled
people, gay men, lesbians and transgender people and faith groups. Identify where
there are gaps in data and say how you plug these gaps.

In order to establish whether a group is experiencing disproportionate effects, you
should relate the data for each group to its population size. The 2001 Haringey Census
data has an equalities profile of the borough and will help you to make comparisons
against population sizes.

http://harinet.haringey.gov.uk/index/news_and_events/fact file/statistics/census_statisti
cs.htm

2a) Using data from equalities monitoring, recent surveys, research, consultation
etc. are there group(s) in the community who:

= are significantly under/over represented in the use of the service, when
compared to their population size?

= have raised concerns about access to services or quality of services?

= appear to be receiving differential outcomes in comparison to other
groups?

We have collated data about the current tenants at Stokley Court

There are 43 tenants in total

Age profile

12

[@Noof tenants
EMale
OFemale

4548 50-54 55-58 60-84 6569 70-74 15719 80-84 BS»




Page 176

Age profile and disability

No of
| Age tenants Male | Female | Disability

45-49 1 0 1 1
50-54 3 2 1 3
55-59 4 2 2 2
60-64 5 0 5 4
65-69 4 5 0 1
70-74 12 7 4 6
75-79 6 2 4 0
80-84 7 3 4 1
85+ 1 1 0 0
TOTAL 43 22 21 18
Ethnicity
WHITE

British 16

Irish 3

Greek Cypriot 1

Greek 2

Turkish Cypriot 1

Turkish 1

Other White 4
MIXED

Wh & Blk African 1
ASIAN OR ASIAN
BRITISH

Indian 2

Other Asian 1
BLACK OR BLACK
BRITISH African 3

Caribbean 3
CHINESE 0

Any other 2
TOTAL 40

We do not know the race of 3 tenants

Faith

Christian 22
Muslim 5
None 2
Other 2
Not disclosed 12
Total 43




Page 177

Sexual Orientation

Heterosexual 40
Not disclosed 3

We have data on the age and gender profile of Haringey tenants living in
sheltered housing and Community Good Neighbour schemes. This is shown
below.

Age and gender profile of Haringey Council sheltered housing tenants

85+
80to 84
75t079
70t0 74
65 to 69
60 to 64

55 to 59

50 to 54

120 100 80 60 40 20 O 20 40 60 80 100 120

Age and gender profile of Haringey Council Community Good
Neighbour tenants

85+

80to 84

75t0 79

70to 74

65to 69

60 to 64

55to 59

50 to 54

60 80

11



Page 178

2b) What factors (barriers) might account for this under/over
representation?

1. Age and gender

When comparing the data on age and gender between Stokley Court and
sheltered and Community Good Neighbour schemes the following findings
are identified.

Age

The age profile of Stokley Court does not match with the overall age profile
of tenants in sheltered housing. Sheltered housing shows an increasing
number of older people. Stokley Court’s age profile is more in line with that
of Community Good Neighbour schemes.

We can surmise that this is due to the lack of accessibility at Stokley Court
and that the scheme cannot address the mobility requirements of older,
frailer tenants.

Gender

The gender profile of Stokley Court does not match the overall gender
profile of tenants in sheltered housing but is closer to that found in
Community Good Neighbour schemes. Again we may surmise that as
Stokley Court has limited accessibility older females cannot life
independently within the scheme and require level access or lifts to their
homes.

2. Ethnicity

At Stokley Court 60% are non White British. This is considerable higher
than the 43.8% across the Hornsey ward (that Stokley Court is in). The
reasons for this are not known. However this does not impact adversely on
the proposal to re-designate the scheme to a Community Good Neighbour
Scheme.

3. Faith

51% of tenants at Stokley Court are Christian; this is in line with 47.6%
across the whole Ward. 11.6% at Stokley are Muslim compared with the
Ward at 7.4%. Again faith, like race does not impact adversely on the
proposal to re-designate the scheme to a Community Good Neighbour
Scheme.

4. Disability
Some 42% of tenants at Stokley are identified as having a disability. We do

not know the breakdown of this figure but given that it is sheltered housing it
can be assumed that the majority will have physical mobility problems

12



Page 179

Step 3 - Assessment of Impact

Using the information you have gathered and analysed in step 2, you should assess
whether and how the proposal you are putting forward will affect existing barriers and
what actions you will take to address any potential negative effects.

3 a) How will your proposal affect existing barriers? (Please tick below as
appropriate)

By re-designating the scheme we will be making it clear about the facilities offered
and who it is suitable for.

The re-designation will also offer a Community Good Neighbour scheme this area
which currently does have this type of support service.

There will be no requirement for current tenants to move, which is something they
have made clear that they do not wish to do.

By giving current tenants priority for any ground floor flats or void flats at Bedale
Court this places them in a more advantageous position than currently.

By building closer links to Bedale Court, tenants will still have access to communal
activities.

| Increase barriers? | Reduce barriers? x | No change?

Comment

3 b) What specific actions are you proposing in order to respond to the existing
barriers and imbalances you have identified in Step 2?7

By re-designating the scheme will respond to existing barriers and imbalances

3 c) If there are barriers that cannot be removed, what groups will be most
affected and what Positive Actions are you proposing in order to reduce the
adverse impact on those groups?

This is not applicable

13



Page 180

Step 4 - Consult on the proposal

Consultation is an essential part of impact assessment. If there has been recent
consultation which has highlighted the issues you have identified in Steps 2 and 3, use
it to inform your assessment. If there has been no consultation relating to the issues,
then you may have to carry out consultation to assist your assessment.

Make sure you reach all those who are likely to be affected by the proposal, ensuring
that you cover all the equalities strands. Do not forget to give feedback to the people
you have consulted, stating how you have responded to the issues and concerns they
have raised.

4 a) Who have you consulted on your proposal and what were the main issues
and concerns from the consultation?

Council officers have met the tenants and their representatives several times in the last
year. It is apparent that there is a good community spirit and that they do not wish to
leave their homes. However during discussions tenants have acknowledged that not
having lifts to the upper floors and having separate blocks potentially causes difficulties
for people who are less mobile.

Consultation from the Older People's Housing Strategy clearly indicates that older
people and stakeholders want minimum standards for sheltered housing that make
them accessible and appropriate. This has been included in the priorities for the
strategy. Stokley Court clearly does not meet these standards.

We have also consulted with Ward Councillors on this and sought their views for
inclusion in the Cabinet report.

4 b) How, in your proposal have you responded to the issues and concerns from
consultation?

We have listened to the concerns of the tenants that they do not wish to move, however
given the physical constraints of the building it is not suitable for sheltered housing and
it is not possible to bring it to the standard required for this type of supported housing.

By seeking to change the designation of the scheme this will allow tenants to remain in
their own homes and at the same time being very clear about what potential tenants can
expect.

It is proposed that tenants who currently live in Stokley will have priority for any ground
floor flats thereby allowing them to continue living in the scheme but in a flat more suited
for their needs.

4 ¢c) How have you informed the public and the people you consulted about the
results of the consultation and what actions you are proposing in order to
address the concerns raised?

We will meet tenants to let them know that the report is going to Cabinet on 26" April

and will meet them as soon as possible after the meeting to tell them of the decision
made. Following that there will be ongoing work to ensure a smooth transition process.

14



Page 181

Step 5 - Addressing Training

The issues you have identified during the assessment and consultation may be new to
you or your staff, which means you will need to raise awareness of them among your
staff, which may even training. You should identify those issues and plan how and when
you will raise them with your staff.

Do you envisage the need to train staff or raise awareness of the issues arising
from any aspects of your proposal and as a result of the impact assessment, and
if so, what plans have you made?

It is not envisaged that any staff training is required as a result of the impact
assessment.

Step 6 - Monitoring Arrangements

If the proposal is adopted there is a legal duty to monitor and publish its actual effects
on people. Monitoring should cover all the six equality strands. The purpose of
equalities monitoring is to see how the policy is working in practice and to identify if and
where it is producing disproportionate adverse effects and to take steps to address the
effects. You should use the Council’s equal opportunities monitoring form which can be
downloaded from Harinet. Generally, equalities monitoring data should be gathered,
analysed and report quarterly, in the first instance to your DMT and then to the
Equalities Team.

What arrangements do you have or will put in place to monitor, report, publish
and disseminate information on how your proposal is working and whether or not
it is producing the intended equalities outcomes?

= Who will be responsible for monitoring?

= What indicators and targets will be used to monitor and evaluate the
effectiveness of the policy/service/function and its equalities impact?

= Are there monitoring procedures already in place which will generate this
information?

= Where will this information be reported and how often?

The support service collects information about each individual that receives the service.
Part of this includes the data required for equalities. This will be reported on regularly
and as the support service is funded by the Supporting People programme and
therefore subject to the requirements of their Quality Assurance Framework, equalities
and fair access is assessed as part of this.

15



Page 182

91

‘awayog
JnoqybiaN
"awBYyds poo9 Ajunwiwo)
Jnoqubian e 0} sWaYyos sswayos
poo9) Ajlunwiwo)) ay) ajeubisap Jnoqybiau
B 0} aWwayods -aJ 0} |esodoud poob
ay) ajeubisap-a. ay) uo Ajasianpe Aunwiwos
0} jesodoud ay) uo joedwijou | swsjgoud Ajjiqows 0} paydjew
Aj@sianpe joedw S90p Sy} JaAamoH | |eaisAyd sAey jim aiow si
JOU $B0p 8okl sawayos "UMOUY JOu aue Auolew ay) jey) | Ing sawayos
a1l ‘yiiey uieby Jnogqybiau SIU} JOJ SUOSEaI | PaWNSSE 8 Ued )i Buisnoy
"%t/ 18 PIepA poob Ajiunwiwiod ay] ‘(urst| Buisnoy paisyays paJa)jays
3y} yim pasedwod 0} paydjew | unog Aspio}s 1eyl) S111 Jey} uaab J[yjo
wysniy aJe Aspjols alow s|Ing piem AasuwioH nq aunby siyy Joj ajyoud
18 %9 Ll ‘Plep | sawayds Buisnoy | ay) ssoide 9%gcy | Jo umopyeaiq ay; abe jjesano
3|OYM 8y} SSOIOB | PaIad)BYS JaY)0 J0}) ay) uey) Jaybiy MOUY JOU Op aMA ay) yum
uolew.IoUl %9y yim auy | 3jyoud abe jjesano 3|qetapisuod st | Ajjiqesip e Buiaey aul| uljou S|
SIUY} PSSO|OSIP BABYJOU € | UI'SISIY) [UBNSLYD | BU) YIm 8ulj uljou | Syl "ysiug ajyp Sse paynuapl ale | Uno) Aspiois
3|lym |enxasoudldy ase Aayy | aue unoD A9pi0}S | SI WNOY) A8pyolS JO uou aJe %09 | A9P0IS 1B sjueus) Jo ajyoud
ples aAey sjueud) ay} JO O | 1e Sjueus) Jo % |G | djyoud tapuab ay HNOYD A3P0IS IV 40 % Z{ dwog abe ay)
uonejuallQ |enxag | jaljag 40 uoibijay Japuag Ayoiuyyg Anngesiqg aby

Juswissasse JnoA ul paynuap! arey noA sjoeduil 8Y) puesls A)ISISAIP YOS 10} BSLBLIWNS ‘MOjaq 3|qe) 8y} U

payiuapi spoedw) asuewwing - 2 dajg




Page 183

Ll

$82IN0S3. JUBLIND UIYIAA

1102
|udy 92 Buneaw jauiqe)d

lleMOod YOIN AQ paireyod
pieog 108loid mainay
BuisnoH papoddng

paJa)|ays uey) pasu Jamo|
e pawie s| Jyoddns pue
Buisnoy ay) se a|qissiuuad
S1 019 SYl| JO XOE|

a1aym awayos JnoqybiaN
poo95) Alunwiwon)

B 0} dWayos ay}
a)eubisap-ai 0} SI jJauIqe)
0} Buiob podas sy

yoea 0} ssadoe
[eusayxa Ajuo yym
$400Iq € ul paYs si
pue 1| Ou InQg SI00}
¢ sey )i se asodund
Joj 34 Jou s1 Buiping
ay} ajdoad sap|o

10} awayos buisnoy
paia)|ays e sy

suoijesijduwil 924n0SaYy

a|easawi}]

uosiad pea

pasinbaa uoijay

anss)

‘Juawissasse joedwi Siy} JO }INSaJ & Se axe) 0} uejd NoA ey} UonI. JO0) SuoHEpUBWWOTa) Aue MO|aq IsI| ased|d

pajuawa|dwi aq 0} suoloe ay) asuewwng - g doyg




Page 184

Haringey

Step 9 - Publication and sign off

There is a legal duty to publish the results of impact assessments. The reason
is not simply to comply with the law but also to make the whole process and
its outcome transparent and have a wider community ownership. You should
summarise the results of the assessment and intended actions and publish
them. You should consider in what formats you will publish in order to ensure
that you reach all sections of the community.

When and where do you intend to publish the results of your assessment, and
in what formats ?

It will be published with the Cabinet report. If required it will be produced in a larger
format and/or community languages

Assessed by (Author of the proposal):

Name: Rosie Green
Designation: Housing Strategy and Partnerships Manager
Signature: Rosie Green

Date: 22 February 2011



Page 185 Agenda ltem 11

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet On 26th April 2011

Report Title: Proposal for the redesign of the Supporting People programme and
contributions to the Council’s savings plan

Report of:  Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services

Signed:

Contact Officer: Margaret Allen, Assistant Director Safeguarding & Strategic Services

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To describe the proposal on redesign of the Supporting People programme from
April 2011 to March 2014, and to achieve improved value for money savings and
to deliver on strategic developments to ensure continued support to the residents
of the borough.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1. The funding cuts from Central Government have meant that all areas of support
and budget commitment be reviewed. The Supporting People programme is
preventative in nature and the council has a clear commitment to continuing to
support local residents through this mechanism. A redesign option on the
Supporting People programme has been drawn up, which will align the programme
with future needs within the community and allow for savings to be made to
contribute to the council’s savings plan.




Page 186

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1.  ACCS Council Plan Priorities are:
¢ Encouraging lifetime well-being at home, work, play and learning;
¢ Promoting Independent living while supporting adults and children in need; and
e Delivering excellent customer focused cost effective services.

4. Recommendations

4.1. Itis recommended that the Supporting People programme is reduced in budget
commitment by £5m from 1% April 2011.

4.2. ltis further recommended that the programme makes use of this opportunity to be
redesigned in line with current and future needs of the borough.

5. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1. Currently the budget allocation for the Supporting People programme is £17m of
which £3m is spent on delivering council-based services, and £14m is contracted
with external providers. The services provided under the programme cover 19
client groups within 14 sectors and has 125 contracts in place to deliver services.

5.2.  The programme provides services to the following sectors:
Mental Health; Learning Disability; Older People; Offender & substance misuse;
Home Improvement Agency; Generic Floating Support to all age groups; BME
organisations (advice & information); Teenage parents; single homeless; Young
People; Domestic Violence; HIV/AIDS and physical/sensory impairment.
The programme also underpins the Rent Guarantee Scheme and links to the
council’'s Housing Strategy, the Move On strategy and the Older People’s Housing
Strategy.
Floating Support services are designed to support people to access housing and
to sustain tenancies in some circumstances. The service assists with:
o Rent arrears
o Benefits, budgeting and debt
o Finding and setting up a home
o Accessing local services

5.3. The programme has been externally evaluated as successfully delivering improved

outcomes for service users and in achieving robust governance and oversight of
council funds. The intention for the future is to use the key skills within the
programme team to ensure continued delivery of both, within a reduced budget
and a re-designed programme. The savings of £5m is challenging but achievable,
through continuing the robust review of the programme which has already
delivered savings of £4m plus, over the last 3 years, in response to Central
Government funding reductions.




Page 187

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

The Floating Support contracts equate to approximately 13% of the SP
programme with approx 85% of Supporting People being accommodation-based,
and 2% being made up of access to employment and Home Improvement Agency
services. The retention of accommodation-based provision will guarantee security
of tenure, and ensure the stability of the programme across sectors, which floating
support would not directly provide. The intention is to reduce floating support
services to a single, generic service (over two years), aimed principally at the core
of homeless people in the borough. It is deemed a lesser risk to remove floating
support services, as most people accessing this service also have access to other
support. The reductions of floating support services would therefore reduce
duplication and overlap with the system, and would achieve savings of £2.6m
based on current spend.

Similarly, the current value of external contracts for mental health support could be
reduced by 40% without losing the accommodation-based provision which is
essential to supporting adults with Mental Health problems effectively. It should be
noted that market rates have determined that the existing contracts are now “adrift”
of market prices, so a contract value reduction would achieve some levelling of
costs. Additionally, there is likely to be increased take up of individual budgets for
this client group that is likely to mitigate a reduced contract value. A reduction on
this part of the programme would achieve savings in the region of £1.3m.

The range of council services in the programme has been reviewed and a saving
of £200k has been identified which could be achieved by 1% April 2011, without
incurring exit costs (due to vacant posts), or destabilising the internal provision. It
is therefore proposed to reduce the in-house spend by £200k.

The existing Root & Branch review of the programme during 2010/11 will also
deliver a proportion of the savings required. The full year effect savings on these,
from 1% April 2011 will deliver an additional £1.4m. The total savings achievable
under this proposal amount to £5.545m which includes the £5m reduction in
response to Central Government spending cuts, and meets an in-year budget
pressure of £545k to bring in a balanced year-end account.

The redesign of the programme would allow (in 2012/13) for the funding to adult
social care client groups to be moved into adult social care commissioning, which
would align better with the transformation programme and increased choice and
control offered to residents. This “passported” funding would allow new services to
be commissioned which would link to housing-related needs, for example,
expanding the use of assistive technology to link with the community alarm
service, and to re-direct funding into extra care supported housing. Both of these
examples would assist a broad range of people to remain in their own homes for
longer. These proposals link to the existing review of supported housing and the
development of the Older people’s Housing Strategy




Page 188

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

The “core” of the redesigned Supporting People programme would focus on hard-
to-reach groups such as; homeless people, Domestic Violence, Offenders,
substance misuse, teenage parents, young people leaving care and young people
at risk. The intention would be to retain the Home Improvement Agency and the
Rent Guarantee scheme and to seek to develop a Foyer in the borough. This
range of services would underpin a continuum of housing options for residents,
whilst developing new initiatives for the future.

As part of the redesign of the programme, we are exploring options for some
external providers to become social enterprises, and discussing re-modelling and
reconfiguration of services across the provider forum, allowing for greater
integration of service delivery, and access to alternative funding streams. To that
end, we are also working with housing on the development of a “gateway” model
incorporating Youth Offending, Hearthstone, the Vulnerable Adults Team and
Housing Accommodation Officers, to enable a more coherent pathway to a range
of housing-related support.

The redesign proposal will follow the council’s consultation process and all service
areas will be equality impact assessed prior to any final decisions.

Other options considered

Officers have considered all options but due to budgetary constraints on the
Council it is necessary to find this level of savings within the Supporting People
budget. This necessitates the redesign of the service to meet these budgetary
demands.

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

Summary

The Supporting People programme is an invest-to-save strategy which responds
to the Prevention Agenda.

The programme has been externally evaluated as delivering good outcomes within
robust governance and has successfully been reviewed in line with reducing
income over the past 3 years.

The programme team enjoys a mature working relationship with providers, which
has allowed for re-modelling and re-negotiated contracts. This approach will be
taken to achieve further savings of £56m required in response to the current
spending cuts.

Equality Impact assessments and full consultation procedures will be followed
prior to any final decisions.

Market shifts have indicated that current contract values are “adrift” of
benchmarked prices, and this will be used as a mechanism for a further levelling
of costs across the programme.

Approximately 13% of the programme is concentrated in Floating Support, with
85% being accommodation-based provision. The proposal is to reduce all but one
generic floating support service, retain accommodation based provision and re-
negotiate contracts where flexibility is available to make the required savings




Page 189

7.7

7.8

7.9

without de-stabilising the programme.

The retained services would (under “Phase 2”) be re-designed with a view to
moving those relevant adult social care client groups into the personalisation
agenda for future commissioning, and focussing the programme on the Hard-To-
Reach groups, within significantly closer working arrangements with strategic
housing.

Consultation with providers, on the proposals closed on 31st March 2011,
consultation with Service Users, closed on 8" April 2011. The feedback (including
responses to EqlAs) and the conclusions from these will form part of any final
decisions. The Council will take into account its public sector equality duties and
responses received to consultation before making any final decisions on the cuts
in this area. The reports will form appendices to the main report and will be tabled
for Cabinet Members prior to the meeting.

As a consequence to delays in due process, there is a risk that the full £56m saving
from the SP programme may not be realised by 1% April 2011. There is a potential
financial risk of £410,000 for a delay of four weeks, which will create an in-year
budget pressure, which will be managed within the programme. The Supporting
People team are working to ensure the minimum disruption.

8.2

8.3

Chief Financial Officer Comments

The budget allocation for the Supporting People Programme is £16.99m. In order
for the Council to meet its savings target and to bridge the gap between available
funding and expenditure the Supporting People Programme must find savings of
£5m. There is an over commitment currently within the programme which, unless
reduced by the end of this financial year, will cause an overspend position on 1%
April 2011 of £0.537m. Therefore, in order to achieve savings of £56m
commitments must reduce by £5.537m.

The proposal outlined above will achieve the required reductions and will result in
a contribution of £56m towards the Council’s budget gap. The service redesign, and
re-negotiation based on current market rates will enable the service to become
more cost effective. Each contract that is being proposed for change or
decommissioning will need to be evaluated to ensure that correct process is
followed minimising any risk of challenge to the council from the current providers.

In order for the saving to be achieved in full, contract reductions would need to
have been in place from 1% April 2011. However, as it is now evident that this will
not be possible, the cost of the delay in implementation will need to be contained
within the overall 2011-12 service budget. A delay of one month will result in a
reduction in savings of approximately £410k. A further 2 months delay, to end of
June 2011, will result in a total reduction in savings of circa £990k.

Head of Legal Services Comments
Final decisions will need to be made as appropriate by the relevant Cabinet




Page 190

Member or Cabinet. The budget report that went to Cabinet on 8" February 2011
approved in principle savings set out in the relevant Appendix to the report and
agreed to delegates final decisions on the savings to be adopted to Directorates
and where appropriate to the relevant Cabinet members within their portfolio
responsibilities, following appropriate consideration of the results of any
consultation and having had due regard to the Council's equality duties. In
particular Equality Impact Assessments will be considered individually and where
appropriately collectively before any final decisions are made.

10. Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]

10.1. N/A.

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

11.1 Equalities Impact Assessments have been carried out for all services which have
been subject to the Root & Branch review within the Supporting People
programme and continued consultation is ongoing with Providers and their service
users.

11.2 For any stakeholders (includes providers and users) likely to be affected by this
proposal but not yet reviewed, Equalities impact assessments are currently being
carried out, in line with the guidance from the Equalities and Diversity Officer.

12. Consultation

12.1 Consultation, in line with guidance from legal services has commenced and a
programme covering affected providers has been drawn up.

13. Service Financial Comments
Efficiencies
Of the proposed £5m cuts, £3.1m will be achieved through efficiencies, without
impacting on service provision, and is inline with the Root and Branch review of
the Supporting People programme which is due to be completed by March/April
2011.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Appendices 1 & 2 to be tabled prior to the meeting.

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1. N/A.




Page 191 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet On 26 April 2011

Report Title: Responding to the NHS and Public Health White Papers

Report of:  Dr. Jeanelle de Gruchy, Director of Public Health
Mun Thong Phung, Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services
Peter Lewis, Director, Children and Young People’s Service

Signed:

Contact Officers:

Dr. Jeanelle de Gruchy Lisa Redfern Debbie Haith

Director of Assistant Director, Adult, Deputy Director,

Public Health, NHS Haringey Culture & Community Services | Children & Families

Tel: 020 8442 6608 Tel: 020 8489 2326 Tel: 020 8489 1496

Email: Email: Email:
jeanelle.degruchy@haringey.nhs. | lisa.redfern@haringey.gov.uk debbie.haith@haringey.gov.uk
uk

Wards(s) affected: All | Report for: Key

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

1.1 This report addresses Haringey’s response to the following White Papers: Equity
and Excellence: Liberating the NHS; and Healthy Lives, Healthy People: Our
strateqy for public health in England, and the legislative requirements set out in
the Health and Social Care Bill. It covers:

1. Setting the strategic direction for health and wellbeing in Haringey

2. Establishing shadow arrangements for the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB)

3. Changes to the NHS (including proposed new public health system, setting up
GP consortia, creating HealthWatch)

1.2 Inreadiness for the establishment of the HWB with full statutory responsibilities by
April 2013, consultation has been undertaken with the groups listed in Section 12:
Consultation to consider the recommendations set out in paragraph 4 of this
report.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1. The NHS White Paper represents possibly the most radical restructuring of the
NHS since its inception. The changes will have major implications for local
authorities which will take on the function of joining up the commissioning of local
Page 1 of 20




Page 192

NHS services, social care and health improvement.

2.2. The Public Health White Paper sets out plans to return public health in England to
the local authority, with a ring-fenced budget of around £4billion.

2.3. Health inequalities continue to be a priority for Haringey and this report sets out
Haringey’s response to these far-reaching changes.

2.4. A small cross-party working group on health inequalities will be established to
determine the top five priority areas on which the Council should focus its effort.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. ACCS Council Plan Priorities are:

e A healthy, caring Haringey
e A thriving Haringey
o Delivering high quality efficient services

4. Recommendations

4.1 Discuss the proposed vision and outcomes to be finalised at the inaugural meeting
of the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board (sHWB).

4.2 Endorse the creation of a sHWB as a small, focused, commissioning decision-
making partnership board from April 2011 and consider the proposed membership
and other arrangements.

4.3  Consider the membership of the statutory HWB from April 2013, described in the
Health and Social Care Bill as a committee of council, taking into account the legal
comments in this report.

4.4  Agree that the immediate focus of the sHWB will be:

e developing a health and wellbeing strategy
e establishing health and social care commissioning arrangements
e integrating the public health function within the council

4.5 Note progress on the transfer and integration of the public health function in the
council, establishment of a GP consortium and HealthWatch, and associated
timescales.

5. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1  The Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS White Paper, published in July
2010, outlines a series of changes to the NHS. It introduces additional
responsibilities and new statutory functions which build on the power of local
authorities to promote wellbeing; notably that local public health functions will be
transferred from the NHS to the local authority. Each local authority will take on the
function of joining up the commissioning of local NHS services, social care and
health improvement which includes positive promotion of the adoption of ‘healthy’
lifestyles, as well as tackling inequalities in health and addressing the wider social
influences of health.

5.2  The Department of Health’s (DH) plan is that new HWBs with full statutory

responsibilities will be in place by April 2013 to ensure that:

Page 2 of 20




Page 193

5.3

54

5.5

5.6

e joint working takes place when commissioning NHS, public health, and social
care services

o there is strategic oversight of health and care services

e GP consortia are responsive to the needs of patients

In November 2010, the government published Healthy Lives, Healthy People,
the White Paper setting out its strategy for public health in England. It describes a
framework and principles to:

e protect the population from serious health threats

e help people live longer, healthier and more fulfilling lives, and

e improve the health of the poorest, fastest

The Public Health White Paper sets out plans to return public health in England to
the local authority, with a ring-fenced budget of around £4billion.

The Health and Social Care Bill 2011 was published on 19 January. The Bill
contains provisions covering five themes:

e strengthening commissioning of NHS services

increasing democratic accountability and public voice

liberating provision of NHS services

strengthening public health services

reforming health and care arm’s-length bodies.

Further relevant policy background is described in Appendix 1.

Other options considered
No other options are under consideration.

7.2

7.3

Summary

This report proposes the strategic direction for health and wellbeing locally with the
following vision:
A healthier Haringey
We will reduce health inequalities through working with communities and residents
to improve opportunities for adults and children to enjoy a healthy, safe and
fulfilling life.

We are proposing three outcomes to be delivered using a partnership
approach across and between organisations:

i) improved health and wellbeing

ii) reduced health inequalities

iii) children and adults safeguarded

What we are proposing to do next:
i. setupasHWB from April 2011
ii. develop a new health and wellbeing strategy with associated delivery
plans
iii. establish health and social care commissioning arrangements
iv. integrate the public health function within the council

Chief Financial Officer Comments
The recommendation to set up a sHWB is not expected to have new financial

Page 3 of 20




Page 194

implications as it is expected to work within existing resources. As outlined in the
summary above, there are likely to be significant financial implications moving
forward. These will be picked up in future reports following receipt of the final
legislation as a result of the White Papers and associated publications.

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Head of Legal Services Comments

The principal legislative reforms will include transferring local health improvement
functions to local authorities, with ring-fenced funding and accountability to the
Secretary of State for Health. Within this, local Directors of Public Health will be
responsible for health improvement funds allocated according to relative
population health needs.

The Health and Social Care Bill, as currently drafted, will require the Council to
establish a Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) for the Borough. The statutory
HWB will have the status of a Council Committee established under section 102 of
the Local Government Act 1972.

The membership of the statutory HWB must comprise: - (i) at least one Councillor
nominated by the Leader of the Council (or the Leader in person may sit on the
HWB), (ii) the Council’s Director of Adult Social Services, (iii) the Council’s Director
of Children’s Services, (iv) the Council’s Director of Public Health, (v) a
representative of the local Healthwatch Organisation, (vi) a representative of each
relevant commissioning consortium and (vii) such other persons or representatives
as the Council thinks appropriate. Once the statutory HWB is established by the
full Council, the Council may appoint additional members to it but only after the
HWB has been consulted. The HWB itself may appoint its own additional
members.

It seems likely that all the members of the statutory HWB will have voting powers
but this will depend on Regulations and Guidance to be made once the Bill has
been enacted. Further legal advice on the membership and constitution of the
HWB will be necessary at this time.

It is anticipated that the statutory HWB will come into being in April 2013. In the
meantime a non-statutory shadow HWB is proposed for establishment by the
Cabinet as a partnership board with a view to working towards a transition to the
statutory HWB.

10.
10.1.

Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]
Not applicable.

11.
11.1

11.2

Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

Haringey has long been committed to ending health inequalities and improving
health and wellbeing locally (see Appendix 2); a summary of our current
commitments is set out below.

Document Commitment
Sustainable Community Healthier people with a better quality of life
Strategy 2007-16
Children and Young We want every child and young person in Haringey to

Page 4 of 20




Page 195

11.3

11.4

People’s Plan 2009-20 be happy, healthy, safe and confident about the
future.

Well-being Strategic A healthy and caring Haringey: All people in Haringey

Framework 2010 (revised  have the best possible chance of enjoyable, long,

draft) healthy lives.

In response to the recent national developments outlined above we are proposing
bringing our local commitments together to promote a Healthier Haringey where
people of all ages are able to benefit from improvements.

An Equalities Impact Assessment will be carried out as we develop the strategic
direction for health and wellbeing locally; it will take account of requirements
included in the Health and Social Care Bill published on 19 January 2011.

12.
12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

Consultation

This report has been considered and agreed by Haringey Council’s Chief
Executive’s Management Board, Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) Well-being
Partnership Board (WBPB), Children’s Trust and CAB.

At a WBPB discussion on 11 January 2011, participants included elected
Councillors and representatives from Haringey Council, NHS Haringey, the Mental
Health and Hospital Trusts, GPs, Public Health, the Voluntary Sector, Police,
Probation Service, Adult Learning and the Community Link Forum. The meeting
fully endorsed the recommendation to establish a sHWB from April 2011 and other
key discussion points have been incorporated into local proposals.

Feedback from the meetings has been used to inform the draft terms of reference
of the sHWB which will be agreed at its inaugural meeting in April 2011.

At the HSP Executive meeting on 9 March 2011, proposals for the new
arrangements were outlined, and the existing WBPB was formally dissolved.

13.
13.1.

Service Financial Comments
Not applicable.

14.

Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

Appendix 1: Policy background
Appendix 2: Remit of existing WBPB and Children’s Trust
Appendix 3: Future key public health roles

15.

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

o Health White Paper, Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS, Haringey
Strategic Partnership, 21 October 2010

e Responding to the NHS and Public Health White Papers, Haringey Well-being
Partnership Board, 11 January 2011

16. Setting the strategic direction for health and wellbeing
16.1 Our proposed vision' for the sHWB in Haringey is:

' To be finalised at the inaugural meeting of the sHWB.

Page 5 of 20




16.2

16.3

17.
17.1

17.2

17.3

Page 196

A healthier Haringey
We will reduce health inequalities through working with communities
and residents to improve opportunities for adults and children to
enjoy a healthy, safe and fulfilling life.

We are proposing three outcomes to be delivered using a partnership
approach across and between organisations:

i) improved health and wellbeing

ii) reduced health inequalities

iif) children and adults safeguarded

Implementing our vision

To achieve this we will:

e Use evidence from our JSNA to plan and commission value for money
services and interventions

e Develop partnership working through the joining up of commissioning for
local NHS services, social care services and health improvement

e Prioritise early intervention and prevention

o Offer residents increased choice and control over their lives, within
available resources, through the personalisation of health and social care
services

e Recognise that local residents, statutory, voluntary, community and
commercial organisations all have a role to play in delivering health and
wellbeing improvements

e Maximise the opportunities to be gained from financial efficiency by closer
partnership working and reducing duplication

e Acknowledge the difficult decisions that will need to be made in light of a
financially challenged health and social care economy, making decisions in
an inclusive and transparent way as possible

Establishing a shadow Health and Wellbeing Board

Local government will have a new role in encouraging coherent
commissioning across the NHS, social care, public health and other local
partners. Local HWBs are the proposed key structures to enable this vision of
joined-up commissioning and provision. The new HWBs with full statutory
responsibilities are required to be in place by April 2013. GP commissioning
consortia have a duty to cooperate with HWBs.

We are recommending that we set up a sHWB from April 2011 — the structure
would need to be able to be modified once legislation in the form of the Health
and Social Care Bill has been passed. The sHWB will operate throughout the
transition period until the new statutory board is in place in April 2013.

The sHWB will be a small, focused, commissioning decision-making
partnership board. However, wider discussion meetings will be held as and
when required to gather a broader body of evidence. The current draft of the
Health and Social Care Bill states that, from April 2013, the statutory HWB will
be a committee of the council.

Page 6 of 20



17.4

17.5

17.6

17.7

17.8

17.9

17.10

17.11

Page 197

An informal introductory meeting of the sHWB took place on Thursday 7 April
ahead of its formal establishment. This was an opportunity for current
membership of the shadow partnership board to receive updates on progress
and to discuss the draft terms of reference prior to the inaugural meeting of
the formal sHWB proposed for May 2011.

It is proposed that the sHWB adopts the HSP’s definition of commissioning:
The cycle of assessing the needs of people and communities in Haringey,
designing effective services and support, influencing the market to secure
services, monitoring and reviewing the impact of commissioned services.

The proposed immediate focus of the sHWB will be:
e developing a health and wellbeing strategy
e establishing health and social care commissioning arrangements

The sHWB will have a broader remit than the former WBPB shifting to whole
system commissioning for children and adults to enhance partnership work. It
will have increasing authority as its statutory functions become clearer. Its
membership will be wider than the WBPB as it will also cover services to
children. Appendix 2 sets out the remit of the WBPB and Children’s Trust.

Haringey was accepted on to the Department of Health’s network of “early
implementers” of HWBs in March 2011.

The sHWB will prepare partners for the establishment of the statutory HWB by

developing a health and wellbeing strategy initiating focused work

programmes to:

e lead the statutory JSNA programme, planning and commissioning services
based on evidence from JSNA findings

e reduce health inequalities, ensuring a focus on public health during the
transition to the local authority leadership for health improvement

e oversee the commissioning function identifying areas and priorities for
joint commissioning and pooled budget arrangements for NHS, children’s
and adults’ social care including safeguarding, public health and other
local services (a group will be set up to lead this work)

e promote integration and partnership working

e promote engagement with GPs through the development of the GP
consortium

e enhance public and patient engagement establishing a local HealthWatch

e monitor and review health and wellbeing improvements and outcomes
(using the NHS, Public Health and Social Care Outcomes Frameworks).

The health and wellbeing strategy will be the mechanism for delivering the
HWB’s outcomes.

Membership of the shadow Health and Wellbeing Board

17.11.1 The proposal for membership of the Board is for the minimum as detailed in

the White Paper.

Agency Number of
representatives

Page 7 of 20



Page 198

Local Authority elected representatives:

Leader of the Council (Chair) 1
Cabinet Member for Adults and Community Services (Vice 1
Chair)

Cabinet Member for Children and Young People 1
Cabinet Advisor on Health Inequalities 1

Local Authority representatives

—

Director of Adult Social Services

—

Director of Children's Services

NHS representatives:

GP Commissioning Consortium

NHS Commissioning Board (when constituted)

NHS Borough Director (pro tem)

alalalnN

NHS Haringey Chair (pro tem)

Joint representation

Director of Public Health 1

Community representative

Health\Watch 1

Total 13

17.12 Local Authority/NHS Integrated Programme Board
17.12.1 In Haringey, we have already set up an Integrated Programme Board to
manage the implementation of the White Papers. It is responsible for:
e Establishing our local HWB (including a sHWB)
e Engaging with GP collaboratives
e Establishing a health and wellbeing commissioning group

17.12.2 The Integrated Programme Board also has a comprehensive
communications plan to help manage the change. We have begun
establishing links between the council, NHS Haringey and GPs, and have
produced a short guide for GPs on the role of local authorities in improving
health and wellbeing outcomes. An event is planned for mid-May for local
authority senior and middle managers, council and GP commissioners,
policy and performance, and key frontline staff.

17.12.3 Membership of the Integrated Programme Board includes representatives
from: Haringey Council’s Adults’ and Children’s Services, the Chief
Executive’s Service; Public Health; NHS Haringey’s commissioning function;
and a Clinical Director representing the GP collaboratives.

17.12.4 The Board meets fortnightly and provides progress updates to the council’s
management board, HSP Executive and Children’s Trust.

17.12.5 There is potential for the Integrated Programme Board to become the
executive group of the sHWB.

18. Changes to the NHS

18.1 Consultation on changes to NHS Haringey

Page 8 of 20



Page 199

18.1.1 Following staff consultation, the Boards of the five Primary Care Trusts (PCTs)
in the NHS North Central London (NCL) cluster? have agreed to create a
single management team across the NCL cluster, while retaining a local
presence in each of the five boroughs. The proposal for this central transitional
organisation was deemed necessary to meet the national requirement to make
significant cost savings by 2012/13; approximately 54% management cost
savings across the NCL sector, which equates to £28 million. Recent
estimates suggest that NHS NCL is within £1.5 million of its savings target as
a result of the move.

18.1.2 The NHS NCL cluster will be responsible for maintaining the performance of
NHS services throughout the anticipated changes in the Health and Social
Care Bill. This will include clinical quality and financial performance and NHS
Constitution requirements. Working with NHS London, the cluster will also
oversee the Quality, Innovation, Productivity and Prevention (QIPP)
programme which is aimed at ensuring value for money and maximum benefit
to patients.

18.1.3 The Haringey Borough Presence Team will have a borough director as the
local leader for the NHS and the transition programme. The Team is due to
move to River Park House in April 2011.

18.2 Proposed new public health system in Haringey

18.2.1 The current PCT public health team, led by the Director of Public Health
(DPH), is part of the above process. Although public health has been relatively
protected, there will be a reduction in the public health workforce through the
proposed management cost savings process, with the loss of four Band 7
WTE and 0.4 WTE Band 8; public health specialist posts have been protected.

18.2.2 The DPH will be employed by the local authority and jointly appointed by the
local authority and Public Health England. The DPH will be professionally
accountable to the Chief Medical Officer (CMO) and part of the Public Health
professional network. The role of the DPH includes:

e developing an approach to improving health and wellbeing locally,
including promoting equality and tackling health inequalities

e promoting health and wellbeing within local government

e advising and supporting Haringey’s GP consortium on the population
aspects of NHS services

e collaborating with local partners on improving health and wellbeing,
including the GP consortium, other local DsPH, local businesses and
others.

18.2.3 Arrangements have been made to deliver certain public health functions at a
sector level, with public health expertise from the borough teams.

2In April 2009, London's 31 PCTs were consolidated into six commissioning groups, now known as
clusters. London was the first to do this and PCT clusters are now being introduced across the NHS in
England, as required by the new Operating Framework and supporting Guidance.

Page 9 of 20



Page 200

18.2.4 Throughout the transition, staff will remain NHS Haringey employees until
employment is either transferred to Public Health England, or other agencies
or providers or the council.

18.2.5 The public health function moved from NHS Haringey to the local authority in
March 2011 and is located in River Park House. A detailed description of
public health functions is given in Appendix 3.

18.3 Funding for public health

18.3.1 The NHS White Paper proposed that the DH would create a ring-fenced public
health budget; with this, local DsPH will be responsible for health improvement
funds allocated according to relative population health need. The allocation
formula for these funds will include a ‘health premium’ designed to promote
action to improve population-wide health and reduce health inequalities.

18.3.2 At this time of high financial challenge, there is a considerable risk of a
reduction in funding for public health. The local baseline funding for public
health is currently being determined with clarification of commissioning lead
and budget responsibility — as well as where reductions have recently
occurred, or where they are proposed.

18.3.3 Health improvement and health protection issues are currently largely
commissioned by the public health team through existing NHS commissioning
budgets and it is envisaged that this will continue and be transferred as part of
a ring-fencing public health function; clarification of commissioning lead and
budget responsibility for certain areas is required.

18.3.4 Current community NHS providers — in particular, health visiting and school
nursing — deliver substantial parts of what is required to improve public health
and provide prevention activity. How we identify and safeguard those activities
commissioned for public health action is still to be clarified.

18.3.5 The extent of local authority funding for public health, particularly health
improvement, is unclear; a considerable proportion of this is likely to be from
area-based grants, which are to be discontinued, which fund the delivery of
many public health functions.

18.3.6 Within London, the Mayor has a statutory responsibility for tackling health
inequalities. The Secretary of State has asked the Mayor and boroughs to
agree to an appropriate division of resources and functions to improve health.
One proposal is for a 3% top slice of the local authority public health budget to
be allocated to a London-wide public health function.

18.4 GP Consortium in Haringey

18.4.1 The NHS White Paper proposed a fundamental shift in responsibilities and
budgets for commissioning NHS healthcare and services, with GPs working in
‘consortia’ at the centre of this.

Page 10 of 20



Page 201

18.4.2 Haringey GP practices have been organised into four collaboratives for the

last three years: West Haringey, Central Haringey, North East Haringey and
South East Haringey. A GP Clinical Director leads the work of each respective
collaborative. The four collaboratives have agreed to form a pan-Haringey
Consortium covering a population of approximately 285,000.

18.4.3 NHS London’s GP consortia development programme (designed with the

national programme) will make funds available from April 2011 for GP
consortia to boost their progress.

18.4.4 Haringey GP Consortium is included in the fourth wave of GP pathfinders

18.5

19.
19.1

19.2

19.3

19.4

announced on 1 April by Health Secretary Andrew Lansley. GP pathfinder
status has been granted to GP commissioning consortia who have shown that
they would like to move quickly to implement the new commissioning roles.
They will test concepts, themes and functions at an early stage. The proposed
statutory functions of GP consortia have been published by the Department of
Health, with partners, in The Functions of GP Commissioning Consortia: A
Working Document.

HealthWatch

During 2011/12 we will be preparing for the creation of Haringey HealthWatch,
which will replace the Local Involvement Network. It will be an independent
body with the power to monitor the NHS and to refer patients’ concerns to a
wide range of authorities and be in place by April 2012.

Health and Social Care Bill: progress update

The Health and Social Care Bill 2011 was published on 19 January 2011.
Further detail can be found in Appendix 1. The government has stated that it
wants to modernise the NHS with the support of patients, the public and health
professionals.

On 5 April 2011, the cross-party Commons Health Committee published the
latest review of NHS Commissioning, which recommended a number of
significant changes to the Bill.

The MPs propose that representatives of nurses, hospital doctors, public
health experts and local communities should all be involved as decision
makers alongside GPs in NHS commissioning.

On 6 April 2011, the Government launched a two month listening exercise

on NHS modernisation which will focus on:

¢ the role of choice and competition for improving quality

e how to ensure public accountability and patient involvement in the new
system

Page 11 of 20



Page 202

e how new arrangements for education and training can support the

modernisation process

e how advice from across a range of healthcare professions can improve

patient care

19.5 Haringey’s involvement in the changing health agenda has led to excellent
progress locally. The Public Health function transferred to the local authority in
March; we have achieved early implementer status for implementing sHWB
arrangements and the Board has already held its first meeting; and we are

building a good relationship with many of our GPs.

20. Next steps
20.1 Below are the timescales for implementation of the national and local
changes.
No. National activity Timescale
1. NHS White Paper (and other related papers) published July 2010
2 DH Vision for Adult Social Care and outcomes November 2010
framework consultation published
3. Public Health White paper published November 2010
4. Publications on information strategy, patient choice, December 2010
provider led education and data returns
5. Consultation on Public Health White Paper, Healthy 31 March 2011
Lives, Healthy People
6. Consultation on the public health outcomes framework 31 March 2011
and the funding and commissioning of public health
7. NHS Commissioning Board established in shadow form April 2011
8. Shadow Public Health England set up 2011/12
9. Shadow GP consortia set up 2011/12
10. | NHS Commissioning Board with Regional Offices April 2012
established
11. | Public Health England, the new national Public Health April 2012
Service, established; shadow public health ring-fenced
allocations to local authorities published
12. | Strategic Health Authorities abolished 2012/13
13. | Local health improvement functions transferred to local April 2013
authorities, with ring-fenced grant
14. | GP consortia commissioning the majority of local NHS April 2013
services — contracts held with providers
15. | Primary Care Trusts abolished April 2013
No. Local activity in Haringey Timescale
1. LA/ NHS Integrated Programme Board established October 2010
2. Information to GPs on LA December 2010
3. e Establish Integrated Programme Board sub group to | December 2010
manage the transfer, subject to agreed financial
arrangements, of the NHS public health team to the
council
e Project brief /PID to be developed
4. e DPH to establish the baseline of funding for public End of
health within Haringey, both within NHS Haringey and | December 2010

Page 12 of 20



Page 203

No. Local activity in Haringey Timescale
Haringey Council
e DPH to be made aware of all proposals for reduction
in budgets considered to be for public health
5. As part of the new responsibilities of the DPH: End of January
e Agree the public health elements of all community 2011
provider services
e Begin establishing accountable joint commissioning
arrangements with the GP collaboratives.
6. Transfer of public health team to the local authority April 2011
7. Haringey shadow Health and Wellbeing Board April 2011
established
8. Haringey shadow GP consortium set up 2011/12
9. NHS Haringey abolished April 2013
10. | Haringey Health and Wellbeing Board established with April 2013
full statutory responsibilities

Page 13 of 20



Page 204

Appendix 1: Policy background

Equity and Excellence: Liberating the NHS

The White Paper, published on 13 July 2010, outlines a series of changes to the
NHS. It introduces additional responsibilities and new statutory functions which build
on the power of local authorities to promote local wellbeing. It states that each local
authority will take on the function of joining up the commissioning of local NHS
services, social care and health improvement. Health improvement includes positive
promotion of the adoption of ‘healthy’ lifestyles, as well as inequalities in health and
the wider social influences of health.

The Local Government Information Unit described the White Paper as representing
“possibly the most radical restructuring of the NHS since its inception”. The Paper
sets out three key principles:

e Patients at the centre of the NHS

e Changing the emphasis of measurements to clinical outcomes

e Empowering health professionals, in particular GPs

The legislative framework responding to the public consultation on the White Paper
was published in December 2010. It set out how the government will legislate and
implement the proposed reforms, drawing on the insights and experience contributed
by those who responded to the consultation.

A fuller briefing on the White Paper is available on request.

NHS White Paper Transparency in Outcomes (A framework for the NHS)

This consultation document (section 2.2 of the DH document) states that the current
performance regime will be replaced with separate frameworks for outcomes that set
direction for the NHS, public health and social care, and provide for clear and
unambiguous accountability thus enabling better joint working.

Achieving Equity and Excellence for Children

In addition to the NHS White Paper, a separate consultation on the above paper was
launched in September 2010 to consider how to ensure high quality services for
children and young people. It recognises that, although children and young people
are mostly healthy, illness and injury can have a long-lasting impact on a young
person and ultimately on their life chances and overall wellbeing; the implementation
of proposals from this consultation will be the responsibility of the HWB.

Healthy Lives, Healthy People
In November 2010, the government published its Public Health White Paper setting
out a framework and a set of principles to:

e protect the population from serious health threats

e help people live longer, healthier and more fulfilling lives, and

e improve the health of the poorest, fastest.

The White Paper reiterates key public health challenges include the continuing
premature morbidity and mortality caused by smoking related conditions; the
unhealthy consumption of alcohol; poor diet; increasing rates of sexually transmitted
infections; and poor mental health. It then outlines the government’s commitment to
protecting the population from serious health threats; helping people live longer,

Page 14 of 20



Page 205

healthier and more fulfilling lives; and improving the health of the poorest, fastest.
Health inequalities are explicitly referenced, including the stark fact that the gap
between rich and poor is not improving.

Subject to Parliament, the government has set out its intention to put local
government and communities at the heart of improving health and wellbeing for their
populations and tackling inequalities. The government has promised a ring-fenced
budget of £4bn, part of which will go to local authorities, while the rest will be spent
by a new central body, Public Health England, which will organise national
programmes such as immunisation and screening. Public Health England will be
established by 2012 to ensure expertise and responsiveness, particularly on health
protection, where a national response is vital; it will incorporate the Health Protection
Agency and the National Treatment Agency. Details of the public health outcomes
framework and funding are being consulted on separately.

A fuller briefing on the White Paper is available on request.

Healthy Lives, Healthy People: transparency in outcomes, proposals for a
public health outcomes framework

A consultation on the public health outcomes framework — to sit alongside the
proposed NHS outcomes framework and social care outcomes framework — was
published in December 2010.

It proposes five domains to fulfil the government’s vision to create a new public
health system in England to protect and improve the public’s health, improving the
health of the poorest, fastest. The framework is based on five inter-linked domains;
within each domain a set of indicators have been proposed.

Domain 1:  Health protection and resilience: protecting people from major health
emergencies and serious harm to health

Domain 2:  Tackling the wider determinants of ill health: addressing factors that
affect health and wellbeing

Domain 3:  Health improvement: positively promoting the adoption of ‘healthy’
lifestyles

Domain 4:  Prevention of ill health: reducing the number of people living with
preventable ill health

Domain 5:  Healthy life expectancy and preventable mortality: preventing people
from dying prematurely.

Healthy Lives, Healthy People: consultation on the funding and commissioning
routes for public health

This consultation, also published in December 2010, reiterates the proposal for ring-
fenced public health funding from within the overall NHS budget. The majority of the
public health budget will be spent on local services, either via local authorities
through a ring-fenced grant or via the NHS. The DH will incentivise action to reduce
health inequalities by introducing a new health premium.

The document sets out the proposed primary commissioning route for public health
funded services. Proposals about who the primary commissioner should be are
based on the following principles:

Page 15 of 20



Page 206

(@)  The default position is that, wherever possible, public health activity should be
commissioned by local authorities according to locally identified needs and
priorities;

(b) If the service in question needs to be commissioned at scale, or if it is health
protection best done at national level, then it should be commissioned or
delivered by Public Health England at a national level; and

(c) If the activity in question is best commissioned as part of a pathway of health
care (therefore, the level of integration with other health services is more
significant), or if the activity in question currently forms part of existing
contractual NHS primary care commissioning arrangements, then Public
Health England should fund that public health activity and commission it via
the NHS Commissioning Board.

Capable communities and active citizens (A vision for adult social care)

In November 2010, the DH published its vision for adult social care, setting out a new
agenda for adult social care based on a power shift from the state to the citizen. The
vision will feed into the development of a White Paper on social care in autumn 2011,
and future legislation. The DH also launched a consultation, Transparency in
Outcomes: a framework for adult social care, setting out a new strategic approach
to quality and outcomes in adult social care.

All’s well that ends well — Local Government Information Unit (LGIU) study
An independent study, commissioned by the LGIU and published in October 2010,
focuses on the role of local government in supporting health improvement and
tackling health inequalities, and analyses the structure of support needed locally to
deliver effective action for communities.

e The new HWBs need real teeth — they have to be statutory bodies with effective
powers, able to make decisions and to bring reluctant partners into line, but
there should not be a government blueprint — they need flexibility to adapt
different types of structure to respond to local circumstances.

e The new HWBs should be subject to independent and robust scrutiny.

e Support is needed to get the new system right — local government needs to take
the lead here.

e There needs to be much more robust evaluation of what works — nationally and
locally; programmes should not be rolled out unless there is prior evidence and
funding is built in for evaluation.

e Clarity is needed over spending on health improvement and tackling health
inequalities; no-one knows what is currently spent — resources need to be better
targeted with ongoing effective evaluation.

e There is an urgent need to make the business and policy case for early
intervention and preventative action — with new models which incentivise
different parts of the public sector to invest up-front.

The Health and Social Care Bill 2011 was published on 19 January 2011. The Bill
contains provisions covering five themes:

strengthening commissioning of NHS services
increasing democratic accountability and public voice
liberating provision of NHS services

strengthening public health services

Page 16 of 20



Page 207

reforming health and care arm’s-length bodies.

It covers an extensive range of measures and key elements include:

Establishing the NHS Commissioning Board answerable to the Secretary of
State for Health

Establishing commissioning consortia answerable to the NHS Commissioning
Board

Abolition of primary care trusts, strategic health authorities, and NHS trusts (to
become foundation trusts)

An extended role for Monitor as the economic regulator with a remit for
promoting competition where appropriate

Local authorities to become responsible for local health improvement, and jointly
appointing directors of public health with the Secretary of State

Establishing local Healthwatch organisations and the Healthwatch England
Committee within the Care Quality Commission

Local authority scrutiny of NHS bodies and NHS-funded providers

HWABs to be set up by local authorities with statutory membership for
commissioning consortia who will also be partners in JSNAs and health and
wellbeing strategies.

The National Institute for Health and Clinical Excellence (NICE) to produce
quality standards, to cover social care, to produce guidance on behalf of the
NHS Board and to publish a charter describing how it operates

A new Health and Social Care Information Centre established for the collection,
analysis and publication of information following guidance from the Secretary of
State and the Board

Duties on Monitor, the Care Quality Commission, the NHS Board, NICE and the
Information Centre to cooperate in their functions. The Secretary of State would
intervene in breaches of cooperation

Changes to health and social care professional regulation

Page 17 of 20



Appendix 2: Remit of former Well-being Partnership Board and existing Children’s Trust

Vision

Purpose
(taken from
ToR)

Outcomes

Well-being Partnership Board

‘A Healthy and Caring Haringey: All people in Haringey
have the best possible chance of enjoyable, long, healthy
lives.’

(Draft revised Wellbeing Strategic Framework)

To lead in promoting and delivering a Healthier Haringey for
all people aged 18 years and over in Haringey by:

1.

improving the health and quality of life of people who
live and work in Haringey and reducing health
inequalities

setting a strategic framework, including outcomes and
objectives, through which joint priorities can be delivered
and through which statutory responsibilities can be
carried out

agreeing joint, overarching priorities for the wider well-
being agenda

From draft revised Wellbeing Strategic Framework:

Reduced health inequalities (see below)

Adults safeguarded from abuse wherever possible and
dealt with appropriately and effectively if it does occur

Choice and control offered through the personalisation
of services

Care closer to home

From the draft Health Inequalities Strategy:

Empowering Haringey’s People and Communities
Primary and Social Care Equity

Health, Work and Wellbeing

Maintaining Healthy and Sustainable Places
Preventing lll-Health and Supporting Lifestyle Changes

Children’s Trust
We want every child and young person in Haringey to be happy, healthy and safe with a
bright future. (Children’s Trust Terms of Reference)

We want every child and young person in Haringey to be happy, healthy, safe and

confident about the future. (Children and Young People’s Plan)

1. To develop and publish a child and family-centred outcome led vision for all children
and young people in a Children and Young People’s Plan which incorporates all
partners’ strategies related to children and young people.

2. To putin place robust arrangements for inter-agency governance and performance

measurement of all the Every Child Matters outcomes for children and young people.

3. To develop integrated strategy, joint planning and commissioning and pooled and
aligned budgets to deliver the Children and Young People’s Plan.

4. To deliver child safeguarding services through integrated processes, and effective
multi-agency working underpinned by shared language and shared processes.

5. To develop and promote integrated frontline delivery of services organised around
the needs of the child, young person or family rather than professional or institutional
boundaries.

From Children and Young People’s Plan
Be healthy

Stay safe

Make a positive contribution

Enjoy and achieve

¢ Achieve economic well-being

From the draft Health Inequalities Strategy:
Enabling the Best Start in Life

Page 18 of 20

80¢ obed



Page 209

Appendix 3: Key public health roles

This document sets out the key roles likely to be required to deliver improved health
and reduce health inequalities locally.

1. Health improvement commissioning and strategic development

Key roles

- Ensure all health improvement activity has ‘strategic fit’ with the shadow Health
and Wellbeing Board’s health and wellbeing strategy.

- Commission health improvement services and health promotion activity to
encourage healthier lifestyles

- Influence the GP consortium to commission services to encompass prevention
and early intervention as well as disease treatment

- Develop partnership working to impact on the wider determinants of health and
health inequalities

The new public health function will have significant responsibilities for commissioning
of health improvement services, for example, smoking cessation services. For some
areas where prevention, screening and treatment are closely linked, such as sexual
health, some form of joint commissioning approach with our GP consortium may be
most effective.

Many functions within the local authority contribute to the health improvement
agenda - for example housing, planning, schools, community safety, parks and
leisure — and we need to ensure that integration will deliver the required functions but
avoid duplication and that the focus remains on early intervention and prevention,
addressing the wider determinants of health and reducing inequalities.

2. Public health intelligence
Key roles

- Leading the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)
- Adding value to the existing ‘intelligence function’ within the council

Intelligence supports all public health functions. JSNAs will form the foundation of
priority setting and inform a range of commissioning strategies and plans; they will
help local people to hold providers and commissioners to account. The public health
team has a number of specialists skilled in intelligence who currently support the
JSNA programme as part of their roles; they will bring valuable expertise to the
council’s intelligence function. Some intelligence is being provided at a sector level.

3. Health protection

Key roles

- Ensuring effective infectious disease surveillance and outbreak management

- Ensuring effective commissioning and compliance with infection prevention and
control in NHS premises and non-NHS community settings (e.g. schools, care
homes)

- Ensuring effective commissioning of immunization and screening programmes

- Contributing to effective emergency planning

Page 19 of 20



Page 210

- Contributing to partnership working on environmental health issues, community
safety and injury prevention

North East and North Central London Health Protection Unit (NE&NCL HPU)
currently provides expert advice to each local authority as well as surveillance of
infectious diseases and health protection incidents to inform local action; timely
investigation of incidents and trends of disease; and leading or contributing to
prevention and control programmes. While clarity on the role of Public Health
England in health protection provision at the local level is required when this body is
established, integration of the public health team into the local authority provides a
real opportunity to develop multi-disciplinary environmental protection and
emergency planning functions locally. Public health will lead on NHS emergency
planning at North Central London cluster level.

4. Public health support for health and social care commissioning

Key roles

- Contribute to an effective shadow Health and Wellbeing Board and a strong joint
commissioning function with the GP consortium and local authority

- Supporting health care (acute and community) and social care commissioning

- Ensuring that all components of clinical effectiveness and best practice are
supporting commissioning

- Contributing to improving quality of health and social care through programme
evaluation and quality monitoring

The need for local organisations to work together in partnership is essential to
providing effective and targeted services to local people. The statutory Health and
Wellbeing Board needs to ensure that there is strategic oversight of health and care
services and that joint working takes place when commissioning NHS, public health
and social care services.

The NHS makes a large (about 40% and relatively rapid) contribution to some
conditions — such as cardiovascular disease — that are major contributors to health
inequalities. Influencing NHS commissioning to reduce inequality is therefore
important. Public health has considerable technical expertise and experience for
health care commissioning; locally we have prioritised this with senior public health
support and will continue to do so, proactively and as required.

Existing local NHS service providers include substantial health improvement roles,
from health promotion to elements of more major services which deliver public health
outcomes such as school nursing and health visiting. Arrangements for the
commissioning of these services are likely to need a strong joint commissioning
function between GP consortia, public health and the local authority.

Decisions will also be needed about key joint commissioning arrangements for
mental health and learning disabilities; children’s and young people’s services
(including Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services [CAMHS]) and long term
conditions.

Page 20 of 20



Page 211 Awgrenda ltem 13

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

Councillors Allison, Engert, Peacock, Reith (Chair), Stennett and Watson
Apologies Councillor Alexander

Also Present: Councillor Solomon, Debbie Haith, Chris Chalmers, Attracta Craig,
Wendy Tomlinson.

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CPAC60 | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alexander.
Councillor Solomon attended the meeting in her place.

CPAC61 | URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business submitted.

CPAC62 | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interests submitted.

CPAC63 | MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on the 24" January 2011 were agreed
as a correct record of the meeting.

CPAC64 | MATTERS ARISING

Members of the Committee considered the matters arising report and
noted the following:

The Corporate Parenting Strategy
This was due to be considered by the Scrutiny Panel, for Corporate Debbic
Parenting, and would return to this Committee for final consideration on | Haith

the 19" April 2011,

Update on the Director of Children’s and Young People’s Service
planned meeting with the Judiciary to discuss delays in court care
proceedings. A briefing note from the Director of Children and Young
people’s service on his meeting with Judge Altman was attached for
information.

A report on the development work on dealing with issues of
isolation faced by young people leaving care. This report would
follow to Committee in April 19" 2011.

Chris
Chalmers




Page 212

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

Regular Update on North London Adoption and Fostering
Consortium
The Committee noted that the North London Adoption and Fostering
Consortium had met last week and they had agreed to look at their
development plans for the next financial year. This would include:
exploring how the boroughs can share foster carers, share training
opportunities for foster carers, examine the differences in allowances for
Fostercare. The Committee noted that there was a dedicated post
working for the North London Adoption and Fostering Consortium. This
post holder would, among other work duties, be examining the spend of
each member borough on Foster care providers and how a joint
procurement process could be delivered. A work programme for the
Consortium would be ready for consideration by this Committee after |
erk
May 2011.
It was noted that the North London Adoption and Fostering consortium
website routed visitors to the Council’'s webpage for fostering and that
this was still showing out of date information. It was agreed that the | wendy
Head of Children’s Commissioning and Placements consider the | Tomiinson
statistical information held and update as required.

The Committee enquired about the Council's response to the
Government’'s new initiative on Adoption which indicated allowing
children to be based with families not from their same ethnic
background. The Committee were advised that the initiative still
advocated the best interest of the child as a priority which was what the
Council followed in decision making on adoption. Placing a child with the
same ethnic family was part of considering the best interests of the child
and it could sometimes be the case that there were not exact racial
matches made when choosing parents for adopted children.

CPAC attending a Young and in Care Council - It was noted that a
joint meeting between the Corporate Parenting Committee and the
Young and in Care Council would be progressed.

Totals Respect Training -The Committee noted that the weekend dates
for the Total Respect training were not going ahead. The previously
arranged training dates of the 19™ and 20" April with a follow up session | Allto note
on the 02 August were available for members of the Committee to
participate in.

Registration certificate for manager at Coppetts Road .The
Committee were informed that there was frequent contact with OFSTED
to ensure that they had received and were considering the necessary
information required to issue the registration certificate for the Manager
at Coppetts Road Children’s Home. The interview process for the
manager would be initiated once authorisation had been given by
OFSTED.

All to note




Page 213

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

Items for the next meeting The Committee agreed that the senior
designated Children in Care Nurse be invited to this meeting and the
Independent Review Officer would report on work completed on stability
of placements. The Committee would also consider the standing items
on Performance, Regulation 33 visits, and Coppetts Road Children’s
Home.

Clerk

CPAC65

SAFEGUARDING LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE,
AND CARE LEAVERS WHEN SUPPORTING AND ENABLING THEM
TO ACCESS INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
The Committee received a report on the key issues being considered in
the development of a strategy for safeguarding looked after children |,
young people and care leavers when supporting and enabling them to
access IT and communication technology. It was explained to the
Committee that, when considering the access to information networks,
this was not solely about controlling access within the home but that it
was more about creating external knowledge and awareness among
carers and parents about these systems and encouraging personal
safety of the users. The Deputy Director for Children and Families set
out the initial principles of the strategy which were:

e Children and young people have the opportunity to use ICT to
enhance their learning opportunities , develop ICT skills and
communicate in the virtual environment

e Carers provided opportunities to develop their own knowledge
and skills in ICT so that they are better able to monitor use of ICT
by young people and support their use of it.

e There was the expectation from the Council that Service providers
will need to demonstrate that they can support appropriate access
to ICT and have a clear e — safety policy which was more
advanced than the standard security programmes and
understandable to carers and children.

e Haringey managed services would need to have local e- safety
policies which were communicated effectively to foster carers and
other support services that were contracted and work with
children and young people in care. These policies would need to
be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that they responded to
changes in technology and are able to safeguard users.

Members commented on the initial work completed on the strategy, and
sought clarity on the position of schools in this. The Committee advised
that it would be worthwhile reminding staff and teachers, of looked after
children, of the additional risks attached to vulnerable children and
young people accessing social networking sites. It was agreed that this
safeguarding element, of access to information technology, be
incorporated in the Virtual School policy.

Attracta
Craig




Page 214

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

Members remarked on the disparity between section 3 and 4 of the
report. Section 3 which communicated that looked after children living
in residential settings were not permitted access to technology in their
private rooms but in section 4, which provided guidance for Foster
carers there was no mention of IT access for children being open or
private. It was felt to be a need for the strategy to also keep in mind the
mobile access to technology which children and young people in care
may have. In response to these points, the Committee were advised that
the strategy was only concerned with information technology which is
owned or managed by the Council and the Committee agreed that the
strategy should make this more explicit. There were however broader
issues of how looked after children and young people are made aware
of the dangers of internet social networking sites and a need to develop
their understanding of what were safe and unsafe situations, particularly
with the increased use of mobile technology where there was not a fixed
control over.

In relation to monitoring the use of mobile information technology as
communicated in section 4.1.5, there was a need to also apply this rule
to the residential working practices. This was because there were
occasions when staff at residential settings would be taking care of the
belongings of children and young people living there.

The Committee advised that, when computer equipment was provided to
foster carers for use by the children and young people in their care,
clarification should be sought on their skills and knowledge of IT and the
internet to ascertain any relevant training needs.

The Committee also commented that the implementation of the strategy
would be as important as the strategy itself. They recommended that the
training provided to staff should be kept fully up to date with the changes
in technology continually factored and the training adapted. Foster
carers and staff at residential settings should be made to feel that they
are confident and understanding of the uses of information technology
and what Children and young people can and cannot access. Also they
should feel they are able to provide advice to children and young people
on what are and are not safe situations to be when online.

The Committee agreed that the forthcoming updated report should
clearly distinguish the rules and principles that will be relevant to access
to fixed computer technology and mobile technology. It was noted that
there would be further consultation with foster carers, residential staff
and young care leavers and a final version of the report to return to
Committee at a forthcoming meeting.

Debbie
Haith

Debbie
Haith

Debbie
Haith

Debbie
Haith

Debbie
Haith

CPAC66

ASSESSMENT OF HARINGEY'S PROGRESS WITH THE LONDON
PLEDGE

The Committee noted that the London Pledge was drawn up in 2008,
and adopted by the Children’s Trust, to ensure that children and young




Page 215

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

people in care across London had equal access to the same range of
key services and support where they live, go to school, or access
employment or training opportunities in London. The report set out the
pledge principles and detailed how the Council were meeting these
promises. The achievements in the overarching areas were: promises
that were made to young people were clear, specialist looked after
children nurse team established, and a complaints procedure for looked
after children and young people.

When considering the health principles of the pledge, the Committee
were informed that a multi agency forum had been established to
address health, education and placements needs of LAC. Individual
health assessments were undertaken by Doctors and follow up reviews
completed by a designated Children in Care Nurse, Judy Mace, who was
also due to attend the next Committee meeting of the Committee on the
19" April .The joint work of the Council with Tailstock Centre was
pointed to as well as the signposting of children and young people to
sexual health services as part of this pledge. An enquiry was made on
the attendance of young people at their healthcare meetings and it was
reported that, as these meetings were not compulsory, it was usual for
young people in care to sometimes not attend these meetings. In
relation to health visits to LAC outside of the borough, it was noted that
the designated CiC nurse from the borough would travel to outside
borough locations to visit CiC with weekend visits also completed when
needed. The Committee agreed that the complaints procedure for gﬂgfmers
children in care should be made available and published online as

previously requested.

In the stay safe section of promises to young people, the Committee
noted that young people will be consulted on their pathway plans. There
would be contact and liaison, where needed, with the Youth Offending
Service in the young persons new placement area.

The provisions of the Virtual School were highlighted in the section
dealing with enjoy and achieve. In particular their work on intervention at
critical learning stages to ensure that children go onto achieve between
the ages of 16-19. The 18 projects, which assist young people leaving
care, also helped young people access University. The Committee noted
that there were 44 care leavers attending University. The Committee
enquired about the support services to them and advised that there were
potentially more bursaries available in future for access to with the Frank
Butler trust referred to as a potential funding source. The Committee
were advised that the Council would issue looked after children with a
£2000 bursary that are attending University. There was a team which
actively worked on accessing all potential funding sources to offer to
care leavers and to improve the attraction of going to University.

In regards to encouraging a positive contribution in the community,
activities relating to this pledge were well established with a range of
activities for involving young people who included working with
Tottenham Hotspur. The Council were promoting the independence of




Page 216

MINUTES OF THE CORPORATE PARENTING ADVISORY COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 17 MARCH 2011

care leavers with provision of 50 housing units each year .Children and
young people in care would also have a savings account opened for
them by the Council. In relation to utilising access to leisure services, it
was noted that within the foster carer’s allowance, there was allocation
for leisure activities which allowed for the young person to pick the
activities they were most interested in.

The Committee considered the views of the Young and in Care Council
on how they saw the progression with the promises made in the pledge.
Following the tone and content of their response, the key message was
that the Council needed to work harder on explaining how they were
considering their views and what changes in services and working
practices had occurred as a result of their views. The directorate gave
great emphasis to listening and relating to children and young people. It
was clear that there would need to be a wider representation of youth at
various meetings, events and consultations. There was a need to
communicate more effectively to children and young people in care the
pledge and its promises regarding them so that they were more aware of
them. The Committee recommended that the communication with
children and young people in care should be not be in a single format but
completed in an array of ways to ensure that they were fully aware of the
importance placed by the Council on obtaining their views. This would
also aid furthering their understanding on what services were working
for them. The Committee also suggested that a further version of the
Corporate Parenting Strategy could be completed which was more
accessible to children and young people in care.

Chris
Chalmers

Debbie
Haith

CPAC67

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT : CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

The Committee noted the performance report and were asked to raise
any concerns by email to the Deputy Director of Children’s and Families.

All to note

CPAC68

ANY OTHER BUSINESS

The next meeting was on Tuesday April 19™ 2011 at 6.30pm. Councillor
Peacock’s apologies were noted for this meeting.

ClIr Lorna Reith

Chair




Page 217

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2011

Actions arising from Cabinet Procurement Committee are monitored and progress
reported by Corporate Procurement. Officers must therefore ensure that all actions
assigned to them, are fully addressed and signed off with the Contracts Management
Officer in the Corporate Procurement Unit.

Councillors *Goldberg (Chair), *Bevan, *Kober and *Reith.

*Present
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PROC70. MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 February be approved | HLDMS
and signed.

PROC71, BROADWATER FARM INCLUSIVE LEARNING CAMPUS -
FURNITURE, FITTINGS AND EQUIPMENT (Report of the Director of
the Children and Young Peoples Service - Agenda ltem 6)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

We noted that following a tender exercise the main contract for the
Integrated Learning Centre had been awarded to Mullalley & Co Ltd and
construction of the building started in July 2010. Construction of phase
one of the building was anticipated to complete in July 2011 with
occupation and full service delivery from September 2011. Phase two of
the building was anticipated to complete and be ready for full service
delivery a year later (September 2012) with some landscaping and
external works continuing until December 2012.

In order to ensure the building was ready for occupation and service
delivery a substantial amount of new furniture and equipment was
required to adequately resource the needs of the pupils, teachers, and
the community. This requirement had been ascertained in consideration
of an audit of existing legacy Furniture, Fittings and Equipment.

The Procurement Strategy proposed involved firstly the use of an Official
Journal of the European Union (OJEU) compliant framework furniture
supplier to purchase the bulk of Furniture, Fittings and Equipment thus
ensuring value for money and reliability of service. The quantities and
size of Furniture, Fittings and Equipment order to be placed with ESPO
will ensure that economies of scale could be achieved. The granting of
delegated authority to place the orders for Furniture, Fittings and
Equipment in due course would enable the project programme to




Page 218

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2011

continue without delay and without jeopardising the successful
occupation and operation of the new campus from September 2011. In
addition, for specialist items of Furniture, Fittings and Equipment not
available via ESPO, the necessary CSO waiver procedure would be
followed. Any such waivers would be reported back to the Committee at
a later stage.

RESOLVED

1. That approval be granted to the proposed Procurement
Strategy for Furniture, Fittings and Equipment for the
Broadwater Farm Inclusive Learning Campus;

2. That approval be granted in principle to the purchase of
Furniture, Fittings and Equipment from the Eastern Shires
Purchasing Organisation (ESPO) framework agreement in
accordance with Regulation 19.7(a) of the Public Contracts
Regulations 2006.

3. That in accordance with Section 15 of the Local Government
Act 2000, approval be granted to the delegation of authority to
the Director of Children and Young People’s Services to place
orders and award contracts via ESPO for the supply of the
majority of Furniture, Fittings and Equipment for the new
Campus.

DCYPS

DCYPS

DCYPS

PROC72.

AWARD OF THE PROVISION OF ICT DATA AND VOICE
STRUCTURED CABLING FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT (Report of the
Director of Corporate Resources - Agenda ltem 7)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

We noted that a restricted tender process for the ICT Data and Voice
structured cabling Framework Agreement had been carried out by
placing a contract notice in the Official Journal of the European Union
(OJEU), Supply2gov, Competefor and on the Council’s website.

Our Chair asked to be supplied with a briefing note detailing the bidding
process from the opening to the end bids.

RESOLVED

That in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.03 approval
be granted to the award of a four year framework agreement for
the provision of ICT Data and Voice structured cabling for Council
buildings to ITM Communications Ltd., Freedom Communications
(UK) Ltd. and Royce Communications Ltd.

DCR

DCR




Page 219

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2011

PROC73.

CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION WORKS - EXTENSION OF
FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT (Report of the Director of Corporate
Resources - Agenda Item 8)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

We noted that the Consultants for Construction Works (CfCW)
framework agreement was awarded in March 2008 for a period of 2
years, with the option to extend for up to a further 2 years subject to
satisfactory performance. We also noted that agreement had been
granted to extend the framework agreement by 1 year in April 2010 and
that the current framework agreement would expire on 27 April 2011.

We were informed that the framework agreement provided a one-stop-
shop service for the provision of project management, architecture,
building surveying, mechanical, electrical, civil and structural engineering
and quantity surveying. Separate framework agreements were awarded
to run concurrently with the CfCW framework agreement to provide cost,
quality and health and safety assurance to the work carried out by the
one-stop-shop service provider.

We were also informed that the performance of the single service
provider had been satisfactory throughout the initial term of the
framework agreement and the subsequent extension period. The use of
this framework agreement provided a robust contract management
process, with key performance indicators used to monitor performance.

RESOLVED

1. That In accordance with Contract Standing Order 13.02 approval
be granted to the extension of the Consultants for construction
works framework agreement for NPS Property Consultants Ltd.

2. That approval be granted to the extension of the framework
agreement for a further period of 1 year (as allowed within the
framework agreement) with an estimated total value of £1 million.

DCR

DCR

PROC74.

CONSULTANTS FOR CONSTRUCTION WORKS (ADDITIONAL
SERVICES) FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT EXTENSION (Report of the
Director of Corporate Resources - Agenda Item 9)

The Appendix to the interleaved report was the subject of a motion to
exclude the press and public from the meeting as it contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information).

We noted that the Consultant for Construction Works (Additional
services) (CfCWA) framework agreement had been awarded in March
2008 for a period of 2 years, with the option to extend for up to a further




Page 220

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
THURSDAY, 24 MARCH 2011

2 years subject to satisfactory performance. We also noted that
agreement had been obtained to extend the framework agreement by 1
year in April 2010 and that the current framework agreement expired on
27 April 2011.

We were informed that the framework agreements provide the following
services:

e Construction Design & Management (CDM) co-ordinator services
— Gardiner & Theobald

e Quantity Surveying — Frankham Consultancy Group, Keegans
and Potter Raper Partnership

e Clerk of Works Services — John Burke Associates

We were also informed that the framework agreements were awarded to
run concurrently with the Consultants for Construction Works framework
agreement to provide cost, quality and health & safety assurance to the
work carried out by the one-stop-shop service provider. The
performance of the service providers had been satisfactory throughout
the initial term of the framework agreement and client satisfaction had
been satisfactory.

RESOLVED

1. That in accordance with Contract Standing Order 13.02 the
Consultants for Construction Works (Additional services)
framework agreements be extended for the following companies:
e Gardiner & Theobald

Frankham Consultancy Group

Keegans

Potter Raper Partnership

John Burke Associates

2. That the framework agreements be extended for a further period
of 1 year (as allowed within the framework agreement) with an
estimated total value of £300,000.

DCR

DCR

PROCY75.

REVIEW OF CONTRACT STANDING ORDERS (Agenda ltem 10)

We noted that following consultation with our Chair consideration of this
item had been deferred to our next meeting.

The meeting ended at 18.15 hours.

JOE GOLDBERG

Chair




Page 221 Agenda ltem 14

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet 26 April 2011

Report Title. URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET
MEMBERS

Report of Assistant Chief Executive (People & Organisational Development)

Signed :

Contact Officer : Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923

Wards(s) affected: Not applicable Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with
Cabinet Members.

1.2 The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet
Members since last reported. Item numbers 09 and 10 (2010 -11) have not
previously been reported.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. Not applicable

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:
3.1. These are contained in the individual consultation forms.




Page 222

4. Recommendations
4.1.That the report be noted

5. Reason for recommendation(s)
5.1.Not applicable.

6. Other options considered
6.1.Not applicable

7. Summary

7.1To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with
Cabinet Members.

7.2The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet
Members since last reported. Item numbers 09 and 10 (2010 -11) have not
previously been reported.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1. These are contained in the individual consultation forms.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1.These are contained in the individual consultation forms.

10. Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]

10.1. Not applicable

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

11.1. These are contained in the individual consultation forms.

12. Consultation

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 223

12.1. Details are contained in the individual consultation forms.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1. Details are contained in the individual consultation forms.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Not applicable

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1 Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Cabinet Member Consultation Forms

Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 224

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 225

‘(e21be 0] AjlIoyIne sey Jjesiay Jepea eyl Yoiym
suonouUNy apIS 8AIINdaXT/18uUIge) ||B a4e 8say|) 'Sie)ew spiepuels

suoijoung apis

Buisnoy pue aJied [e100S JnNpe ‘uoisiancid  uoneonpa  ‘alejem | -jauiqe) — SIadIHO 19210
pliyo ‘eduepusaiie [ooyss ‘Buipuayo yinoA ‘uonosioud olgnd ‘yjesy 0} uonebajag BuLiojluo
olgnd 0] ajejal sjuswpuawe ay] -uonebs|eg Jo BWLYIS IS0 JO awayog LL'€0ve LL'€0ve Q S9JIAIBS
ay} jo Bunepdn pue 0} sjuswpuswe aulNoJ pue Joulw 0} [eaolddy | ayj 03 sjuawpuawy 19qoy ') | ueky sluleg LL'€0VE jebaq | oL
"oapiwwo) Aunniog
¥ MIIAIBAQ 9U} JO JieyD ayj AQ pesiopus sem YdIym Jo asn ay)
ainpaosoid Aousbin |eoadg ayy Japun uayel sem UoIsIoap SIYy] ‘9N S}oeIu0D
JO uoIsua)xy CEBTVVETS
‘1102 Key Lg 0} Kielodwa) - LL'€0¥e Aunwwon
[udy | wody | L0Z YoJe\ LE uo aaidxa 0} anp aiam ydiym sjoesjuo)) | awwelbold ajdoad LL'€0Ve Bunyd pue
a|doaq bBunioddng sy} 0} uoisusxa yjuow Om} e 0} |erocsddye Bunioddng g9V 1890y D Buoy] unpy LL'€0'¥Z | @1nyn) ‘Ynpy 6
1apean] wea|
J1aquIB|N S99)IWW0)
jJoulqed joUIqR)
Aq panoisdde 10)0311q Aq | Aq paniadal
uoisioag 9L ajeq panoidde ajeq ajeq ajelojoaliqg ON

11-010C — SFANATO0¥Ud ADNIOUN JIANN NIMVL NOILODV ‘I

¢ Ag pajousp ale swio} Jdwex]




Page 226



Page 227 Agenda ltem 15

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Cabinet 26 April 2011

Report Title. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (People & Organisational Development)

Signed :

Contact Officer : Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923

Wards(s) affected: Not applicable Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by
Directors.

1.2The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under
delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. Not applicable

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. These are contained in the individual action forms.




Page 228

4. Recommendations

4.1.That the report be noted

5. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1.Not applicable.

o

Other options considered

6.1.Not applicable

7. Summary

7.1To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by
Directors.

7.2 The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under
delegated powers. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of more
than £100,000) taken during the same period are also detailed.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1.Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1.Where appropriate these are contained in the individual delegations.

10. Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]

10.1. Not applicable

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

11.1. Where appropriate these are contained in the individual consultation forms.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 229

12. Consultation

12.1. Where appropriate details are contained in the individual consultation forms.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1. Where appropriate details are contained in the individual consultation forms.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Not applicable

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1 Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Delegated Decisions and Significant Action Forms

Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 231

s991A198 Ajlunwiwio) pue ainjind ‘Ynpy jo Jojoaliqg
6
Bunyg uoyy unpy.

SHN0) SIUUS | 9)iSED 90nig Z0'LL 0SO

I e R e T e = pabe

1102 Udoie v =31:Tg) T :Aq pasuioyine uoissiugng
AN

) pIy s,uswiop AsBulH Z0'LL OSD L1'20°€2
l 8SBaIdUl JORJUOD S1IN0Y siUuL | ajise) aonug — JoBIUOD 1L L°20°GL
L UOWIWDY) USBIE) POOAA — UOISIAOI] ABld 20 LL OSD LL'Z0YL
L uowIWOY SPPYIN( — UOISIACIH ABld 20°LL OSD :LLZ0vL
] }oBNUOD - P} UsSY Hoddng siale) yyesH [BUSN-HET *1 120701
L 10BJJUOD — juegswiij — EmEm@.@q @:_UCSH_ uopuon fo?v::o‘_mYIml_ L2001
L Med sue umoq — Z 9AeM JeplingAeld — uoisinoid Aejd Z0'LL OSD 111'20°80
L SNOLEA — Z 9ABAA JoplingAe|d — uoIsinold Aeld Z0'LL OSD 11°20°80
|

11172080

s

et AT il s e e L

uonoy pajebajaqg

1eBeuepy saoinosay pue 0] — 110 — Aoyine pajebejeq LLZ0

1O ‘L

1dwexy ale siaded punoibyoeq sajousp ¢
110z Aieniga4— uonoy pajebsjaq - suolisioap jueoiubig

SIDIAYAS ALINNWIWOD ANV ANLTIND 1INAV 40 HO123did



Page 232

7 Jo | o3ed

panosddy pi1 abejiA eotewer — Ajuoyine pajebsjeq LLI'E0LL L
panoiddy sJo)ny [euUoIsSsas §yH — Alloyine pajebsisg L1'€0'¥0 9
panoiddy sjuawasnuy sBuiuuep — Ajuoyine pajeBajeg 116020 g
panoiddy snoJi soddiz — Ajioyine pajebajaQ L1'€0°20 v
paroiddy uypesi4 8y | — Ajuoyine pajebajeq 11'€0°20 €
panoiddy e wes | siepe) — Auoyine pajebejeq L1'€0°20 Z
m_um>o.ﬁa< .mw_cmﬁmw:rc«. apmuoleN ﬂmmmcﬁ ,.|.>Eo£3m palebajeq _

L1'€0°¢0 ‘1

1dwex3 ale siaded punoibyoeq oncmv é
110Z YoueN— uonoy palebsjeq - suolsioap juedyiublg

SIDIAYIAS ALINNIWINOD ANV HUNLIND LTINAY 40 HOLOIUIA



Page 233

7)o 7 98eg

s991A19g AjUNWWo) pue ainyngd ‘Ynpy jJo 103031iQg
Bunyd Buoy ] unpy

110z 1dy ;v :e1ed :Rq pasiioyjne uoissiugng

A

Oll ‘19Kap\ a1oer — UOISUB)Xd JoeNU0) L0l OSD L1'€00€

[66p0 1ejwe)] 801AI8g UoIsIaAI] HNoD €0'el OSD -L1'€0°0¢

301AI8S S.UBLION 1ueuBsid pesoubelq AimeN 10 Bulpuny [euonippe — UORBUEA J0BAUOD -} 1'€0°0¢

s T

poddns wooisse|)
pue JuswdoAsg WNNoLINY — SUOITBAOUU| ran/swwesfold AlH AsbuieH pue pjaluz/HgT JOBHUOD ‘11°€0°0¢

L 1/010¢ uonoun4
awabeuepy diysisuped MOUMZIWLL- YN soriqui/ewwelBoId AIH AsBuue pue piyuzl/Hg 1084U00 11 L'€0'0¢E

"1 @snoH puejsuasny pue Hg 10eau0d 1110 0¢

UONESI[BUOSIa o1 SJOBIJUOD SNOLEA — SUOHBLIBA J0BIU0D £€0°¢l OSD :11'€0'8¢

5187 [B190S JINPY 1O UOISIAId 10} SJOBUOD SNOLEA JO UOISUaX] 20°€L OSD ‘L 1'€0he

JUswabeueyy 8BUBYD 80IAISS JO peaH wisjul — poomAeH suAepm G0'9 OSD :LL'€0°22

pod Reld JO UOII|OWSP — Yled SI8UONE}S UOISINOId Aeid z0'LL OSO 'LL'E0'Le

SouBLBIUIBL pajeibosse pue Ajddng juswdinb ayng ssaulld z0'LL OSO PUB §0'9 OSD L1'€0'ke

191 pue wied J8lepi peoig 1e slieH mtoamw ay] 0} mocmcmwc_mrcbcm_\ca_jdm suodgzo'LL OSD 'LL'E0'LT

sayouaq exodsaq yled sisunels — uoisiroid Aejd $0°9 OS -1 1'€091

B1US Binsie] usalg Weyuspo] je 100y jood Buiyoes ) z0'LL OSD LL€0vL |

100[01d SHNIT — JoBAUOD JO UOISUBIXT [} 1°¢0V

| JuswdojaAs( sWWeIbold € 8Seld mouyzaull $0'9 OSO ‘L1 '€0vl

[seai] ayl] swsyog buisnoH papoddng aieQ eJixg — SSWOH IH :11'€0°20

uonoy pejebsjeq |




mn_..ro ._ouow.:o

“ JPE0L3 wmo:cmw JOBIJUOY 1504 ¢ 8seyd Aiewid abplsjo) CO'Cl
Hl.- G9'609'823 o SyJoM [eulaixe pue juawudinbs Aeid siswsiseH jo uswiysigingey

| | 66'88/'VL3 SHUN WOOISSE(O 8|Iqow paly Jo [erowal ~ anue) poddng jidnd

L 00e'83 Ajnoas ajis pue ajuad) s,uL1pjiy) O} suojels}e — |0oYds Aeuld s|iiyumo( 20°L) |
‘ 0SZL. €13 nun AJasinu 9jiqol paliy Jo [BAOWISI — [00Y0S jueju| Ajsaxoy o

w 058'GL3 siayoeapest 1o} Buiutel) pue uonepjioe; ‘Buiyoeod ojodsag $0°0
M 1000083 B ANUNwwoo ysimar 1o} seoeld a1eopjiyD

M 000'0G3 Aunwitwod ysimar 1oy saoejd 81eapiiyd

£eo9'LY3 m%oz, EmE:m_EEQ mtcoo s cm%__co ule k_oﬁm\snmem

M

Page 234

S o i - SV e ey

uoisizeq oL | Aq panoidde sreq |

dwex3 ase siaded punoibyoeq ssjousq ¢
11,0z Alenige uooy peiebeje( - suoisiosp eoyiubig

(s3e4030041( O DWieU WAsSUL) 40 HOLOINIA



uonessiulwpy pue Joddng ssauisng ‘1030alig Ayndag ‘Asjieg uej

Page 235

Chey - gl / ,
I \f\ yd :Aq pasuoyine uoissiwgng
LOSLL3 Sa01AI8S "W029]8} JO JuswaInoold “sndwe) bujuleaT sAisnjou| ule4 Jajempeoiq
000SsY3 s901M9s UBISAp [euoissaj0id JO JUBWAINO0I "UBYOYY JO wswdojanapal — s|jiyumo(
69G1€3 Juaweoe|dal i Buipjing uoljired JO J8pus}-al — |00YOS POOAA d1ebybiH
00593 Z aseyd swweiboid ybiH Buiwny anua) ajdsay asewsiseH
000053 Jopoaig Andaq wiisiuf Jo UOISIAOI 0} UOISualX]
910163 wa)sks abeurelp s,j00yos ay} o} sitedas — jooyog Jounp A|sayoy rAR)
| | G¥663 siepuiwipjiy) Joj Buiurer] Ayjiqesiq isijetoads G0'9
1 | 000S¥3 poddng pue uonueaaid Aoueubald abeusa | 09
10qUINN . . = ediy
uonoy pajebajaqg
uolesiuIWpYy jeoueut
pue uonelsiuiwupy saljiue
pue uaIpjiy) 9onpay pue
(11°¢°'G2) @apwwo) sasodind [eleuss) JO Jey uay) pue ‘10j0ailq Aq panoiddy ainjoniisay o} sjesodolid Leee “}
J0p1a
uo|sipeq spil | Aq peacidde ajeq oN

1dwex3g ale sieded punoibyoeq sajousq ¢
LL0Z Yoley uondy pajebsje( - suolsioap jueoyiubis

SdAD 40 ¥0L103dId




Page 236

1T50°12 SARN0exd JeIyD Aq peubis 108l0id sbuines Aousio3 (VSTIN) souellly dibaleas uopuoT
YLION O} 8oIApE pue poddns juawsbeuetl Jeyo O} — YIoM Aoueynsuoo 1 £0°9 OSD Jo uoieuswaldw 1oj Jsenbay

"11°20°81 404 Ag
paubis ‘eWOH [enuspissy poomuel] —~ siajlog paii4 1O Jo Jusweoelday 81 €9 0SD 0 uonjejuawsjdw Jo} 1senbay

‘1°'208L Hoa Aq
paubis ‘juswisoe|des Jooy (g SSAIYDIY) Winesnip apse) sorug ol 20’11 OSO 49pun JOBAUOD JO PIEME 10} jerociddy

“L1°20°Z} 90d Aq paubIs “Z| SvI pue suoleinbey
SH4] 1OpUN OljOJLOd JUSWISOAU] S JIDUNCY 8Y} JO UoKEN|EA 84 L OSD 18pun v0'9 0OSD J0 Jentem Jo} ysanbay

"11°20°20 "4Oa Aq paubis ‘ojjopod
piojpuen ejesodio) ‘(g) sepe.ifdn [eoulo8]e alm paxi) Apeal g 181 20" L1 OSD 18pun 10BUOD JO pieme 10} jeaouddy

“11°20°€0 40a Aq paubis
‘aUIBLOS SUBID) 8y} JO G/ UOII0aS Jepun palinbal se sWwayos sjuels sybnoiog UopuUOT 8yl 0} UCHNQUUO0D ZL/1L10Z
pepuswiwooal s febuley esibe o) ol Awoyine pejeBejep Jo seinpecosd Aousbin J8pun usye} UoISIoep JO PI0odY

"1 1'20°20 1¥Da Aq psubis ‘sedinies Buypuey swiej)
PUE 90UBINSU] [218USH) — WNILOSUOD S0UBINSU| 181 JUSLISINI0I] WNIIOSUOD SoUBINSU| — SIORIUOD JO PIemy

“11°20°20 4OQ Aq paubis ‘3d6 8N uUopuoT ‘AssuioH
‘SuepIer) 9j000YIeY /G| JO |ESodsi( 84 $83IN0SaY ajei0dion Jo Jojoalig - Aluoyine pejeBaiep 1epun uoisioeq

1120 10 1wawdojersq euchesiueBi( g ajdoad ‘oAnoaX3 JaIy) Juelsissy

8.mn} syl mn_.nmm.m 81 L 0SD J8pun $0'9 OSD 4O JoARM Jo} 1senbay

uonoy peaiebsieq
‘goueULUIRW
pue poddns sieak saiy) yum (NVS)
-gourUejUrewWw pue poddns Bulobuo yim >HoMIsN Rewy ebelog ylomaN Aelly ebesols o1 20'LL OSO ¢
| dH 40} 10B4U0D 3y} pieME 0] S82IN0saYy e1e10d107) 10 10302.1Q 8Y} 104 Jopun J0BIU0D JO pieme Joj feAoddy | 112082 | Th
sopeia Aq |
gL 2SRl G SR TR peaoidde
_uoispedq | et i St L T el a | ON

“1dwex3 ese sieded punoibyoeq ssjousp ¢
L L0z Aeniged — | 1/0102 uonoy patebsie - suoisiosp jueoyiubis

I0IAH3S IALLND3XT 431HO ANV S30HUNO0STIH J1IvHOdHOOD




Page 237

saoinosey eelodio Jo 1010a11Q

&%@xv ) %@4 b loxed aynr

:Aq pesuoyjine uoissiuqng

11°20'82 40d Aq paubis ‘enued |fe) S,|1ounog sy buipnjoul
JOOJ} PAIY} 9SNOH elpuexs|y au} 10} Aiddns temod dn-yoeg @1 L O0SO 8pun ¥0'9 0OSD 10 JaAlem 10} Jsenbay

T1°20°€2 40Q Aq paubis ‘Bunsaj souelddy 8|qeuod 81 20'Li OSD 49pun JOBIUOD JO pIeme 10} jeaosddy

"11°20°2 400 £q peubis ‘weskg Juslabeuey

9ouUBWIOUSd D 1USBAD)) O SOUBUSIUEW PpUB poddng :ai 91°9 QSO Jepun J0B4UOT JO pJeme 1o} feaciddy
P.1U02 UondYy palebsieq




saoinosay a1esodio) Jo Jojoallq ‘4exted sinf

/e \.wv\dwﬁ . b :Ag pasuoyine uoIssiugng

Page 238

L T1°20° L€ 400 Aq peubis ‘eoines poddns Jelwald HJOSOIN 81 91°9 OS 18pun JOBIUOD JO pieme 10} [eroiddy

L “L1°'e0°€¢ 4OA Aq paubls ‘epeibdn puodsey 81 91°9 OSD J8pun 10U JO PJEME 10} [eaouddy

1160 €2 40d Aq peubis ‘fensn sy sseuisng pue awiweiboid

L | |emeusy ainjoniseyu| 21 go'L L Jepun pieme o} [eacidde pue qzo'L OSO J8pun pemojje se 0SO SAeM O} 1senbay

"L1°€0°G 1 4Oa 40} 1900

L aourul4 pea Aq peubis ‘Juswabeury 19SSy WLl 81 £ OSD Jepun §0'9 OSJ 40 JaArem o} 1senbai jeaciddy

“L1°'20°01 °0a Aq paubis 108foid eouessieuay |leH UmMoL

L kaswioH :aJ yuswdoleasp Buiey|ioey JO 8jes 8y} Ul ISISSE O} juebe pue| e juiodde 01 10BUCD B pieme 0} jeaociddy

‘L1'€0°60

L H0Q Ag paubis ‘UOIHOWSP 8XauUY Jedy |[eH UMoL AoSUIOH 101 20" L1 OSD J8pun JoBAU0D JO pJeme Joj [eroiddy

uonoy palebsieq

“gouBUSIUEW
pue poddns Bujobuo Jo siesh 881y} sepnjoul yoiym epeibdn XD -apeifdn wued xupo @1 20°'LL 0SSO ¢
10} JOBJJUOD 8} P/EME 0} S92In0saYy ejelodio) Jo Jojoai] 8yl Jod , Japun 10BJ1UOD JO pieme 4o} [eaciddy LL'E0'LE b
1eLO'El OSD Jepun (SUOISUSIXa JOBJUOD O} 100lgns) 'S9JIAIeS nesing
sieak g Jo poued e 1o} seojnies neaing ABisul Jo uoisinoid ey} ABisug JO UOISINOId 81 20 L OSD *
10} 1OBIUOD SY} P/EME 0] S80IN0saY 91ei0dio) 0 Jojoali] 8u 104 19pun J0BIUOD JO pieme Joj ferosddy LL'E0°LE €1
; “UONIEpI|OSU0) pue

-aseyoInd JJO SUO B SE aJempiey JoAIes uolesijenIA JoAeS ~ dH @1 ¢0'LL OSO *

dH 10} 19B43U0D 8U} PIEME 0] $92IN0saY 81elodio) JO 10J08lIJ Uy 404 Jepun JOBIUOD JO pJeme 1o} [erosddy LSOV 2
*$1500 BUIODUO oU eJe aley] ‘seouddl| lenediad ‘Buisuaon]

aie asay) sy ‘Buisusoi] sbueyox3 0L0g HOSOIOIN JO sseyoind sy} | obueyox3 QLOZ YOSOIOIN @4 20°LL OSD

10} JORJIUOD U} PIEME 0} S92in0say djelodiod Jo 1030a.iq 8yl Jo4 Japun }0euo9 Jo pieme Joj jerosddy LL'€0°0L L

. . | | Pperoidde

_uosioed | ered ON

Ol | ed
1dwexy ase w‘_oamw_.kucsohmxomn sojousp ¢
1102 YoSel — | 1/010g Uoidy palebejaq - suoisioap ueoiubig

FDIAYAS IALLNDIXT 43IHD ANV SIOHNOS3Y F1IvHOdHOO



Page 239

‘spooyinoqyBiaN Jo} Jaquusy 1auige) sy} Yiim uoieynsuod
Ul 3N JO Jo1aiIg 8y} 0} Shwiad Mau jo uononposul ay) pue syusad Bupired Jo sebreyd auy
Ul 9SB2J0Ul B} UO SUOISIOap [Buly axew o} Ajoyine ajebajep o} paaibe (asn) Aunniog B mainBAQ | sebireyd eseasoul o} siesodoid uo
ay} Jo uolNjosaJ 0} asuodsal) JBuige) LL/2L/el “siesodoid uo uoneoylou Aojnje;s 0} peadoid 0} | uoledyliou Alojnjels 0} Xoeqpas)
51991}§0 paslioyine pue sabieyo pue saa) Bupired ui aseasdul pasodoud ay) paaiby Jauiqed Li/L1/91 -sobieuo jjusad Bupiied jJo mairsy L10Z YOI 6
“Kobuuen i sjuiod Buibieypd (e apnjoul [iim Ydiym “UopuoT] 824nN0G pajjed awayods julod
5U}089}8 uopuo ued ay} Yiim ajqredwod aq (im pue urejurew pue (lejsul usiudinba ainjoejnuew
JIIM OUM Suone|feIsul 1NIOd QOd istieroads jo aseyoind ay ybnoay; ssued Jes j0ais-jjo ajeaud pue
oijqnd ui pue 18a1s uo sjulod BuiBreydas BjoIYSA OLUI09]9 JO UoHe|jelsUl pue aseyaind 8y} 1o} v1/E108 ‘PITU0d AOd Wody uoejjeisul
0} L 1/0102 Usamjaq uoneoolfe 4i sAebulie woy papuny 30z 13 Alejewixoidde jo ainypuadxe 104 pue uswdinba bBuibreysal
“(J0EZ3 19puN S10BAU0D) 2'L LOSD Jepun pamojje se joaloid siy} Joj J0B1UOD By} pJeme 0} arolddy 8|01UBA J1}098 JO aseYdINd 1102 YoIep 6
"uodas 8y} JO 00} UOHOBS
Ul JNO ]OS SB SUOHBPUBWIIOdal 8} Yiim paadold o) [eroidde yaes 0] “paniedal suopejuasaidal Asbuuep
ay} 0] sesuodsal ,S1ad1j0 IO }8s 0} pue sAeq qnjo Jeo jo uojonposul pasodoid au} 10} 1102 ul skeq qniD sen) Jo uoisuedxa
Areniga4/Arenuer Ui jno pases uoledyiou Alojnjels Bulinp paalsodal suoneluasaidas oy} wodal 0] | 1o} uopedyioN Aloimels jo uodey L10Z UoIei £
"Ajjioe}
Ajunwiwod e se sdnoib Ayunwiwod mojfe o} Buipjing ay) o} siopjoy Asy aq |jim AsBunei 10j SSWOH
pue [1punos) ay) pouad wisul 8y} uj “padojeasp Buleq aie alis 8y} Jo Juswdojanapai pue jesodsip sdnoib Ajunwiwod Aq jleH
10} SUONdO ‘wis} WNPaw 8y} uj "asn AJUNWWOD Mojfe 0} {leH uojejdwa | uadoas Ajuelodwsy o) | uojeidwe] jo asn Aresodwa) 8y 1L10T Yot £
“20InI9g Apadold 0} peuiajsuel aq |iim sisod 1obeuepy :
a)ig Aindaqy pue sebeuepy aug Aindaq pue sebeuepy alig aaua) 82IN0Say poouynoqubiaN ayl
1s0d 821A18S SenluUNwWWoD 1abuollS Jejes jo peaH olelodio)
20IA19G SeIIUNWWO?) 19BuoNg Jajes Jo Wea) Juswebeuew uj isod 1810 Uoddng @dlAes
wesa ] uoldy j0yodly ® Bnig eyl ul 1sod J0JeuIpI0-00 ddUBULIOUSd pUE Bleq ‘pasiajsuel} Bulaq aie
wea | uoloy |oyodly @ Bnug ey ul isod J8d1O UIWPY | SWEea) SNOLEA 8U} pue paysiige}sa
wes ) Alses Anunwwo) ayy uj jsod 18010 uiwpy -sip Buiag si Jun ssauisng
:pojajap aq |im sisod Buimoljoy eyl | sepunwwo) Jebuong Jefeg 8y) | 110z Adenigoy g1
“Z1/1 102 Ul Bujpuny jo uojenuuUOd/SUOleUILLID)
uo suoijesiuebIo YoNS Yum LOIE}NSUOD uo paadold o) pasinbai st Ajuoyine paebajeq "1 102 Yore
ur sesead Buipun; sy "HEV ubnoiy) suojesiuebio ejeaud pue J0j0as piiy] Jo Jequinu e spunj 21/110z2 101098 paiy ] Buipundg
Apuanng pieog diysisuped oslidisluzg pue 8}eIojodil(] JUsWUONAUZ ueqin ybnoiy) pounod ay L ssudisjuzuswuolaug uedqny | 1102 Atenugad pi

1dwexg ale si1aded punoibyoeq sejousq ¢
L1/0102 uonoy pajebaje - suojsioap Jueoljubis

1NIINOHIANI NvaHn 40 H0103dId



Page 240

:Aq pasioyine uoissiwagng

"ainjn4 a8y} 10} sjooyos buiping

jo ued se sjooyog 10} diysiauped woiy paundal Buipuny “sejolyan Aousbiaws 10} ssadoe Apeal ainsud 0} |00YOs
auy} JO Jieyaq uo saoneg s,8/doad BunoA 1 uaIpyYD Wwolj paaedal jsenbal — j0oyos episino suonousal Bupyed
] yum paasoid o} [eaoidde yees 0] ‘Z2gN uopuoT ‘jooyas ybiH spueesy apisino suohouisal Bunrem pesodoid

uonoy pojebajag

71 10 JUBLIYSI|QE}Se 9DIAI3S PaJBys E O} £¢ WOIj paonpai aq |im uojelausbey ojwouoo]
ul sisod J[eJenQ ‘swea) JusludojaAa( dlwouod] 2100 pue uawabeuep swweibold ‘wea |
Kisalpg 99jueseny) Aabuuey painbiyucoal ay} Spnjoul ||IM 3DIAI9S MBU 8y L "JHd UIYIM 8o1AIeS ‘JHd UM
uone1auabay o1WoU0dT JUsLND ay) BuLNoNASas UBBW [IM SIUL *L 102 JO Jawwns 8y} Aq 80IAI9S aoinies uoljessuabay olwouoog
juswdojaAa( SILIOUCOT paleys B ysiqelsa o} BupJom aJe SjIouno 12104 weyyem pue Asbuireq auno sy Buunjonisay

LLOZ YOJBN yLL | L

-jdwexg ase siaded punoiboeq ssjousq ¢
L1/0102 uonoy parebaja - suoisioap jueoyubis

AINIJWNOHIANT Nvadn 40 H0103HIa



Page 241 Agenda ltem 18

Document is exempt



Page 250

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 251 Agenda ltem 20

Document is exempt



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Matters Referred by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	2011.04.26_Item 06a_SR 20 m.p.h. Speed Limit - Appendix
	2011.04.26_Item 06b_SR Haringey Guarantee
	2011.04.26_Item 06b_SR Haringey Guarantee - Appendix 1
	2011.04.26_Item 6b_SR Haringey Guarantee - Appendix 2

	7 The Council's Performance: February 2011 (Period 11)
	2011.04.26_Item 07_Performance Report - Appendix 1
	2011.04.26_Item 07_Performance Report - Appendix 2

	8 Hornsey Town Hall Refurbishment and Redevelopment
	9 Capital Programme Priorities 2011 to 2014
	10 Supported Housing Review - Stokely Court
	11 Proposals for the Redesign of the Supporting People Programme and Contributions to the Council's Savings Plans
	12 Responding to the NHS and Public Health White Papers
	13 Minutes of Other Bodies
	2011.04.26_Item 13b_Proc Cttee Minutes

	14 Urgent Actions Taken in Consultation with Cabinet Members
	2011.04.26_Item 14_Urgent Actions - Appendix

	15 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
	2011.04.26_Item 15_Del Dec Sig Acts - Appendix

	18 Hornsey Town Hall Refurbishment and Redevelpmnet
	20 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions

